
           
  

 
City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers

1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, April 29, 2024
5:00 PM

 

Mayor
Joe Pizzillo

_______________

Vice Mayor
Laura Kaino

_______________

Councilmember
Sheri Lauritano

_______________

Councilmember
Wally Campbell

_______________

Councilmember
Bill Stipp

_______________

Councilmember
Brannon Hampton
_______________

Councilmember
Vicki Gillis

_______________

CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR
Please complete a speaker card and submit it to the City Clerk prior to the meeting
being convened, if possible. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Once the
City Clerk has called your name, step up to the lectern and begin by clearly stating
your name for the record and whether you are a Goodyear resident.

NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any non-agenda item
within the jurisdiction of the City Council. The City Council will listen to comments and
may take any of the following actions:

Respond to criticism.
Request that staff investigate and report on the matter.
Request that the matter be scheduled on a future agenda.

AGENDA ITEMS
Members of the public may address the City Council regarding any item on the
Consent, Public Hearing and/or Business portions of the agenda. Each speaker's
name will be called in turn once the item has been reached and after City staff have
completed their presentation.

PROCEDURES
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
Goodyear City Council and to the general public that the Council of the city of
Goodyear will hold a meeting open to the public. Public body members of the city of
Goodyear will attend either in person or by telephone conference call and/or video
communication. The Goodyear City Council may vote to go into Executive Session,
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3), which will not be open to the public, to discuss
certain matters. Meetings are conducted in accordance with the City Council Meetings
Council Rules of Procedure adopted by Resolution No.2018-1879.
  

City Clerk’s Office: 1900 N. Civic Square, Goodyear, AZ 85395 (623) 882-7830
www.goodyearaz.gov/cityclerk 
City Council Meeting Live Broadcast: https://www.facebook.com/goodyearazgov/videos



Monday, April 29, 2024 5:00 p.m. Meeting Agenda

           
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY VICE MAYOR KAINO
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 

CONSENT

 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the draft minutes from a Regular Meeting held on April 15, 2024. (Darcie

McCracken, City Clerk) 
 
2. APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE AD-HOC CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Appoint members to the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee.  (Darcie McCracken, City

Clerk)
 
3. APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE

FOR POPO'S FIESTA DEL SOL
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Recommend approval of Application No. 287965 to the Arizona Department of Liquor

Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Theresa June Morse has submitted this
application for a New Series 12 liquor license for Popo's Fiesta Del Sol located at
15375 West McDowell Road, Goodyear, Arizona 85395. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of
the City)

 
4. APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

MACAYO'S MEXICAN FOOD
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Recommend approval of Application No. 286706 to the Arizona Department of Liquor

Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz has submitted this
application for a New Series 12 liquor license for Macayo's Mexican Food located at
1474 N Litchfield Road, Goodyear, Arizona 85338. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of the
City)

 



 
5. APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 7 (BEER AND WINE BAR) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

BACCHUS WINE BAR
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Recommend approval of Application No. 283070 to the Arizona Department of Liquor

Licenses and Control (DLLC). Agent Anthony John Vozar has submitted this
application for a New Series 7 liquor license for Bacchus Wine Bar, which will be
located at 1971 N. Globe Dr, Goodyear, Arizona 85395. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of
the City)

 
6. APPROVE EXPENDITURE UP TO $2,400,000 FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF

SEWER LINES LOCATED WITHIN THE CORGETT WASH
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve expenditure of funds up to $2,400,000 for the replacement of sewer lines

located in the Corgett Wash (Project 61002). (Barbara Chappell, Water Services
Director)

 
7. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH CITY OF GLENDALE FOR

FIRE AND MEDICAL SERVICE STAFFING FOR SPECIAL EVENTS
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with city of Glendale for fire and

medical service staffing for special events. (Paul Luizzi, Fire Chief)
 
8. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH STATE OF ARIZONA

THROUGH DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY TO PROVIDE INTEGRATED
SERVICES AT THE SOUTHWEST FAMILY ADVOCACY CENTER

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with State of Arizona Department of

Child Safety (DCS) and City of Goodyear. (Art Miller, Interim Chief of Police)
 
9. THRIVE AT AVISION GOODYEAR FINAL PLAT  
  RECOMMENDATION
  Conditionally approve the Final Plat for Thrive at Avision Goodyear, subdividing 4.61

acres into 47 lots and 3 tracts at the North East Corner of the West Van Buren Street
and North Central Avenue. (Marty Crossland, Deputy Director of Development
Engineering)

 
10. DESIGNATE AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE CITY OF

GOODYEAR TO ACCEPT FEDERAL AND/OR STATE FUNDING
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2402 APPROVING THE DESIGNATION OF



  ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2402 APPROVING THE DESIGNATION OF
APPLICANT'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FORM TO BE SUBMITTED TO
THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS, WHICH
DESIGNATES FINANCE DIRECTOR JARED ASKELSON, AS THE CITY'S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR APPLYING FOR CERTAIN PUBLIC
ASSISTANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER SAID APPLICATION ON BEHALF
OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR. (Jared Askelson, Finance Director)

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS

The following actions will take place for each public hearing item: 

A. Open the Public Hearing
B. Staff Presentation
C. Applicant Presentation (if applicable)
D. Receive Public Comment
E. Close the Public Hearing

 

11. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE REGULATIONS RELATED TO R1-A
(SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED)

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1607, AMENDING ARTICLE 2-2 (DEFINITIONS) TO

ADD THE DEFINITION OF “ALLEY-LOADED”; AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING
ORDINANCE ARTICLE 3-2 (RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS) BY REVISING TABLE
3-2-3-A (DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS – SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICTS) AND
FOOTNOTES TO ENABLE THE CREATION OF REDUCED R1-A DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS, MODIFYING 3-3-3-D (DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICTS (R1-6, R1-4, R1-A, R1-C)) AND MODIFYING TABLE 3-2-3-E (LOT SIZE
AND MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED DESIGN ELEMENTS FOR REDUCED
LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACK REDUCTION REQUESTS), CREATING
FOOTNOTES TO ENABLE THE CREATION OF REDUCED R1-A DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS AND CLARIFYING MINIMUM LOT AREA; AND AMENDING ARTICLE
6-2 (GENERAL PARKING REGULATIONS) BY CLARIFYING DRIVEWAY LENGTHS
WITHIN 6-2-2 (RESIDENTIAL VEHICULAR ACCESS); PROVIDING FOR
CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND DIRECTING
THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE. (Christian M.
Williams, AICP, Planning Manager)

 
12. USE PERMIT FOR A CONVENIENCE USE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF

MCDOWELL ROAD AND 150TH DRIVE, WITHIN GOODYEAR CIVIC SQUARE
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Approve the request for a Use Permit for a convenience use for a drive-through

restaurant on an approximately 1.46-acre identified in the Goodyear Civic Square at
Estrella Falls PAD and located at the northwest corner of McDowell Road and 150th
Drive, subject to stipulations. (Justin Gabrielson, Planner)

 



13. FY2024-2025 ACTION PLAN FOR HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM

 

  RECOMMENDATION
  Collect public comment on the draft FY2024-2025 Action Plan for the HUD CDBG

program. (Christina Panaitescu, Community Partnerships Program Manager) 
 
14. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE REGULATIONS RELATED TO GROUP

HOMES
 

  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1604, AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING ORDINANCE

ARTICLE 2 SECTION 2-2 (DEFINITIONS), AMENDING SECTIONS 3-2-2 (PERMITTED
USES) and 3-2-4 (SINGLE FAMILY – ADDITIONAL USE DEFINITIONS AND
REGULATIONS) OF ARTICLE 3, RELATED TO DEFINITIONS, MINIMUM SEPARATION OF
GROUP HOMES, AND ZONING CLEARANCE APPROVALS; PROVIDING FOR
CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND DIRECTING THE CITY
CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE. (David Williams, Contract Planner)
 

 

BUSINESS

 

15. AMEND ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS REGISTRATION PERMITS  
  RECOMMENDATION
  ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1608 AMENDING ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS

REGISTRATION PERMITS, PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Roric
Massey, City Attorney)

 

INFORMATION ITEMS
 

Comments, commendations, report on current events and presentations by Mayor,
Councilmembers, staff or members of the public. The Council may not propose, discuss,
deliberate or take any legal action on the information presented, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02.
 

Reports from the Mayor and City Council
This may include current events and activities as well as requests for information or
future agenda items.

Report from the City Manager
This may include updates from events, staff summary, update of legislative issues,
clarification on items being requested by City Council and Manager's update on
Council Related Matters.

 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:



Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:
 

May 6, 2024 Council Meeting 5:00 p.m.
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
A VOTE MAY BE HELD TO CALL AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING:

 

16. Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A) (3) (4): Discussion and consultation with the City
Attorney and City Manager for legal advice to consider its position and instruct its
attorneys regarding the City’s position regarding contracts that are the subject of
negotiations related to intergovernmental agreements for joint use projects.

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT

 

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE
TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. With 48-hour advance notice, special assistance can be
provided for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons at this meeting. Reasonable
accommodations will be made upon request for persons with disabilities or non-English
speaking residents. Please call the City Clerk (623) 882-7830 or Arizona Relay (TDD) 7-1-1 to
request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting.

For Non-English assistance please contact the City Clerk at (623) 882-7830.

Si necesita asistencia o traducción en español, favor de llamar al menos 48 horas antes de la
reunión al  (623) 882-7830.

POSTING VERIFICATION
This agenda was posted on 04/24/2024 at 4:00 p.m. by AG.



ITEM #: 1. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:2011

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

SUBJECT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the draft minutes from a Regular Meeting held on April 15, 2024. (Darcie McCracken,
City Clerk) 

Attachments
April 15, 2024 Draft Regular Meeting minutes 



City Council Regular Meeting
City Hall - Council Chambers
1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Monday, April 15, 2024  Meeting Minutes
Immediately following the Work Session that beings at 3:00 PM

               
CALL TO ORDER
 
  Mayor Pizzillo called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:22 p.m.
 
ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Joe Pizzillo; Vice Mayor Laura Kaino; Councilmember Sheri Lauritano; 

Councilmember Wally Campbell; Councilmember Bill Stipp; Councilmember 
Brannon Hampton; Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Staff
Present:

City Manager Wynette Reed; City Attorney Roric Massey; City Clerk Darcie
McCracken 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION BY MAYOR PIZZILLO
 
COMMUNICATIONS
 

1. Update regarding completion of Cotton Lane from Lilac to Pima Street Improvements.   
 
  Deputy Director of Engineering Chris Bridges gave an update on the completed

improvements to improve traffic flow and capacity on Cotton Lane. He showed a fly over
video that highlighted the addition of a southbound lane and right turning lane, along with
a new bike lane and a left turn lane at Cotton Lane and Pima Street.

Council expressed appreciation for the improvements to this road. Chris Bridges clarified
that Cotton Lane will eventually be the continuation of Loop 303 and the bike lanes will be
relocated to a bike trail off to the side as part of the freeway project. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS/APPEARANCES FROM THE FLOOR 
 
  There were no speakers. 
 

CONSENT

 
  MOTION BY Councilmember Bill Stipp, SECONDED BY Vice Mayor Laura Kaino to

APPROVE Consent Agenda Items 2 through 6. The motion carried as follows:

1 



  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember 
Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve the draft minutes from a Regular Meeting held on March 25, 2024. (Darcie
McCracken, City Clerk) 

  

 
3. ESTABLISH THE AD-HOC CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE AND APPOINT MEMBERS

 
RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2399, ESTABLISHING THE AD-HOC CHARTER REVIEW
COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR A TERMINATION OF THE COMMITTEE; ESTABLISHING
BY-LAWS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND/OR HER DESIGNEE TO TAKE ALL
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

  

 
4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH CITY OF GLENDALE FOR PUBLIC

SAFETY TRAINING
 
RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Glendale for Public Safety
Training. (Paul Luizzi, Fire Chief)

  

 
5. APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS & RELATED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY

 
RECOMMENDATION
Approve budget amendments and related expenditure authority. (Ryan Bittle, Finance
Manager) 

  

 
6. AMEND ARTICLE 9-8 DEVELOPMENT FEES OF CHAPTER 9 OF THE GOODYEAR

CITY CODE
 
RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1609 AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS IN ARTICLE 9-8
(DEVELOPMENT FEES) OF THE GOODYEAR CITY CODE; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY, CORRECTIONS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Jared Askelson, Finance
Director)

  

 

BUSINESS

 
7. FY2025 ANNUAL PUBLIC ART PLAN   
 
  Arts & Culture Coordinator Layne Ruiz, with support from Lisa Paulos, Chairman Arts &

Culture Commission and Jennifer Barnes, Chairman Public Art Subcommittee provided
highlights from the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Public Art Plan, the positive impact public art
has on the community, the goals for public art and key elements of the recommended
projects and programs included in the FY2025 Public Art Plan.  

2 



Ms. Ruiz presented the FY2025 Annual Public Art Plan and discussed five recommended
projects. The projects were artwork at Fire Station 184, continued Pop Ups in the Park,
addition of Public Art Tours, embellish 12 addiitonal traffic cabinets, and partner with west
valley cities to create a West Valley Temporary Art Program. 

Council expressed support and appreciation to city staff and the committee for their
innovation and enhancement of arts and culture in the community. 

 

  MOTION BY Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, SECONDED BY Councilmember Bill 
Stipp to APPROVE the FY2025 Annual Public Art Plan as recommended by the Arts
& Culture Commission. The motion carried as follows:

  AYE: Mayor Joe Pizzillo, Vice Mayor Laura Kaino, Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, 
Councilmember Wally Campbell, Councilmember Bill Stipp, Councilmember 
Brannon Hampton, Councilmember Vicki Gillis

Passed - Unanimously 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS

 
City Manager Wynette Reed highlighted the Lakeside Music Festival that took place on April 13,
2024, and attracted approximately 15,000 visitors. 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings are tentatively scheduled as follows:

 
April 29, 2024 Council Meeting 5:00 p.m.

 

ADJOURNMENT

 
There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Pizzillo adjourned the Regular Meeting at 6:01 p.m.

  
__________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

__________________________
Joe Pizzillo, Mayor

Date:___________________
 

   
CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the CITY
COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, held on April 15, 2024.  I further certify
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

Dated this ____ day of ______________, 2024.                            SEAL:

_____________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

3 



ITEM #: 2. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:2007

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE AD-HOC CHARTER REVIEW

COMMITTEE
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

SUMMARY
Appoint the members of the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

RECOMMENDATION
Appoint members to the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee.  (Darcie McCracken, City Clerk)

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact associated with these appointments.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
On April 15, 2024, City Council created the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee.  This
additional action will appoint the members to the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee.  The
members will be sworn in at the first meeting of the Committee.

Members to be appointed for the duration of the Committee are as follows:
John Cox - Chair
Fran Fee
David Halm
Jason Kish
Robert Paine
Rodie Purcell
Susan Schmelzer - Vice-Chair



ITEM #: 3. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1987

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE

FOR POPO'S FIESTA DEL SOL
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Theresa June Morse, Agent

SUMMARY
The applicant is requesting a recommendation of approval for a New Series 12 (Restaurant)
liquor license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

   

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of Application No. 287965 to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses
and Control (DLLC). Agent Theresa June Morse has submitted this application for a New
Series 12 liquor license for Popo's Fiesta Del Sol located at 15375 West McDowell Road,
Goodyear, Arizona 85395. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of the City)

FISCAL IMPACT
The applicant paid the $635 application fee for the liquor license per the Goodyear
Municipal User Fee Schedule. The business will also contribute to the tax base of the
community.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A new Series 12 liquor license application was submitted by Ms. Morse on behalf of Popo's
Fiesta Del Sol. The establishment is scheduled to open in April 2024 under an interim permit
that was issued by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). A license
applicant is granted an interim permit, which is a provisional authorization issued pursuant to
A.R.S §4-203.01. This authorization permits the sale of spirituous liquor to continue while the
application is pending. Existing licenses must be of the same series and location as the
pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify.



pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify.

The City Clerk's office received the application from the DLLC on March 27, 2024, and the
Public Hearing notice was posted on April 3rd, 2024 to comply with Arizona Revised Statutes
§4-201(b). No petitions or protests from qualified persons were received during the comment
period. The application was routed to the Police Department and the Development Services
Department (Code Compliance and Planning & Zoning), and the departments had no
comments.

STAFF ANALYSIS
A Series 12 liquor license is for a restaurant and is non-transferrable. This on-sale
retail privileges liquor license allows the holder to sell all types of spirituous liquor solely
for consumption on the premises of an establishment that derives at least forty percent (40%)
of its gross revenue from the sale of food.

DLLC requires liquor license owners, agents, and managers actively involved in
the day-to-day operations of the business to complete a state-approved management
training course prior to the issuance of a liquor license. The two owners and managers have
taken the Title 4 Basic & Management training.  Managers and staff will require a valid ID to
purchase alcohol if the guest appears to be under the legal drinking age and watch to make
sure of age customers do not provide to underage. 

There are no licensed childcare facilities or K-12 schools within 300 feet of the location to
comply with Arizona Revised Statutes §4-207. City Council's recommendation of "Approval",
"Disapproval" or "No Recommendation" will be forwarded to the DLLC for consideration during
their licensing review process.

Attachments
DLLC Local Governing Body Report 
One Mile Report and Evaluation Map 

























































































 
 

Liquor Licenses within One Mile – Popo’s Fiesta Del Sol 

 

Applicant Address: 15375 W. McDowell Rd. Goodyear, AZ  85395 

 

Business Name Address Distance from 
Applicant 
Address 

License 
Series 

Liquor Establishments 
OLIVE GARDEN ITALIAN RESTAURANT #1773 15411 W MCDOWELL RD 214.23 ft 12 

ARRIBA MEXICAN GRILL 15370 W MCDOWELL RD 394.14 ft 12 
RED LOBSTER #6342 15311 W MCDOWELL RD 563.72 ft 12 

BEVMO 15405 W MCDOWELL RD 651.27 ft 9 
BEVMO 15405 W MCDOWELL RD 651.27 ft 9S 

RUBIOS FRESH MEXICAN GRILL #225 15479 W MCDOWELL RD 765.01 ft 12 
OREGANO'S PIZZA BISTRO 15280 W MCDOWELL RD 826.66 ft 12 

CIRCLE K STORE #9528 1550 N PEBBLE CREEK 
PKWY 

942.73 ft 9 

AH-SO SUSHI & STEAK 15475 W MCDOWELL RD 952.5 ft 12 
BARRO'S PIZZA 15475 W MCDOWELL RD 952.5 ft 12 

TEXAS RDHOUSE 15255 W MCDOWELL RD 1,017.51 ft 12 
WALGREENS #12334 1654 N PEBBLE CREEK 

PKWY 
1,354.7 ft 10 

BABBO ITALIAN EATERY 15705 W MCDOWELL RD 2,434.56 ft 12 
WAL MART SUPERCENTER #5369 1100 N ESTRELLA PKWY 2,760.76 ft 9 
WAL MART SUPERCENTER #5369 1100 N ESTRELLA PKWY 2,760.76 ft 9S 
CHEDDARS SCRATCH KITCHEN 15030 W MCDOWELL RD 2,848.72 ft 12 

WOK WEI ASIAN CUISINE 15560 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,057.75 ft 12 
ARIZONA PIZZA COMPANY 15530 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,087.63 ft 12 

PIZZA HUT #27007 15557 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,392.2 ft 10 
HARKINS THEATRES AT ESTRELLA FALLS 15010 W MCDOWELL RD 3,425.58 ft 6 

BJ'S RESTAURANT & BREWHOUSE 14950 W MCDOWELL RD 3,467.98 ft 12 
BJ'S RESTAURANT & BREWHOUSE 14950 W MCDOWELL RD 3,467.98 ft 12G 

ALDI #161 845 N ESTRELLA PKWY 3,559.2 ft 10 
ALDI #161 845 N ESTRELLA PKWY 3,559.2 ft 10S 

AKAIHANA SUSHI & GRILL 2293 N PEBBLE CREEK 
PKWY 

3,641.74 ft 12 

AUGIE'S SPORTS GRILL 15605 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,723.64 ft 12 
SADDLE MOUNTAIN BREWING COMPANY 15651 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,930.6 ft 3 
SADDLE MOUNTAIN BREWING COMPANY 15651 W ROOSEVELT ST 3,930.6 ft 12 

EL TATAKI SUSHI FUSION EXPRESS 790 N ESTRELLA PKWY 3,945.87 ft 12 
TRU BY HILTON GOODYEAR 1430 N BULLARD AVE 4,701.93 ft 10 

QUIKTRIP #1401 575 N ESTRELLA PKWY 4,829.43 ft 10 
SPRINGHILL SUITES BY MARRIOT GOODYEAR 1370 N BULLARD AVE 4,849.97 ft 11 

TACO REDEMPCION 560 N ESTRELLA PKWY 5,086.1 ft 12 
SENOR TACO 525 N ESTRELLA PKWY 5,199.24 ft 12 

TAILGATERS SPORTS GRILL & IL PRIMO PIZZA & 
WINGS 

530 N ESTRELLA PKWY 5,228.47 ft 12 

 
 



 
 

Schools 
n/a    

 

Series Legend:  

  

 



5,280 F

Liquor License Evaluation - 15375 W. McDowell Rd. Goodyear, AZ  85395

PHX GIS, City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE,
Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA, USGS, City of Goodyear

October 2022 Liquor Licenses

Bar

Beer and Wine Store

Hotel / Motel

Liquor Store

Liquor Store Sampling Beer and Wine Store

Microbrewery

Restaurant

Restaurant Growler

Sampling

4/4/2024, 11:33:03 AM
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056

Clerk and Recorder
City of Goodyear

15375 W. McDowell Rd. Goodyear, AZ  85395



ITEM #: 4. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1989

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 12 (RESTAURANT) LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

MACAYO'S MEXICAN FOOD
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Agent

SUMMARY
The applicant is requesting a recommendation of approval for a New Series 12 (Restaurant)
liquor license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

   

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of Application No. 286706 to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses
and Control (DLLC). Agent Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz has submitted this application for a
New Series 12 liquor license for Macayo's Mexican Food located at 1474 N Litchfield Road,
Goodyear, Arizona 85338. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of the City)

FISCAL IMPACT
The applicant paid the $635 application fee for the liquor license per the Goodyear
Municipal User Fee Schedule. The business will also contribute to the tax base of the
community.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A new Series 12 liquor license application was submitted by Ms. Lewkowitz on behalf of
Macayo's Mexican Food. The establishment is presently operating under an interim permit that
was issued by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). A license
applicant is granted an interim permit, which is a provisional authorization issued pursuant to
A.R.S §4-203.01. This authorization permits the sale of spirituous liquor to continue while the
application is pending. Existing licenses must be of the same series and location as the
pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify.



pending application, with a maximum validity period of 105 days, to qualify.

The City Clerk's office received the application from the DLLC on March 29th, 2024, and the
Public Hearing notice was posted April 3rd, 2024 to comply with Arizona Revised Statutes
§4-201(b). No petitions or protests from qualified persons were received during the comment
period.

The application was routed for approval to the Police Department and the Development
Services Department (Code Compliance and Planning & Zoning).

STAFF ANALYSIS
A Series 12 license is for a restaurant and is non-transferrable. This on-sale retail
privileges liquor license allows the holder to sell and serve all types of spirituous liquor solely
for consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent
(40%) of its gross revenue from the sale of food.

DLLC requires license owners, agents, and managers actively involved in the
day-to-day operations of the business to complete a state-approved management training
course prior to the issuance of a liquor license. The registered premises manager has taken
the Title 4 Basic & Management training.  In addition to completing the required training, the
manager will be on site during all business hours. Employees will either complete the Title 4
liquor training or attend in-house liquor training by a manager who has completed Title 4
Basic and Management training.

The restaurant's training procedures and company policy call for monitoring guest alcohol
consumption throughout the premises and requiring a valid ID for anyone who appears to be
under the legal drinking age.

There are no licensed childcare facilities or K-12 schools within 300 feet of the location to
comply with Arizona Revised Statutes §4-207. City Council's recommendation of "Approval",
"Disapproval" or "No Recommendation" will be forwarded to the DLLC for consideration during
their licensing review process.

Attachments
DLLC Local Governing Body Report 
One Mile Report and Evaluation Map 























































































Liquor Licenses within One Mile – Macayo’s Mexican Food 

Applicant Address: 1474 N Litchfield Rd, Goodyear, AZ, 85395 

Business Name Address Distance from 
Applicant 
Address 

License 
Series 

Liquor Establishments 
MOD PIZZA 1380 N LITCHFIELD RD 183.64 ft 12 

HAYASHI HIBACHI 1480 N LITCHFIELD RD 435.51 ft 12 
CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL #542 1560 N LITCHFIELD RD 592.33 ft 12 

TOTAL WINE & MORE #1008 1416 N LITCHFIELD RD 739.25 ft 9 
TOTAL WINE & MORE #1008 1416 N LITCHFIELD RD 739.25 ft 09S 
CHILI'S GRILL & BAR #608 1371 N LITCHFIELD RD 784.27 ft 12 

RAUL & THERESA'S 1363 N LITCHFIELD RD 912.5 ft 12 
CIRCLE K STORE #9177 1264 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,041.4 ft 10 

APPLEBEE'S NEIGHBORHOOD GRILL & BAR 13832 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

1,450.02 ft 12 

CRACKER BARREL #277 1209 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,508.98 ft 12 
TARGET #1242 1515 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,555.84 ft 10 

CHEF BEN SUSHI & ASIAN EXPRESS 13824 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

1,644.29 ft 12 

GUS'S NEW YORK PIZZA & BAR 13824 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

1,644.29 ft 12 

HAYMAKER GOODYEAR 1800 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,695.34 ft 12 
BLACK ANGUS STEAKHOUSE 13766 W MCDOWELL 

RD 
1,847.18 ft 12 

OLD CHICAGO PIZZA AND TAPROOM 1828 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,906.96 ft 12 
RUDY'S COUNTRY STORE & BAR B QUE 845 N LITCHFIELD RD 3,154.55 ft 7 

PALM VALLEY GOLF CLUB 2211 N LITCHFIELD RD 3,772.28 ft 6 
BOOTY'S WINGS BURGERS & BEER 13375 W MCDOWELL 

RD 
4,561.47 ft 12 

CHUCK E CHEESE #202 13371 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

4,669.73 ft 12 

RED ROBIN AMERICA'S GOURMET BURGERS 
& SPIRITS 

14551 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

4,897.55 ft 12 

MANUELS MEXICAN FOOD RESTAURANT 13319 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

5,020.13 ft 12 

BUFFALO WILD WINGS 13311 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

5,072.71 ft 12 

OCHO RIOS JERK SPOT 13291 W MCDOWELL 
RD 

5,265.29 ft 12 

12 

Schools 
ARCHWAY TRIVIUM WEST 214130 W MCDOWELL RD 1,720.4 ft 

MONTESSORI IN THE PARK 1832 N LITCHFIELD RD 1,945.57 ft 



 
 

Series Legend:  



	1474	N	LITCHFIELD	ROAD,	GOODYEAR,	AZ	85338

5,280	FT

Liquor	License	Evaluation	-	Macayo's	Mexican	Food

PHX	 GIS,	 City	 of	 Goodyear,	 Bureau	 of	 Land	 Management,	 Esri,	 HERE,
Garmin,	INCREMENT	P,	NGA,	USGS,	City	of	Goodyear

October	2022	Liquor	Licenses

Bar

Beer	and	Wine	Bar

Beer	and	Wine	Store

Liquor	Store

Liquor	Store	Sampling	Beer	and	Wine	Store

Restaurant

Unlicensed

11/30/2023,	10:38:34	AM
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056

Clerk	and	Recorder
City	of	Goodyear



ITEM #: 5. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1971

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF NEW SERIES 7 (BEER AND WINE BAR)

LIQUOR LICENSE FOR BACCHUS WINE BAR
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Darcie McCracken, City Clerk

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Anthony John Vozar, Agent

SUMMARY
The applicant is requesting a recommendation of approval for a New Series 7 (Beer and Wine
Bar) liquor license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

   

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of Application No. 283070 to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses
and Control (DLLC). Agent Anthony John Vozar has submitted this application for a
New Series 7 liquor license for Bacchus Wine Bar, which will be located at 1971 N. Globe Dr,
Goodyear, Arizona 85395. (Darcie McCracken, Clerk of the City)

FISCAL IMPACT
The applicant paid the $635 application fee for the liquor license per the Goodyear Municipal
User Fee Schedule. The business will also contribute to the tax base of the community.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
A new Series 7 liquor license application was submitted by Mr. Vozar on behalf of Bacchus
Wine Bar which is set to open late June / early July 2024.

The City Clerk's office received the application from the DLLC on March 13, 2024, and the
Public Hearing notice was posted on April 1st, 2024 to comply with Arizona Revised
Statutes §4-201(b). No petitions or protests from qualified persons were received during the
comment period.



The application was routed to the Police Department and the Development Services
Department (Code Compliance and Planning & Zoning), and the departments had no
comments.

STAFF ANALYSIS
A Series 7 is a "quota" license available only through the Liquor License Lottery or for
purchase on the open market. Once issued, this liquor license is transferable from person to
person and/or location to location within the same county and allows the holder both on- &
off-sale retail privileges. This license allows a beer and wine bar retailer to sell and serve beer
and wine (no other spirituous liquors), primarily by individual portions, to be consumed on the
premises and in the original container for consumption on or off the premises. A retailer with
off-sale ("To Go") privileges may deliver spirituous liquor off of the licensed premises in
connection with a retail sale. A.R.S. 4-206.01.F. The off-sale privileges associated with a bar
license shall be limited to no more than 30% of the total annual sales receipts of liquor by the
licensee at that location. Off-sale ("To Go") package sales can be made on the bar premises
as long as the area of off-sale operation does not utilize a separate entrance and exit from the
one provided for the bar. Payment must be made no later than the time of delivery.

DLLC requires license owners, agents, and managers actively involved in the day-to-day
operations of the business complete a state-approved management training course prior to
the issuance of a liquor license. The owners have taken the Title 4 Basic & Management
training. In addition to completing the required training, a manager will be on site during all
business hours. The bar's training procedures require a valid ID for anyone who appears to
be under age 35.

There are no licensed childcare facilities or K-12 schools within 300 feet of the location to
comply with Arizona Revised Statutes §4-207. City Council's recommendation of "Approval",
"Disapproval" or "No Recommendation" will be forwarded to the DLLC for consideration during
their licensing review process.

Attachments
DLLC Local Governing Body Report 
One Mile Report and Evaluation Map 

























717281

John Anthony Vozar

04-18-2024 04-17-2027

Robert Graham

18 04 2024



717281

John Anthony Vozar

04-18-2024 04-17-2027

Robert Graham

18 04 2024

X

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org






















 
 

Liquor Licenses within One Mile – Bacchus Wine Bar 

 

Applicant Address: 1971 N. Globe Dr. Goodyear, AZ  85395 

 

Business Name Address Distance from 
Applicant 
Address 

License 
Series 

Liquor Establishments 
HARKINS THEATRES AT ESTRELLA FALLS 15010 W MCDOWELL RD 816.82 ft 6 

CHEDDARS SCRATCH KITCHEN 15030 W MCDOWELL RD 1,522.59 ft 12 
BJ'S RESTAURANT & BREWHOUSE 14950 W MCDOWELL RD 1,820.73 ft 12 
BJ'S RESTAURANT & BREWHOUSE 14950 W MCDOWELL RD 1,820.73 ft 12G 

OREGANO'S PIZZA BISTRO 15280 W MCDOWELL RD 2,171.04 ft 12 
TEXAS RDHOUSE 15255 W MCDOWELL RD 2,250.1 ft 12 

RED LOBSTER #6342 15311 W MCDOWELL RD 2,558.39 ft 12 
ARRIBA MEXICAN GRILL 15370 W MCDOWELL RD 2,744.79 ft 12 

CANTINA GUEROS GOODYEAR 15375 W MCDOWELL RD 2,978.55 ft 12 
OLIVE GARDEN ITALIAN RESTAURANT #1773 15411 W MCDOWELL RD 3,140.37 ft 12 

TRU BY HILTON GOODYEAR 1430 N BULLARD AVE 3,419.92 ft 10 
BEVMO 15405 W MCDOWELL RD 3,544.43 ft 9 
BEVMO 15405 W MCDOWELL RD 3,544.43 ft 9S 

AKAIHANA SUSHI & GRILL 2293 N PEBBLE CREEK 
PKWY 

3,550.62 ft 12 

RUBIOS FRESH MEXICAN GRILL #225 15479 W MCDOWELL RD 3,649.05 ft 12 
SPRINGHILL SUITES BY MARRIOT GOODYEAR 1370 N BULLARD AVE 3,703.8 ft 11 

PF CHANG'S CHINA BISTRO 14681 W MCDOWELL RD 3,732.39 ft 12 
CIRCLE K STORE #9528 1550 N PEBBLE CREEK 

PKWY 
3,7652.21 ft 9 

WALGREENS #12334 1654 N PEBBLE CREEK 
PKWY 

3,781.65 ft 10 

AH-SO SUSHI & STEAK 15475 W MCDOWELL RD 3,928.98 ft 12 
RED ROBIN AMERICA'S GOURMET BURGERS & 

SPIRITS 
14551 W MCDOWELL RD 4,344.12 ft 12 

BABBO ITALIAN EATERY 15705 W MCDOWELL RD 5101.72 12 

 
 

Schools 
ARCHWAY TRIVIUM WEST 2001 N BULLARD AVE 3,347.99 ft  

 

Series Legend:  

  

 



5,280 ft

Liquor License Evaluation - Bacchus Wine Bar

PHX GIS, City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE,
Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA, USGS, City of Goodyear

October 2022 Liquor Licenses

Bar

Beer and Wine Store

Hotel / Motel

Liquor Store

Liquor Store Sampling Beer and Wine Store

Microbrewery

Restaurant

Restaurant Growler

Sampling

3/15/2024, 12:28:39 PM
0 0.25 0.50.13 mi

0 0.4 0.80.2 km

1:18,056

Clerk and Recorder
City of Goodyear

1951 N Globe Dr. Goodyear AZ 85395



ITEM #: 6. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1985

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE EXPENDITURE UP TO $2,400,000 FOR THE REPLACEMENT

OF SEWER LINES LOCATED WITHIN THE CORGETT WASH
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Barbara Chappell, Water Services Director

SUMMARY
Request Council approval of the expenditure of FY2024 funds for the replacement of sewer
lines located in the Corgett Wash (Project 61002).

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve expenditure of funds up to $2,400,000 for the replacement of sewer lines located in
the Corgett Wash (Project 61002). (Barbara Chappell, Water Services Director)

FISCAL IMPACT
The Corgett Wash Sewer Line Replacement (Project 61002) has an approved project budget
of $2,455,000 in the FY2024 Capital Improvement Program funded through wastewater
operating funds; $55,000 of the funds have been set aside for preconstruction services
performed by our contractor.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Per City of Goodyear Resolution 08-1255, all expenditures of budgeted funds in excess of
$500,000 must obtain Council approval.  The city has developed and approved a Capital
Improvement Program for FY2024 through FY2028.  The subject sewer lines are planned to
be replaced in FY2024 per this plan.  Due to the complexity of the replacement of sewer lines
in the Corgett Wash, a JOC has been selected and provided a scope of work and project
costs.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The purpose of this project is to improve sections of ductile iron pipe (DIP) in the Corgett Wash



The purpose of this project is to improve sections of ductile iron pipe (DIP) in the Corgett Wash
at seven locations. The existing pipe is severely corroded to the point where it needs to be
improved. The scope includes an analysis of CIPP (Cured In Place Pipe) liners at each
location. If CIPP is feasible, it will be utilized; if not, the pipe will be removed and replaced.

The sewer lines were installed in 1986, and it is the main trunk line that transfers wastewater to
the Corgett WRF. This replacement project will increase the reliability of wastewater service
for the residents in the area. If not addressed, the pipe will eventually fail and cause a major
sewer overflow in the Corgett Wash. This will result in an emergency repair, a possible service
disruption to residents and businesses, additional regulatory oversight, and increased costs in
the replacement of these sewer line segments.

There are seven total crossings that are planned for improvement. The total project funding is
split over two fiscal years, FY24 and FY25 ($2,455,000 in each year).  This expenditure
request is for the first fiscal year. 
 

Attachments
Exhibit: Area of Corgett Wash 



 

JMurillo
Text Box
A

JMurillo
Text Box
B

JMurillo
Text Box
C

JMurillo
Text Box
D

JMurillo
Text Box
E

JMurillo
Text Box
F

JMurillo
Text Box
G



 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



18” 263’ 124D 104 – 124D 201 (under bridge) 

16” 369’ 124D 407 – 124D 404  

12” 404’ 135C 209 – 135C 208  

12” 155’ 124A 305 – 124A 304 (under bridge) 

8” 297’ 135C 101 - 135C 225 (under bridge) 

8” 239’ 135A 126 – 135A 105  

8” 325’ 145B 106 – 135D 304 (under bridge) 

JMurillo
Text Box
A

JMurillo
Text Box
Priority

JMurillo
Text Box
B

JMurillo
Text Box
C

JMurillo
Text Box
D

JMurillo
Text Box
E

JMurillo
Text Box
F

JMurillo
Text Box
G



ITEM #: 7. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1998

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH CITY OF

GLENDALE FOR FIRE AND MEDICAL SERVICE STAFFING FOR
SPECIAL EVENTS
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Paul Luizzi, Fire Chief

SUMMARY
The purpose of this agreement is to provide the means through which the Goodyear Fire
Department intends to provide fire and medical services to the city of Glendale for special
events by maximizing cooperation, by integrating our assets, and by addressing issues
including, command, control, personnel, planning, and training.  The following agencies will be
participating in this intergovernmental agreement: city of Avondale, city of Goodyear, city of
Peoria, and city of Surprise.  

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with city of Glendale for fire and medical
service staffing for special events. (Paul Luizzi, Fire Chief)

FISCAL IMPACT
The Goodyear Fire Department will provide the fire personnel with the uniforms and
equipment necessary to work on special events.  Each assigned fire personnel who works an
event will be paid their regular or overtime rates directly by the city of Goodyear and apply to
the costs of providing worker's compensation insurance.  The city of Glendale will provide
information about the hours worked by the assigned fire personnel no later than seven days
following each event to enable the Goodyear Fire Department to monitor and regulate the
hours worked by all of their assigned fire personnel.  The Goodyear Fire Department will
provide the city of Glendale with an actual cost detail every two weeks of hours and expenses
paid to the assigned fire personnel.  The city of Glendale will reimburse the city of Goodyear
for actual costs incurred.  No adjustments to the budget are necessary at this time.



BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
This will be the first intergovernmental agreement with the city of Glendale for special events.  

Attachments
Glendale_IGA_Special_Events 



Page 1 of 11 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GLENDALE FOR FIRE AND MEDICAL SERVICE STAFFING  
 

This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of _____________, 
2024, by and between the City of Glendale, for and on behalf of the Glendale Fire Department (GFD). 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the 
Cities, Towns, Fire Districts, and governmental jurisdictions (hereinafter collectively referred to either 
as “Participants,” or “Agencies,” and sometimes referred to individually as “Participant” or “Agency”), 
The initial Agencies are listed in Exhibit A of this Agreement, which shall be amended upon the 
addition of new members as set forth herein. 

RECITALS 

A. Glendale has jurisdictional authority over and public safety interests for fire and medical services 
staffing which may be requested for Special Events (i.e. Stadium, Arena, Westgate, VAI Resort) 
located within Glendale’s corporate limits; and  

B. These Special Events need qualified personnel to provide fire and medical services at their facilities; 
and 

C. The Agencies desire to participate in providing fire and medical services to these Special Events by 
making available listed Agencies’ members in accordance with the terms set forth herein. 

D. The Agencies desire to enter into this Agreement to cooperatively provide the necessary fire and 
medical services while acknowledging Glendale’s primary responsibility for fire and medical services 
for Special Events at facilities within the City of Glendale City Limits. 

AGREEMENT 

Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the covenants, promises, terms and conditions set forth 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Agencies hereby agree as follows:  

1. Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the means through which the 
Agencies intend to provide fire and medical services to the City of Glendale by maximizing 
cooperation, by integrating the Agencies’ assets, and by addressing issues including, command, 
control, personnel, planning, and training.  

2. Supervision and Staffing.   

2.1 The Agencies acknowledge that command and control for all events worked for City of 
Glendale pursuant to this Agreement (individually “Event” and collectively “Events”) shall 
be the duty and responsibility of GFD.   

2.2 In carrying out this responsibility, GFD will in good faith assign Fire personnel to work 
events in accordance with the procedures adopted in consultation with the Chiefs of Fire for 
all of the member agencies providing personnel to events.   

2.3 Agencies agree and understand that entities other than Glendale and the GFD have input 
into the decisions regarding whether, and to what extent, fire and medical will provide 
service for events; however, Glendale will provide information regarding staffing decisions 
to all Agencies as soon as it becomes available. 



Page 2 of 11 
 

3. Assigned Personnel 

3.1 Agencies shall have the discretion to determine which and how many of its personnel will 
be allowed to apply for assignments at events (hereinafter referred to as “Assigned 
Personnel”).   

3.2 While working an event, the Assigned Fire Personnel must wear uniforms approved by their 
Department, and the Assigned Fire Personnel may carry other equipment authorized by their 
Department. 

3.3 When working an event, GFD will make available to Assigned Fire Personnel forms and 
other supplies that are necessary to work the event. 

3.4 Upon termination of this Agreement and conclusion of any assignments, all personal 
property, assets, equipment, and supplies used by the Agencies and Assigned Fire Personnel 
in performance of their responsibilities shall remain with or be returned to the owner of 
such property. 

4. Compensation, Insurance and Reporting 

4.1 The Agencies agree that during events the Assigned Fire Personnel shall remain an employee 
of their own “Agency” at all times and nothing in this Agreement is intended to contradict 
or otherwise modify the provisions of A.R.S. § 23-1022 (D).   

4.2 Each Assigned Fire Personnel who works an event will be paid their regular or overtime 
rates directly by their own “Agency” and applied to the cost of providing worker’s 
compensation insurance as set forth below.   

a. Assigned Fire Personnel’ compensation shall be subject to all applicable federal and 
state taxes, which shall be deducted prior to payment, and which shall be evidenced 
by a W-2 statement issued by their own “Agency”. 

 b. Each “Agency” shall provide the workers’ compensation coverage and liability 
coverage in such amounts and under the same terms and conditions as other sworn, 
full-time employees of their own “Agency”.  

c. Assigned Fire Personnel are not entitled to any employee benefits or compensation 
from Glendale.   

4.3 Glendale shall make available to the “Agencies” information about the hours worked by 
Assigned Fire Personnel not later than seven days following each event to enable each 
“Agency” to properly monitor and regulate the hours worked by all of their Assigned Fire 
Personnel. 

4.4 “Agencies” will provide Glendale an actual cost detail every two weeks of any hours and 
expenses paid to Assigned Fire Personnel. Glendale will reimburse the “Agencies” for actual 
costs incurred.  

4.5 The Agencies affirms that it has complied with the provisions of A.R.S. § 23-1022 (E) with 
respect to activities addressed by the Agreement. 

5. Indemnification 



Page 3 of 11 
 

5.1 Glendale shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the Agencies, its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, Fire Personnel, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter 
referred to as “Indemnitee”) for, from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 
processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury 
or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property 
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent acts or willful 
misconduct of the Assigned Fire Personnel.   

5.2 Glendale’s indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the 
Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Indemnitee to conform to 
any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or court decree.   

5.3 It is agreed that Glendale will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense, and 
judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable and in consideration of the 
covenants and promises set forth in this Agreement, Glendale agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Agencies, its Fire Personnel, officials, agents, and employees for 
losses arising from the work performed by Agencies Assigned Fire Personnel under this 
Agreement. 

6. Media Releases and Relations 

6.1 Any release of information to the media, other than a public records release, regarding an 
event or any activities carried out under this agreement will be coordinated by Glendale in 
cooperation with Agencies but, except as provided below, no unilateral media releases will be 
distributed by Agencies without the prior approval of Glendale.   

6.2 A copy of all public record and media releases regarding an event or any activities carrying 
out this agreement shall be forwarded to Glendale prior to release; provided however, if an 
incident is primarily focused upon or concerned with the actions of Agency’s Assigned 
Officer, Agency will be responsible for the release of information to the media relative to the 
incident.  

6.3 The Agencies will not reveal any investigative information or operational procedures except 
as required by law.     

 

7. General Provisions 

7.1 Entire Agreement.   This Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the Agencies and 
supersedes any other agreement or understanding between the Agencies relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 

7.2 Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date referenced above and shall 
continue in force for five (5) years. 

7.3 Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable to the extent that any provision 
or application held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect any 
other provision or application of the Agreement which may remain in effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 



Page 4 of 11 
 

7.4 Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Arizona. 

7.5 Conflict of Interest.   This Agreement may be canceled by any of the Agencies pursuant to 
the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

7.6 Termination.   Agency may, at any time, terminate this Agreement by giving Glendale not 
less than sixty (60) days prior written notice.  Glendale may at any time terminate this 
Agreement by giving Agency not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice. 

7.7 Dispute Resolution.   In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising 
from or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the Agencies hereto shall use their 
best efforts to settle the dispute, claim, question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall 
consult and negotiate with each other in good faith and, recognizing their mutual interests, 
attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory to both Agencies.  In the event the 
Agencies cannot settle the dispute, the GFD Fire Chief shall have the final authority to 
decide the dispute, claim, question, or disagreement.   

7.8 Waiver.  The waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not be deemed to amend this 
Agreement and shall not constitute a waiver of any other subsequent breach. 

7.9 Headings.  Headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not affect the 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

7.10 Further Acts.  Each Agency shall execute and deliver all such documents and perform all 
such acts as reasonably necessary, from time to time, to carry out the matters contemplated 
by this Agreement. 

7.11 Nondiscrimination.  No Agency shall illegally discriminate in either the provision of services, 
or in employment, against any person because of sex, race, disability, national origin, 
veteran’s status, sexual preference, or religion.  Each agency agrees to comply with all 
applicable federal and state laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders relating to non-
discrimination, affirmative action, and equal employment opportunity. 

8.  E-Verify 

8.1 The Agencies acknowledge that immigration laws require them to register and participate 
with the E-Verify program (employment verification program administered by the United 
States Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any 
successor program) as they both employ one or more employees in this state.   

8.2 The Agencies warrant that they have registered with and participate with E-Verify.   

8.3 If either agency later determines that the other non-compliant Agency has not complied with 
E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant Agency by certified mail of the determination and 
of the right to appeal the determination.   The Agencies retain the legal right to inspect the 
papers of any employee who works pursuant to this agreement or any related subcontract to 
ensure compliance with the warranty given above.  Any agency listed may conduct a random 
verification of the employment records of the other Agency to ensure compliance with this 
warranty.  



Page 5 of 11 
 

8.4  Failure to comply shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement that is subject to 
penalties up to and including termination of the Agreement. 

9.  Sudan and Iran 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §§35-391.06 and 35-393.06, the Agencies hereby warrant, and represent that they 
do not have, and their subcontractors do not have, and during the term hereof will not have a 
scrutinized business operation in either Sudan or Iran. 

 

[signatures appear on the following pages] 



Page 6 of 11 
 

CITY OF GLENDALE 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Kevin R. Phelps, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Julie K. Bower, City Clerk                 (SEAL) 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 
 
The foregoing Intergovernmental Agreement between City of Glendale and the listed Agencies 
is in proper form and is within the powers and authority of the City of Glendale granted under 
the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michael Bailey, City Attorney 

  



Page 7 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as provided below. Further, in 
signing this Agreement, the signatories below affirm and attest that they are authorized 
to execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective Agency.  
 
 
CITY OF AVONDALE, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Ron Corbin, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Nicholle Harris, City Attorney  
 
 
 
 
In accordance with A.R.S. §11-952 (D), this Agreement has been reviewed by each of 
the undersigned attorneys who have determined that, as to their respective clients only, 
it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona. 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
CITY OF AVONDALE 
 
 
By:         
 
 
_____________________ 
Nicholle Harris, City Attorney 
 
Date:       
 
 



Page 8 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as provided below. Further, in 
signing this Agreement, the signatories below affirm and attest that they are authorized 
to execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective Agency.  
 
 
CITY OF GOODYEAR, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Wynette Reed, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
In accordance with A.R.S. §11-952 (D), this Agreement has been reviewed by each of 
the undersigned attorneys who have determined that, as to their respective clients only, 
it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona. 
 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
CITY OF GOODYEAR 
 
By:         
 
 
 
_____________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Date:       
 
 



Page 9 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as provided below. Further, in 
signing this Agreement, the signatories below affirm and attest that they are authorized 
to execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective Agency.  
 
 
CITY OF PEORIA, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Jeff Tyne, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Agnes Goodwine, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Emily Jurmu, City Attorney 
 
 
In accordance with A.R.S. §11-952 (D), this Agreement has been reviewed by each of 
the undersigned attorneys who have determined that, as to their respective clients only, 
it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona. 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
CITY OF PEORIA 
 
By:         
 
 
 
_____________________ 
Emily Jurmu, City Attorney 
 
Date:       
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as provided below. Further, in 
signing this Agreement, the signatories below affirm and attest that they are authorized 
to execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective Agency.  



Page 10 of 11 
 

 
 
CITY OF SURPRISE, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Bob Wingenroth, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristi Passarelli, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert Wingo, City Attorney 
 
 
In accordance with A.R.S. §11-952 (D), this Agreement has been reviewed by each of 
the undersigned attorneys who have determined that, as to their respective clients only, 
it is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona. 
 
 
 
Date:       
 
 
CITY OF SURPRISE 
 
By:         
 
 
_____________________ 
Robert Wingo, City Attorney 
 
 
Date:       
 

 
 
 
 



Page 11 of 11 
 

EXHIBIT A 
AGENCIES 

 
 
 

The following agencies will be participating in this intergovernmental agreement: 
City of Avondale, City of Goodyear, City of Peoria, and City of Surprise 
 
 

AGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Avondale Fire and Medical 
125 S. Avondale Blvd. Suite 100 
Avondale, AZ   85323 

Attn:  Larry Rooney, Fire Chief 
Phone: 623.333.6101 
Fax: None 

Goodyear Fire Department 
14455 W Van Buren St. E-102 (P.O. Box 
5100) 
Goodyear, AZ  85338 

Attn: Paul Luizzi, Fire Chief 
Phone: 623.882.7109 
Fax: None 

Peoria Fire-Medical Department 
8401 West Monroe Street  
Peoria, AZ 85345 

Attn: Gary Bernard, Fire Chief 
Phone: 602.354.6420 
Fax: 602.773.7294 

Surprise Fire-Medical Department  
14250 W. Statler Plaza Ste. 101  
Surprise, AZ  85374 

Attn: Brenden Espie, Fire Chief 
Phone: 623.222.5027 
Fax: 623.222.5001 

. 



ITEM #: 8. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1968

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH STATE OF ARIZONA

THROUGH DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY TO PROVIDE INTEGRATED
SERVICES AT THE SOUTHWEST FAMILY ADVOCACY CENTER
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Art Miller

SUMMARY
Intergovernmental agreement with the State of Arizona through the Department of Child
Safety to provide services for children and families in partnership with the Southwest Family
Advocacy Center. 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

   

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with State of Arizona Department of Child
Safety (DCS) and City of Goodyear. (Art Miller, Interim Chief of Police)

FISCAL IMPACT
The costs associated with SWFAC are shared between the Partnering Agencies and the
Department of Child Safety.  The operational costs are included in the FY24 Police
Department General Fund budget in the amount of $377,300.  There is no additional impact to
the Police Department budget as a result of the IGA with DCS.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
On May 29, 2014, former Governor Jan Brewer signed into law a bill creating a new State
Agency to oversee child services, the Department of Child Safety (DCS).  This bill separated
the Division of Children, Youth and Families’ Child Protective Services unit from the
Department of Economic Security.

On July 13, 2015, Council approved the First Amendment to the Amended and Restated IGA
that allowed for law enforcement to continue providing services to victims of domestic violence,
child abuse, sexual assault, and elder abuse at the Southwest Family Advocacy Center
(SWFAC).  The IGA permitted costs to be shared among the cities of Avondale, Buckeye,



(SWFAC).  The IGA permitted costs to be shared among the cities of Avondale, Buckeye,
Goodyear, and MCSO (collectively, “Partnering Agencies”).  

The State of Arizona has requested an additional IGA documenting the responsibilities of each
agency and DCS.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The SWFAC is a multidisciplinary facility that opened in May 2008. SWFAC has provided the
community with a child and family focused, facility-based program in which representatives
from many disciplines, including law enforcement, child protection, prosecution, mental health,
and medical, work together to investigate, treat, manage, and prosecute child abuse cases,
sexual assault, domestic violence, and elder abuse.

The addition of the IGA with DCS results in no additional costs to the city and clarifies the
relationship between the city of Goodyear and DCS.  The IGA to provide these services is
beneficial to the city as resources might not be otherwise available.

Attachments
IGA between DCS and City of Goodyear 



 

Page 1 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF AVONDALE, THE CITY OF BUCKEYE, THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY TO PROVIDE 

INTEGRATED SERVICES TO CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into on the date 

of the last signature below, by and among the City of Avondale, an Arizona municipal corporation 

("Avondale"), the  City  of Buckeye, an  Arizona municipal corporation ("Buckeye"), the City of 

Goodyear, an Arizona municipal corporation ("Goodyear") and Maricopa County, Arizona, an 

Arizona municipal corporation, acting by and through the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office 

(“Maricopa”) (collectively identified as the "Partnering Agencies") and the State of Arizona acting 

by and through the Department of Child Safety, ("DCS") to provide integrated services to children 

and families.   

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, DCS is duly authorized to execute and administer the Agreement under ARIZ. REV. 

STAT.§ 8-453. 

 

WHEREAS, DCS, Avondale, Buckeye, Goodyear and Maricopa have authority to enter into the 

Agreement pursuant to ARIZ. REV. STAT.§ 11-952. 

 

WHEREAS, the Partnering Agencies have entered into prior Intergovernmental Agreements with 

respect to the operation of a domestic violence victim advocacy center located at 2333 N. Pebble 

Creek Parkway, Suite A-200 (the "Center") for the provision of services to and for child and adult 

victims of physical abuse, sexual abuse and domestic violence.  ("Center IGA"). 

 

WHEREAS, in the Center IGA, the Partnering Agencies have agreed with respect to the operation 

of Center that Avondale shall be the day-to-day manager of the Center.  As the day-to-day 

manager, Avondale shall be responsible for office and facility related concerns. 

 

WHEREAS, the Partnering Agencies desire to participate in the shared use of the Center with 

DCS to provide on-site agency collaboration through the use of multi-disciplinary team approach 

for the prevention, investigation, assessment, protection, treatment and referral for prosecution of 

matters related to the sexual and physical abuse of children and adults including domestic violence 

matters (the “Services). 

WHEREAS, DCS desires to participate in the shared use of the Center to promote the safety, well-

being and self-sufficiency of children, adults and families to further its vision that every child, 

adult and family in the State of Arizona will be safe and economically secure. 



 

Page 2 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated herein 

by reference, the following mutual covenants and conditions, and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Partnering 

Agencies and DCS agree as follows: 

 

1. Term.  

1.1. The initial term of the Agreement shall begin on January 1, 2024 and shall be for a 

period of three years, unless terminated by DCS or one of the Partnering Agencies 

pursuant to the termination provisions herein.   

 

 

2. Applicable Law; Venue.  

2.1. In the performance of the Agreement, all parties to the Agreement shall abide by and 

conform to any and all laws of the United States and State of Arizona including, but 

not limited to, federal and state executive orders providing for equal employment and 

procurement opportunities, the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and any 

other federal or state laws applicable to this Agreement.   

2.2. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona and lawsuit 

pertaining to the Agreement may be brought only in courts in the State of Arizona. 

 

3. Location of Center. The Partnering Agencies intend to operate the Center in a leased building 

located at 2333 N. Pebble Creek Parkway, Suite A-200 Goodyear, Arizona, or any other facility 

mutually agreed upon by the Partnering Agencies (the " Center"). 

 

4. Joint Use of Center. 

4.1. The Partnering Agencies agree to provide space at the Center to DCS in exchange for 

the delivery of expedited multi-level service in order to facilitate and assist DCS in the 

mission of promoting the safety, well-being and self-sufficiency of children, adults and 

families. 

4.2. The space to be provided will be a quality standard working environment which will 

provide protection of the general health and welfare of DCS employees and will comply 

with the Uniform Building Code, American's with Disability Act, National  Fire 

Protection Agency (NFPA) Code and any other codes or ordinances enforced by the 

local jurisdiction. 



 

Page 3 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

4.3. DCS shall be provided six (6) dedicated workstations and a manager’s office space 

within the Center (“Designated Space”).  

4.4. The Partnering Agencies shall provide use of the Designated Space to DCS free of 

charge.  

4.5. The Partnering Agencies have developed and approved the Center Operations Manual 

which sets forth the multidisciplinary team concept adopted and required by the 

Maricopa County Attorney's Office for Advocacy Centers. All DCS employees 

assigned to the Center shall comply with the Center Operations Manual. 

 

5. Furnishings/Equipment. 

5.1. DCS agrees to use its own furnishings, equipment and computer systems. At the 

termination of this agreement, DCS agrees to remove their furnishings, equipment and 

computer systems. 

5.2. DCS shall be responsible for maintaining its own furnishings, equipment and computer 

systems and shall reasonably clean, maintain and repair the Designated Space at its 

own expense during the term of the Agreement. 

 

6. Background Check of Onsite Center DCS Employees  

6.1. DCS shall submit written certification that an on-site employee has completed and 

passed a background check.  This certification shall be provided to the Avondale Police 

Chief/Center Director prior to the on-site employee beginning his or her assignment at 

the Center.  This written certification shall be provided at least 30 days prior to the on-

site assignment.  

 

7. Indemnification.  

7.1. To the extent permitted by law, each Party (as "Indemnitor") agrees to defend, 

indemnify, and hold harmless the other Party and its officials, officers, employees, 

volunteers and agents (collectively, "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims, 

losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter 

collectively referred to as "Claims") arising out of bodily injury of any person 

(including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such Claims are caused 

by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its 

officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.  If a Claim or Claims by third 

parties become subject to this indemnity provision, the Parties to this Agreement that 

are the subject of such Claim or Claims shall expeditiously meet to discuss a common 

and mutual defense, including possible proportionate liability and payment of possible 

litigation expenses and damages.  

7.2. These obligations shall survive termination of this Agreement. 



 

Page 4 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

7.3. In the event of any lawsuit that names the Center, DCS or more than one Partnering 

Agency as a defendant ("Defendant Party" or "Defendant Parties"), the Defendant 

Parties shall seek to secure an allocation of comparative negligence among themselves 

where appropriate and each Defendant Party shall provide contribution to each other 

Defendant Party to the extent of the comparative allocation. 

 

8. Insurance. 

8.1. Maricopa County is self-insured and can provide a letter of self-insurance for the 

following upon request.    

8.2. Each Party agrees to procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 

against claims for injury to persons or damage to property that may arise from or in 

connection with this Agreement. 

8.3. The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement are minimum requirements 

and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. The 

Agencies in no way warrant that the minimum limits are sufficient to protect the Parties 

from liabilities that might arise out of this Agreement. The Parties are free to purchase 

additional insurance as they deem necessary. 

8.4. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Each Party shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below: 

 

Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form. Policy shall include bodily 

injury, property damage, personal injury, and broad form contractual liability 

coverage. 

General Aggregate $2,000,000 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

8.5. Workers’ Compensation Insurance. Each Party shall maintain Workers’ Compensation 

insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction 

over each Agencies employees engaged in the performance of work or services under 

this Agreement and shall also maintain Employers’ Liability Insurance of not less than 

$1,000,000 for each accident, $1,000,000 disease for each employee and $1,000,000 

disease policy limit.  

8.6. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement shall not 

be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits without ten (10) 

business days’ written notice from the insurer to the Agencies. Notice shall be mailed 

directly to the Agencies and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested 

8.7. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance coverage must be provided by an insurance 

company admitted to do business in Arizona and rated A-VII or better by AM Best’s 

Insurance Rating or by a risk retention pool authorized pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952.01. 



 

Page 5 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

8.8. A party to this Agreement that is self-insured shall provide a Certificate of Self-

Insurance showing no less than the minimum CGL and Workers’ Compensation limits 

listed in this section.     

 

9. Joint Venture. 

9.1. The Parties agree that they are not joint employers for the purpose of workers’ 

compensation coverage and that any Partnering Agency employee assigned to the 

Center shall remain an employee of such Partnering Agency.  

9.2. To the extent that employees of one Party perform duties on behalf of another Party, 

such employee shall be deemed to be an "employee" of both public agencies while 

performing pursuant to this Agreement solely for purposes of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 

23-1022 and the Arizona Workers' Compensation laws.  

9.3. The primary employer shall be solely liable for any workers' compensation benefits, 

which may accrue. Each Partnering Agency shall post a notice pursuant to the 

provisions of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 23-1022.  

9.4. Each party shall have total responsibility for their respective employees for all salaries, 

wages, bonuses, retirement, withholdings, workman's compensation, occupational 

disease compensation, unemployment compensation, other employee benefits, all taxes 

and premiums appurtenant, and automobile insurance thereto concerning such 

individuals and shall save and hold the other parties harmless with respect thereto. 

 

10. Non-Discrimination. Contractor shall comply with Executive Orders 2009-09, 2023-1 and 

2023-9, which mandate that all hiring, promotion, recruitment, compensation and tenure is on 

the basis of merit and qualifications, is in accordance with all existing Federal, State, and local 

laws, rules, policies, or executive orders, and prohibits discrimination based on race, color, 

sex, pregnancy, childbirth or medical conditions related to pregnancy or childbirth, political or 

religious affiliation or ideas, culture, creed, social origin or condition, genetic information, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, ancestry, age, disability, 

military service or veteran status, marital status, or on hair texture and protective styles, such 

as braids, locs, twists, knots and headwraps (unless such hair texture or style would violate 

health or safety standards required for operational purposes).  Contractor shall take affirmative 

action to ensure that applicants for employment and employees are not discriminated against 

on any such basis. 

 

11. Amendment. The Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by 

persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of Avondale, Buckeye, Goodyear, 

Maricopa and DCS. 

 

12. Relationship of the Parties; Authority. All parties to the Agreement shall act in its individual 

capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, associate, or any other 



 

Page 6 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

representative capacity of the other. All parties shall be solely and entirely responsible for its 

acts or acts of its agents and employees during the performance of this Agreement. This 

Agreement shall not be construed to imply authority to perform any tasks, or accept any 

responsibility, not expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall be strictly construed against 

the creation of a duty or responsibility unless the intention to do so is clearly and 

unambiguously set forth herein. 

 

13. Integration. The Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof, and all agreements entered into prior hereto with respect  to the subject 

matter hereof and revoked and superseded by this Agreement,  and  not representations, 

warranties, inducements, or oral agreements have been made by any  of  the parties except as 

expressly set forth herein, or in  other contemporaneous  written  agreements. This Agreement 

may not be changed, modified, or rescinded except in writing, signed by all parties hereto, and 

any attempt at oral modification of this Agreement shall be void and of no effect. 

 

14. Termination of Agreement. 

14.1. In the event any Partnering Agency terminates its participation in the Center IGA, then 

that Partnering Agency also terminates its participation in this Agreement. The 

Partnering Agency shall also provide not less than 30 days written notice of the intent 

to terminate this Agreement. 

14.2. DCS may terminate participation in this Agreement prior to the end of the current term 

by providing not less than 30 days written notice of the intent to terminate. 

 

15. Attorneys' Fees. In the event legal action is brought or an attorney is retained by any party to 

the Agreement to enforce the terms of the Agreement or to collect any monies due hereunder, 

or to collect money damages for breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled  to 

recover, in addition to any other remedy, reimbursement for reasonable attorneys' fees, court 

cost of investigation and other related expenses incurred in connection therewith. 

 

16. Arbitration.   The parties to the Agreement agree to resolve all disputes arising out of or 

relating to the Agreement through arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative 

review, to the extent required by ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 12-1518(B), except as may be required  

by other applicable statutes (Title 41). 

 

17. Severability. If any provision of the Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such 

provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

18. No Assignment. Neither party may assign or delegate any of its rights or obligations hereunder 

without first obtaining the written consent of the other. 



 

Page 7 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

19. Waiver. Failure of any party to exercise any right or option arising out of a breach of the 

Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or option with respect to any subsequent 

or different breach, or the continuance of any existing breach. 

 

20. Counterparts. The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all such 

counterparts shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, and each of said 

counterparts shall be deemed original hereof. Faxed, copied, electronic and scanned signatures 

are acceptable as original signatures.     

 

21. Captions. Captions and section headings used herein are for convenience only and are not a 

part of the Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or alter any provisions hereof and shall 

not be deemed relevant to construing the Agreement. 

 

22. Notices and Requests. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given 

under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if (a) 

delivered to the party at the address set forth below, (b) deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered 

or certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below, or (c) given to a recognized 

and reputable overnight delivery service, to the address set forth below: 

  

 If to the Avondale:  

City of Avondale 

11465 West Civic Center Drive  

Avondale, Arizona 85323 

Attn: City Manager 

 

If to Buckeye: 

City of Buckeye 

530 E. Monroe Ave.  

Buckeye, AZ 85326 

Attn:  City Manager  

 

If to Goodyear: 

1900 N. Civic Square 

Goodyear, AZ 85395 

Attn:  City Manager 

 

If to the Maricopa:   

550 W. Jackson Street 

Phoenix, AZ 85003 

Attn:  County Manager  



 

Page 8 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

 

State of Arizona  

Department of Child Safety 

PO Box 6030, S/C C010-23  

Phoenix, Arizona 85005-6030 

Attn:  DCS Director  

 

or at such other address, and to the attention of such other person or officer, as any party may 

designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this Section.  Notices shall be deemed 

received (a) when delivered to the party, (b) three business days after being placed in the U.S. 

Mail, properly addressed, with sufficient postage, or (c) the following business day after being 

given to a recognized overnight delivery service, with the person giving the notice paying all 

required charges and instructing the delivery service to deliver on the following business day.  

If a copy of a notice is also given to a party's counsel or other recipient, the provisions above 

governing the date on which a notice is deemed to have been received by a party shall mean 

and refer to the date on which the party, and not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy 

of the notice may be sent, is deemed to have received the notice. Faxed, copied, electronic and 

scanned signatures are acceptable as original signatures.    

 

23. Cancellation. The Agreement is subject to the provisions of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 38-511. 

Either party may cancel the Agreement without penalty or further obligations by the party or 

any of its departments or agencies if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, 

securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the party or any of its departments 

or agencies is, at any time while the Agreement or any extension of  the Agreement is in effect, 

an employee of any other party to the Agreement in any capacity or a Consultant to any other 

party of the Agreement with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement. 

 

24. Continuation Subject to Appropriation. The performance by all parties to the Agreement of 

its obligations under the Agreement is subject to actual availability of funds appropriated by 

each party for such purposes. All parties to the Agreement shall be the sole judge and authority 

in determining the availability of funds under the Agreement and each party shall keep the 

other parties fully informed as to the availability of funds for its obligations. The obligation of 

each party to fund any obligation pursuant to the Agreement is a current expense of such party, 

payable exclusively from such annual appropriations, and is not a general obligation or 

indebtedness of the party. If the Council of Avondale, Buckeye, Goodyear, Maricopa or State 

Legislature of the State of Arizona fails to appropriate money sufficient to meet its obligations 

as set forth in the Agreement during any immediately succeeding fiscal year, the Agreement 

shall terminate at the end of then-current fiscal year and all parties to the Agreement shall 

thereafter be relieved of any subsequent obligation under the Agreement. 

 



 

Page 9 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

25. Miscellaneous. 

25.1. Records. All books, accounts, reports, files and other records of either party relating to 

the Agreement or the work done under the Agreement shall be subject at all reasonable 

times to inspection and audit by all parties to the Agreement.  Such records shall be 

available for inspection upon five business days' notice to the Center's day-to-day 

manager. 

25.2. Personal Use of Contracts. State employees and public officers shall not be permitted 

to purchase materials or services under the Agreement for their own personal or 

business use unless authorized in writing by the Director of the Arizona Department of 

Administration, pursuant to A.A.C. R2-7-204. 

25.3. IT 508 Compliance. Unless specifically authorized in the Agreement, any electronic or 

information technology offered to the State of Arizona under this solicitation shall 

comply with ARIZ. REV. STAT. §§18-131 and 18-132and Section 508 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which requires that employees and members of the public 

shall have access to and use of information technology that is comparable to the access 

and use by employees and members of the  public who are not individuals with 

disabilities. 

25.4. Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited. Due to security and identity protection 

concerns, direct services under the Agreement shall be performed within the borders of 

the United States.  Any services that are described in the specifications or scope of 

work that directly serve the State of Arizona or its clients and may involve access  to 

secure or sensitive data or personal client data or development or modification of 

software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United States.  

Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this definition does not apply 

to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back up services or services that are 

incidental to the performance of the Agreement.  This provision applies to work 

performed by subcontractors at all tiers. 

25.5. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act.  By entering into the Agreement, all 

parties to the Agreement warrant compliance with the ARIZ. REV. STAT § 41-4401, 

Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all other federal immigration laws 

and regulations related to the immigration status of its employees.  These warranties shall 

remain in effect through the term of the Agreement. 

 

26. Exhibits. To the extent applicable to the Agreement, the Partnering Agencies and DCS shall 

comply with the provisions set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B.  These exhibits are 

incorporated into this Agreement.  

 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 



 

Page 10 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, all Parties to the Agreement hereto have executed the 

Agreement on the dates set forth below. 

“Avondale” 

 

CITY OF AVONDALE, an Arizona  

municipal corporation 

 

_______________________ 

Ron Corbin, City Manager 

 

Date: _______________________       

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________       

Marcella Sarmiento, City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 

In accordance with the requirements of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 11-952(D), the undersigned 

Attorney acknowledges that (i) she has reviewed the above Agreement on behalf of her client and 

(ii) as to her client only, has determined that the Agreement is in proper form and is within the 

powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 

_________________________       

Nicholle Harris, City Attorney 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  



 

Page 11 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

“Buckeye” 

 

CITY OF BUCKEYE, an Arizona   

municipal corporation 

 

 

_________________________       

Daniel Cotterman, City Manager 

 

Date: _______________________       

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________       

Buckeye City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 

In accordance with the requirements of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 11-952(D), the undersigned 

Attorney acknowledges that (i) he has reviewed the above Agreement  on behalf of his client and 

(ii) as to his client only, has determined that the Agreement is in proper form and is within the 

powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 

_______________________       

K. Scott McCoy, City Attorney 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

 

 



 

Page 12 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

“Goodyear” 

 

CITY OF GOODYEAR, an Arizona 

municipal corporation 

 

 

________________________       

Wynette Reed, City Manager 

 

Date: _______________________       

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________       

Darcie McCracken, City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 

In accordance with the requirements of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 11-952(D), the undersigned 

Attorney acknowledges that (i) he has reviewed the above Agreement on behalf of his client and 

(ii) as to his client only, has determined that the Agreement is in proper form and is within the 

powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 

__________________________       

Roric V. Massey, City Attorney 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  



 

Page 13 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

“Maricopa” 

 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA, ARIZONA, an Arizona 

municipal corporation 

 

 

_______________________________________        

Jack Sellers, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

Date: _______________________       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________       

Juanita Garza, Clerk of the Board 

 

 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 

In accordance with the requirements of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 11-952(D), the undersigned 

Attorney acknowledges that (i) she/he has reviewed the above Agreement on behalf of her/his 

client and (ii) as to her/his client only, has determined that the Agreement is in proper form and is 

within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

       

_______________________  

County Attorney 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 



 

Page 14 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

“DCS” 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY 

 

By:___________________________________________       

 

 

Name:_________________________________________       

 

 

Title:__________________________________________       

 

 

Date:__________________________________________       

 

 

CERTIFICATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL 

In accordance with the requirements of ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 11-952(D), the undersigned 

Attorney acknowledges that (i) she/he has reviewed the above Agreement on behalf of her/his 

client and (ii) as to her/his client only, has determined that the Agreement is in proper form and is 

within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 

       

___________________________________________,  

Assistant Attorney General 

 

  



 

Page 15 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

EXHIBIT A 

TO 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF AVONDALE, THE CITY OF BUCKEYE, THE CITY OF GOODYEAR 

MARICOPA COUNTY  

AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY 

 

[Procurement]  

See following pages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 16 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

29 CFR 97.36- Procurement, Section Number: 97.36, Section Name: Procurement 

 

(i) Contract provisions. A grantee's and sub-grantee's contracts must contain provisions in 

paragraph (i) of this section. Federal agencies are permitted to require changes, remedies, changed 

conditions, access and records retention, suspension of work, and other clauses approved by the 

Office of Federal Procurement Policy. 

(1) Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or 

breach contract terms and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. 

(Contracts more than the simplified acquisition threshold) 

(2) Termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or sub-grantee including the 

manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (All contracts in excess of 

$10,000) 

(3) Compliance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled "Equal 

Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as 

supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60). (All construction contracts 

awarded in excess of $10,000 by grantees and their contractors or sub-grantees) 

(4) Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in 

Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3). (All contracts and sub-grants for construction 

or repair) 

(5) Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by 

Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction contracts in excess of 

$2000 awarded by grantees and sub-grantees when required by Federal grant program legislation) 

 

(6) Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 

Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). 

(Construction contracts awarded by grantees and sub-grantees in excess of $2000, and in excess 

of $2500 for other contracts which involve the employment of mechanics 

or laborers) 

 

(7) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting. 

(8) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to patent rights with 

respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such 

contract. 

(9) Awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in data. 



 

Page 17 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

(10) Access by the grantee, the sub-grantee, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller 

General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, 

documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific 

contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

  

(11) Retention of all required records for three years after grantees or sub-grantees make final 

payments and all other pending matters are closed. 

 

(12) Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 

of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 

U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR 

part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and sub-grants of amounts in excess of 

$100,000) 

 

(13) Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the 

state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 

(Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871). [53 FR 8069, Mar. 11, 1988, as amended at 60 FR 19639, 19643, 

Apr. 19. 1995] 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 18 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

EXHIBIT B TO 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF AVONDALE, THE CITY OF BUCKEYE, THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, 

MARICOPA COUNTY  

 AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SAFETY 

 

[Retention and Access Requirements for Records] 

 See following pages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 19 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

29 CFR 97.42 - Retention and access requirements for records, Section Number: 97.42, Section 

Name: Retention and access requirements for records. 

(a) Applicability. 

(1) This section applies to all financial and programmatic records, supporting documents, 

statistical records, and other records of grantees or sub-grantees which are: 

(i) Required to be maintained by the terms of this part, program regulations or the grant 

agreement, or 

(ii) Otherwise reasonably considered as pertinent to program regulations or the grant 

agreement. 

(2) This section does not apply to records maintained by contractors or subcontractors. For a 

requirement to place a provision concerning records in certain kinds of contracts, see Sec. 

97.36(i)(l0). 

(b) Length of retention period. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided, records must be retained for three years from the starting 

date specified in paragraph (c) of this section. 

(2) If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records has been 

started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the records must be retained until completion of 

the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the regular 3-year 

period, whichever is later. 

(3) To avoid duplicate recordkeeping, awarding agencies may make special arrangements with 

grantees and sub-grantees to retain any records which are continuously needed for joint use. The 

awarding agency will request transfer of records to its custody when it determines that the records 

possess long-term retention value. When the records are transferred to or maintained by the Federal 

agency, the 3-year retention requirement is not applicable to the grantee or sub-grantee. 

(c) Starting date of retention period 

(1) General. When grant support is continued or renewed at annual or other intervals, the 

retention period for the records of each funding period starts on the day the grantee or sub-grantee 

submits to the awarding agency its single or last expenditure report for that period. However, if 

grant support is continued or renewed quarterly, the retention period for each year's records starts 

on the day the grantee submits its expenditure report for the last quarter of the Federal fiscal year. 

In all other cases, the retention period starts on the day the grantee submits its final expenditure 

report. If an expenditure report has been waived, the retention period starts on the day the report 

would have been due. 



 

Page 20 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

(2) Real property and equipment records. The retention period for real property and equipment 

records starts from the date of the disposition or replacement or transfer at the direction of the 

awarding agency. 

(3) Records for income transactions after grant or subgrant support. In some cases grantees 

must report income after the period of grant support. Where there is such a requirement, the 

retention period for the records pertaining to the earning of the income starts from the end of the 

grantee's fiscal year in which the income is earned. 

(4) Indirect cost rate proposals, cost allocations plans, etc. This paragraph applies to the 

following types of documents, and their supporting records: indirect cost rate computations or 

proposals, cost allocation plans, and any similar accounting computations of the rate at which a 

particular group of costs is chargeable (such as computer usage chargeback rates or composite 

fringe benefit rates). 

 (i) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is required to be 

submitted to the Federal Government (or to the grantee) to form the basis for negotiation of the 

rate, then the 3-year retention period for its supporting records starts from the date of such 

submission. 

 

(ii) If not submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other computation is not required 

to be submitted to the Federal Government (or to the grantee) for negotiation purposes, then the 3-

year retention period for the proposal plan, or computation and its supporting records starts from 

end of the fiscal year (or other accounting period) covered by the proposal, plan, or other 

computation. 

(d) Substitution of microfilm. Copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or similar 

methods may 

be substituted for the original records. 

(e) Access to records 

(1) Records of grantees and subgrantees. The awarding agency and the Comptroller General 

of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to any 

pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records of grantees and subgrantees which are 

pertinent to the grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. 

(2) Expiration of right of access. The rights of access in this section must not be limited to the 

required retention period but shall last as long as the records are retained. 

 



 

Page 21 of 21 
DCS Southwest Family Advocacy Center  

 

(f) Restrictions on public access. The Federal Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552) does 

not apply to records Unless required by Federal, State, or local law, grantees and sub-grantees are 

not required to permit public access to their records. 

  



ITEM #: 9. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1994

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: THRIVE AT AVISION GOODYEAR FINAL PLAT

 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Marty Crossland, Deputy Director of Development

Engineering

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
Michael Prefling: Applicant

SUMMARY
A Final Plat subdividing approximately 4.61 acres into 47 lots and 3 tracts at the intersection of 
West Van Buren Street and North Central Avenue.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

RECOMMENDATION
Conditionally approve the Final Plat for Thrive at Avision Goodyear, subdividing 4.61 acres
into 47 lots and 3 tracts at the North East Corner of the West Van Buren Street and North
Central Avenue. (Marty Crossland, Deputy Director of Development Engineering)

STIPULATIONS
1. Any technical corrections to this final plat required by the City Engineer or his designee shall
be made prior to the recordation of the Final Plat;
2. On the Mylar submittal to the City, please change the City Engineer on the approval block to
Steve Scinto.
3. Prior to recordation of the Final Plat, a current title report for the property being platted in the
Final Plat shall be provided to the City Engineer and the final plat shall be modified as needed
to reflect the current ownership and current lender including a Lender Consent and
Subordination in a form approved by the City Attorney or his/her designee for all lenders with a
security interest in the Platted Property.

FISCAL IMPACT
Although a fiscal impact analysis has not been conducted on this specific project, all new



Although a fiscal impact analysis has not been conducted on this specific project, all new
development will have an ongoing fiscal impact on the City. The development is responsible
for construction of all infrastructure necessary to serve the site and will generate one-time
revenue for the City through payment of permits, construction sales tax and development
impact fees. Longer term fiscal impacts include increased demands for municipal services, the
costs of which may or may not be offset by increased property values/tax levies, city sales tax,
state shared revenues and the increased demand for commercial and retail development. Any
areas that will be maintained by the city are constructed by the developer and then conveyed
to the city two years after construction.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
On February 28, 2022, the property was rezoned from General Commercial District (C-2), to
R1-A with PAD Overlay entitled Thrive at Avision Goodyear by Ordinance No. 2022-1525.  A
Preliminary Plat (21-500-00013) was conditionally approved on September 14, 2022.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The proposed subdivision is consistent with the General Plan and will not adversely impact the
surrounding area. Further, the proposed subdivision is consistent with the technical
requirements of the city’s subdivision regulations and engineering standards, and provides for
the orderly development of the property by identifying the required infrastructure needed to
serve the development. The Final Plat is in substantial conformance with the Preliminary Plat.

Attachments
Area Map 
Final Plat 



City of Goodyear, PHX GIS, City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land
Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS,

EPA

C
it

y 
o

f 
G

o
o

d
ye

ar

Thrive at Avision GoodyearDescription:

City of GoodyearName of Map:











ITEM #: 10. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:2008

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: DESIGNATE AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE CITY OF

GOODYEAR TO ACCEPT FEDERAL AND/OR STATE FUNDING
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Jared Askelson, Finance Director

SUMMARY
The State of Arizona requires the city of Goodyear adopt a resolution, which designates an
Authorized Representative who has the authority to accept federal and/or state funding in the
event Goodyear seeks qualified reimbursements related to expenditures under a State of
Emergency.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

   

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2402 APPROVING THE DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FORM TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE ARIZONA
DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS, WHICH DESIGNATES
FINANCE DIRECTOR JARED ASKELSON, AS THE CITY'S AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE FOR APPLYING FOR CERTAIN PUBLIC ASSISTANCE; AND
AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE AND
DELIVER SAID APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR. (Jared
Askelson, Finance Director)

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact related to the passing of this resolution.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Arizona Revised Statutes § 35-192(D)(1-6) provides for the ability of political subdivisions to



Arizona Revised Statutes § 35-192(D)(1-6) provides for the ability of political subdivisions to
be reimbursed for expenses incurred when responding to a State of Emergency that has been
declared by the Governor.To facilitate this process, the Department of Emergency
Management (DEMA) implemented administrative rules that require political subdivisions to
approve a authorized representative to request funds, time extensions, and attend to other
recovery matters related to a specific emergency proclamation on behalf of the political
subdivision. The previous Finance Director was designated as the city’s applicant agent in
April 2020.

STAFF ANALYSIS
This action would change the city’s authorized representative to the current Finance Director,
Jared Askelson.

Attachments
Resolution 
Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs Designation of Applicant’s Authorized
Representative Form 



Resolution No. 2024-2402 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2402 
… 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AUTHORIZED  
REPRESENTATIVE FORM TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS, WHICH DESIGNATES FINANCE DIRECTOR JARED 
ASKELSON, AS THE CITY'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR APPLYING FOR 
CERTAIN PUBLIC ASSISTANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER SAID APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF THE 
CITY OF GOODYEAR  
… 
WHEREAS, the city of Goodyear wishes to be able to apply to the State of Arizona for emergency 
assistance for response and recovery of reimbursable expenses incurred due to a State of 
Emergency that has been declared by the city of Goodyear, and/or the Governor of Arizona, 
and/or the Federal Government; and 
 
WHEREAS, to obtain such reimbursements, the Arizona Department of Emergency Management 
requires the appointment of an Authorized Representative who is authorized to request funds, 
time extension, and attend to other financial matters related to an emergency proclamation; and  
 
WHEREAS, this resolution replaces former “Applicant Agent” with new Finance Director. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Designation of the Authorized Representative for the Arizona Department of 

Emergency and Military Affairs/Emergency Management, which designates 
Jared Askelson, the FINANCE DIRECTOR of the City of GOODYEAR, as 
Authorized Representative to execute applications on behalf of the City of 
GOODYEAR for the purpose of obtaining financial assistance under the Public 
Assistance program and/or other Disaster Relief Act grant programs.   
 

SECTION2.  Jared Askelson, the FINANCE DIRECTOR, is hereby authorized and directed to 
take all steps necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this Resolution.  

  
SECTION 3.  
 

This resolution hereby repeals Resolution No. 2020-2049, which designated 
former City of Goodyear Finance Director, Doug Sandstrom, as the City’s 
“Applicant Agent”. 
 

SECTION 4. Resolution 2024-2402 shall be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a ______ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 



Resolution No. 2024-2402 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 
 

 
 



ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FORM 

The intent of this DESIGNATION is to appoint an APPLICANT’S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE for the following: 

Applicant: 

CERTIFICATION 

I, , duly appointed and of 
(Authorizing Official’s Name) (Title) 

, do hereby certify that the information below is true and correct,
(Applicant)

based on a resolution passed and approved (attached) by the 
(Governing Body) 

of on the day of , . 
(Applicant) (day) (month) (year) 

 has been designated as the Applicant's Authorized Representative 
(Name of Designated Applicant's Authorized Representative) 

to act on behalf of . 
(Applicant) 

(Authorizing Official’s Signature) (Title) (Date) 

Designated Applicant’s Authorized Representative 

Cell  

Name   

Title/Official Position   

Full Mailing Address   

Email Address

Daytime Telephone Number 
(Please include area code and extension if not a direct number) 

Select program(s) 

Select duration

Public Assistance 

Until further notice        

Received By: ______________________       
 November 2023            Form #AZ PA 204-4 

   (Initials & Date) 

For DEMA Use Only

This document MUST be accompanied by a copy of  the Resolution or Meeting Minutes by 
your governing board which designated the Applicant's Authorized Representative.

HMA Mitigation Program 

Only Event _________ From _______ to ________

SEC Mitigation



ITEM #: 11. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1965

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE REGULATIONS

RELATED TO R1-A (SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED)
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Christian M. Williams, AICP, Planning Manager

SUMMARY
This is a staff-initiated request to amend Articles 3 and 6 of the Zoning Ordinance to create
Reduced R1-A development standards.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

 

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1607, AMENDING ARTICLE 2-2 (DEFINITIONS) TO ADD
THE DEFINITION OF “ALLEY-LOADED”; AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING ORDINANCE
ARTICLE 3-2 (RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS) BY REVISING TABLE 3-2-3-A (DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS – SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICTS) AND FOOTNOTES TO ENABLE THE
CREATION OF REDUCED R1-A DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, MODIFYING 3-3-3-D
(DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS (R1-6, R1-4, R1-A, R1-C)) AND
MODIFYING TABLE 3-2-3-E (LOT SIZE AND MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED DESIGN
ELEMENTS FOR REDUCED LOT WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACK REDUCTION
REQUESTS), CREATING FOOTNOTES TO ENABLE THE CREATION OF REDUCED R1-A
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND CLARIFYING MINIMUM LOT AREA; AND AMENDING
ARTICLE 6-2 (GENERAL PARKING REGULATIONS) BY CLARIFYING DRIVEWAY
LENGTHS WITHIN 6-2-2 (RESIDENTIAL VEHICULAR ACCESS); PROVIDING FOR
CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND DIRECTING THE CITY
CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE. (Christian M. Williams, AICP, Planning
Manager)

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct budget impact associated with the approval of this Zoning Ordinance text
amendment.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS



BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance regulates the development of all land within the city.
Regulations set forth in the Zoning Ordinance may be amended when deemed necessary to
best serve the public interest, health, comfort, convenience, safety, and general welfare of the
citizens of the city. The current Zoning Ordinance was originally adopted by the City Council in
May 1999 and has been the subject of a number of amendments since that time. The purpose
of this text amendment is to streamline processes and save time for the development
community, proactively enhancing efficiency; this entails evaluating the R1-A development
standards and providing additional flexibility to the customer to reduce lot widths if certain
Amenities, Connectivity and Streetscape Elements are provided.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Current Policy: 

The following policies contained within the city of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance are
applicable and relevant to this requested text amendment:
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential has a 35-foot minimum lot width requirement.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential has a 2,800 minimum lot area (square foot)
requirement.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential has a 75% maximum building lot coverage
requirement.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential does not have provisions for Reduced
standards within Article 3-2 Table 3-2-3-E.

Details of the Request: 
This request for text amendment is to create Reduced R1-A (Single-Family Attached)
Residential development standards to facilitate the development of townhomes (missing
middle housing). Several PAD Overlays have been requested over the city R1-A Zoning
District which seek similar requirements to the ones now being proposed by this staff
initiated Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. To achieve this intent, the text amendment
proposes the following revisions:
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential may reduce minimum lot width down to
20-foot.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential may reduce in minimum lot area (square foot)
down to 1,600 square feet.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential will be allowed an 80% maximum building lot
coverage requirement.
R1-A (Single-Family Attached) Residential will have provisions for Reduced standards
within Article 3-2 Table 3-2-3-E as well as alley loaded development, layout and parking
requirements, illustrated below:



 
1 Two (2) Amenity Elements shall be required for all lots.

For developments with more than 50 alley-loaded units planned, which have minimum
widths less than 30 feet, one of the Amenity Elements listed in 3-2-3-D.d.i.3.a or
3-2-3-D.d.i.3.b shall be developed.

2 Three (3) Streetscape Elements shall be required for Lots between 20-30
feet.

All residential lots developed with a width between 20-30 feet and all alley-loaded lots
shall provide an Alley-Loaded Streetscape Element and be developed with residential
units that have alley loaded garages, and the alleys shall include either carriage lights on
either side of the garage door or private HOA maintained lights/bollards to provide
security lighting to the alley. Where a rear facing garage is provided with access via a
private alley tract, the rear setback shall be reduced to 0 feet, provided fire separation
requirements can be met. All driveways, which provide access from the internal alley or
streets to a private unit garage, shall be no less than 5 feet in length but no greater than
20 feet in length.

 
For residential lots developed using the Reduced development standards set forth in
Table 3-2-3-E above, the following Streetscape Elements shall be provided within the
Residential portion of the Property: 

An alley shall be defined as a motor court or tract that serves direct access to a
series of garages on the rear side of residential lots.
The entry drive to into an alley, measured at 200 feet or less from the edge corner
of the street, that intersects with an alley at a T-intersection or continues as an L
shaped alley AND serves as an access point to an alley from the street, is not a
separate alley.
Alleys serving multiple rear garages shall not exceed 450’ unless either (1) the
fronts of lots being served by the alley are fronting along a public street (or private
street built to public street standards) OR (2) lots adjacent to the alley’s entrance
provide street frontage to a public street (or private street built to public street



standards) that intersects the alley. Any portion of the alley adjacent to common
area open space tracts shall not count towards the maximum 450’ alley length.

There shall be a total parking ratio of no less than 2.5, including 0.5 guest parking
spaces, per platted residential lot subject to the following: 

Guest parking spaces may be provided by on-street parking or in a guest parking
space located on private lot driveways, in HOA owned and maintained alleys or
parking lots so long as guest spaces are located no more than 225 feet away from
any individually platted lot.

The following applies if guest parking is to be provided within HOA owned and
maintained alleys or parking lots: 

A Parking Plan addressing parking management shall be submitted to the city for
approval with the Preliminary Plat in which parking is to be provided. All parking
shall adhere to the approved Parking Plan. CC&Rs recorded against the
Residential Property shall incorporate the approved Parking Plan and shall include
provisions to enforce the Parking Plan; and
Guest parking spaces shall be labeled or numbered. The failure to comply with an
approved Parking Plan shall constitute a zoning violation; and
Guest parking spaces shall be reserved for the use of a 3rd vehicle owned by the
residents of an individual residential unit in the development or by the use of guests
visiting the development; and
All vehicles that park in a guest parking space shall have a pass that indicates to a
management company which unit the vehicle belongs or which unit the vehicle is a
guest of; and
Guest spaces shall not be used by the 1st or 2nd vehicle owned by residents of a
residential unit.  If a resident uses a guest space for vehicles owned by the
resident, the resident shall obtain a pass as provided above.

Housing Impact Statement: 
The probable impact on the average cost to construct housing within this Zoning District
will be a reduction in cost. The reduced standards will allow for narrower lots which will
allow for additional units to be constructed and reduce the overall cost of construction
within a development. The standards for these reduced lots are in-line with the existing
standards within our Zoning Ordinance. Additionally, the ZOTA allows a new product to
be constructed that does not exist today on a by-right basis within the R1-A Zoning
District, thus a less costly or less restrictive alternative does not exist.

Evaluation Criteria: 
As previously noted, Section 1-3-1 (Amendments) of the Zoning Ordinance provides
evaluation criteria for text amendments. The criteria and accompanying staff analysis are
provided below:

A. Documentation indicating inconsistencies in terms of the Ordinance or problems
and/or conflicts in implementation of specific sections of the Ordinance that will be
resolved by the amendment;

The amendment is intended to streamline the development process. If
approved, several months (approximately 4-6 months) of processing time will
be removed from the development process which will result in a time and
financial savings to the customer and accelerate the time it takes to construct
townhouse (missing-middle) developments.

B. Whether amendment is needed to respond to changes in the law, statutory or
case law;



case law;
This text amendment is not being driven by a change in law, statutory or case
law; rather this staff-initiated amendment is a proactive response to
streamlining the development process.

C. Whether amendment is needed to address zoning and/or development issues or
to improve processes for addressing such issues;

The development community has expressed a desire to bring additional
platted townhome developments (missing-middle) to Goodyear. Our existing
R1-A (single-family attached) standards does not provide some of the
flexibility the development community is seeking. As a result, PAD Overlays
have been the preferred method to seek that flexibility. This text  amendment
will codify the standards associated with providing flexibility to the
development community, if they elect to utilize reduced lot size standards.

D. Whether amendment will to promote implementation of goals and objections of
the City’s General Plan;

The following 2025 General Plan Goals support the proposed Zoning
Ordinance Tex Amendment:

Objective GD-1-1. Establish a land use hierarchy and community form
that maintains a broad variety of land uses and responds to the
community’s vision and needs.

Objective CC-1-1. Create and foster complete neighborhoods.

Objective CC-1-3. Foster the creation and maintenance of attractive,
high quality neighborhoods.

Objective CC-2-1. Provide diverse and quality housing products.

Objective CC-2-3. Advance the concept that every person should have
access to safe and affordable housing.

E. Any other factors related to the impact of the amendment on the general health,
safety or welfare of the citizens of the City and the general public.

The text amendment should not have any adverse impacts on the general
health, safety or welfare of citizens or the general public. The proposed text
amendment promotes added housing diversity within Goodyear and
encourages additional missing-middle units to be constructed in a more
streamlined manner.

Public Participation, Public Comment and Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting: 
This Zoning Ordinance text amendment requires public hearings before the Planning &
Zoning Commission and City Council. Notice for these public hearings included a
full-size legal notice published in the Arizona Republic West Valley Edition on March 29,
2024.

Following the notice of public hearings, a letter of support was received by a member of
the development community; the letter, attached to this staff report, was addressed to
The Planning and Zoning Commission.



On April 17, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing for this
item. After the staff presentation, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to
recommend approval of the Ordinance.

A public notice that this rezoning request would be considered and reviewed at a public
hearing to be held before the City Council on April 29, 2024, appeared in the Arizona
Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance 2024-1607 
Letter of Support 
Staff Presentation 



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 1 of 10

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1607
…
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING ARTICLE 2-2 (DEFINITIONS) TO ADD THE DEFINITION OF
“ALLEY-LOADED”; AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 3-2
(RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS) BY REVISING TABLE 3-2-3-A (DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS –
SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICTS) AND FOOTNOTES TO ENABLE THE CREATION OF REDUCED
R1-A DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, MODIFYING 3-3-3-D (DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS (R1-6, R1-4, R1-A, R1-C)) AND MODIFYING TABLE 3-2-3-E (LOT
SIZE AND MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED DESIGN ELEMENTS FOR REDUCED LOT
WIDTH AND SIDE YARD SETBACK REDUCTION REQUESTS), CREATING FOOTNOTES TO
ENABLE THE CREATION OF REDUCED R1-A DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND
CLARIFYING MINIMUM LOT AREA; AND AMENDING ARTICLE 6-2 (GENERAL PARKING
REGULATIONS) BY CLARIFYING DRIVEWAY LENGTHS WITHIN 6-2-2 (RESIDENTIAL
VEHICULAR ACCESS); PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE, AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS
ORDINANCE.
…
WHEREAS the Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, have been presented with a
proposed Goodyear Zoning Ordinance text amendment, creating new Reduced R1-A (Single-
Family Attached) residential standards which will allow additional flexibility when developing new
singe-family attached (missing middle) townhouse product on properties within R1-A Zoning
Districts; and,

WHEREAS the Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, have been presented with
and have considered a Housing Impact Statement, which is on file in the Development Services
department file pertaining to Case No. P24-00107; and,

WHEREAS, public notice that this rezoning request would be considered and reviewed at a public
hearing to be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17, 2024 appeared in the
Arizona Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17,
2024, and at that meeting the Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of the proposed
ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, a public notice that this rezoning request would be considered and reviewed at a
public hearing to be held before the City Council on April 29, 2024 appeared in the Arizona
Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024; and,

WHEREAS the Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, find that the interests of the
City of Goodyear and its citizens are best served by clarifying the definition of churches and by
allowing churches in all zoning districts, subject to consistent review requirements and standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS:



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 2 of 10

SECTION 1. City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance Article 2 (Definitions) Article 22
(Definitions) is amended by adding the definition of “Alley-Loaded” as follows
(with deletions shown by strikeout text and additions shown by double
underlined text):

Alley-Loaded Residential. Permanent buildings within a single-family
residential zoning district with garages on the rear side of platted lots that are
accessed through a Private Alley.

Private Alley. A motor court, tract or drive-aisle that serves as primary and
direct access to the garages of Alley-Loaded Residential.

SECTION 2. Section 3-2-3(A) of Section 3-2-3 (Development Standards for the Agricultural
District and Singl Family District) of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance is
amended as follows (with deletions shown by strikeout text and additions
shown by double underlined text):

A. Table 3-2-3-A prescribes development standards for each agricultural
district and single family residential district. Additional development and design
standards and regulations for agricultural districts and single family residential
districts can be found elsewhere in the Zoning Ordinance.

1Front setback shall be measured to patios, livable space, and side entry
garages



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 3 of 10

24Where a minimum 10 foot wide landscape tract is provided, the typical side
setbacks, rather than Street Side setback applies

3Maximum Building Coverage 80% when utilizing Reduced R1-A Development
Standards.

47If homes face toward a collector street, front porches may face out towards
the street so long as a minimum distance of 10 feet is provided between the
sidewalk and the porch and no vehicular access shall be allowed from/to the
collector street to individual lots. Walls within the front setback shall be no
greater than 4 feet in height and parallel walls shall be located no closer than
14 feet face to face. Patios shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep and a minimum
of 66 square feet.

52Setback from a public or private street that is not providing direct vehicular
access to homes shall be 10 feet

63Attached side setbacks shall be 0 feet, whereas building separation shall be
a minimum of 5 feet

75Total of both sides setback may be reduced to 10 feet subject to the
requirements as provided in Section 3-2-3-D

8If a porch/patio is located on the side of an attached townhome (facing the
street), such patios/porches may encroach the street side setback up to 4 feet
with a maximum wall height of 40 inches.

9Where a rear facing garage is provided with access via a private alley tract,
the rear setback for the entire building shall be reduced to 0 feet, provided fire
separation requirements can be met.

SECTION 3. Section 3-2-3(D) (DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
(R1-6, R1-4, R1-A, R1-C)) including Table 3-2-3(E) (Lot Size and Minimum
Number of Required Design Elements for Reduced Lot Width and Side Yard
Setback Reduction Requests) referred to therein of Section 3-2-3
(Development Standards for the Agricultural District and Singl Family District)
of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended as follows (with
deletions shown by strikeout text and additions shown by double underlined
text):

D.  DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS (R1-6, R1-4,
R1-A, R1-C).

a. In addition to the requirements listed in Section 3-2-3-C, each
subdivision shall be designed with at least the number of Design Elements set
forth Table 3-2-3-E.

https://goodyear.municipal.codes/ZoningOrds/3-2-3-D


Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 4 of 10

b. The minimum lot width may be reduced, administratively, up to 5 feet in
R1-6 and R1-4 if additional Design Elements are provided as set forth in Table
3-2-3-E.

c. The Total Both Sides setback may be reduced to 10 feet in the R1-6 and
R1-4 districts if additional Design Elements are provided as set forth in Table 3-
2-3-E. Both the lot width and setback may be reduced by providing the Design
Elements set forth in the table.

d. The descriptions of the Design Elements for each category are listed
below in paragraphs (i), (ii), and (iii), (iv).

For example, if an owner of property zoned R1-6 wants dto develop 50 foot
wide lots, the owner would need to comply with the requirements of Section 3-2
-3-D and provide at least; 21 Amenity Elements listed in paragraph (i) below,
32 Connectivity Elements listed in paragraph (ii) below, and 2 Streetscape
Element listed in paragraph (iii), and 1 Additional Streetscape Element listed in
paragraph (iv) below.

1Two (2) Amenity Elements shall be required for all lots.
 For developments with more than 50 Alley-Loaded Residential

units planned, which have minimum widths less than 30 feet, at
least one of the two Amenity Elements shall be either the
amenity described in 3-2-3-D.d.i.3.a or the amenity described in
3-2-3-D.d.i.3.b.

2Three (3) Streetscape Elements shall be required for Lots between 20-30 feet.
 All residential lots developed with a width between 20-30 feet

shall be developed as Alley-Loaded Residential and one of the
required streetscape elements shall be the Alley-Loaded



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 5 of 10

Residential Streetscape Element described below. Where a rear
facing garage is provided with access via a private alley tract,
the rear setback shall be reduced to 0 feet, provided fire
separation requirements can be met.

i. Amenity Elements. The purpose of providing amenity elements is to
create diverse places within a community that are accessible to the
surrounding residents. Smaller lots require additional amenities because of the
smaller private yards that are provided.

1. Adjacent to Community Amenity. The project is adjacent to an
open space amenity (e.g., Bullard Wash, Gila River, hillside preserve) or
community facility (e.g., community park, recreation center) and reasonable
access has been provided to the amenity. A clubhouse, pool, or other
significant community amenity within a master planned community can count
toward this requirement without being directly adjacent if the neighborhood is
served by the amenity.

2. Additional Park Space. The development includes privately
maintained park space at least 30 percent greater in area than the minimum
required useable open space.

3. Additional Internal Park Amenities. Meaningful and impactful
additional amenities are provided within parks. For example, a horseshoe pit
would not meet this threshold but pickle ball courts would; Simple outdoor grills
would not meet this threshold but an outdoor fireplace with integrated grills
would. Additional amenities are provided within the required park space:

(a) A pool, splash pad, or similar active recreational
infrastructure.

(b) A clubhouse, community room, or similar passive
recreational gather places.

(c) Restroom facilities.

(d) Active recreation fields above and beyond the minimum
requirements including basketball courts, soccer fields, baseball fields, and
similar facilities.

(e) Additional amenities that are not minimally required by the
Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Trails Master Plan as determined by the
Zoning Administrator and that provide meaningful and impactful recreational
opportunities for the community that as a general rule cannot be
accommodated in a traditional 10,000 square foot lot.

4. Integrated Commercial. A parcel zoned commercial is located
within the development or directly adjacent that is integrated into the



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 6 of 10

neighborhood and has the impact of serving as a gathering place and amenity
to the community, subject to the following:

(a) No subdivision perimeter wall separates the neighborhood
from the commercial parcel or direct pedestrian connections are provided.

(b) The residential neighborhood is not separated from the
commercial amenity by an arterial roadway (i.e., a residential area receiving
credit for this amenity must not have to cross an arterial roadway to get to the
commercial amenity)

(c) The residential neighborhood is entirely contained within a
1,320 foot radius of a commercial property. (i.e., the residential area receiving
credit for this amenity must be within 1,320 feet of the commercial area,
residential lots outside of the radius would provide another amenity or not be
eligible for lot reductions).

5. Additional Amenities. Other amenity elements not minimally
required by any other regulation, ordinance, policy, standard or master plan
adopted by the City that meet the stated purpose and provide the same impact
to the community as the listed elements may be approved.

ii. Connectivity Elements. The purpose of connectivity elements is to
create an inclusive community that promotes a sense of community and
provides a walkable and bikeable community with easy and quick access to
nearby amenities such as schools, commercial areas, trails, and parks.

1. Infill Development. The site is located in areas that will provide
easy and quick access to nearby amenities such as schools, trails, and parks
and that also have been identified as growth areas as defined by the General
Plan.

2. Trail System Connections. Publicly accessible trail connections
are provided within the community and connect to larger trail systems or have
the ability to connect to future trail systems (i.e., trails are not limited to use by
only those who live within the H.O.A.).

3. Smaller Blocks. Smaller blocks create a more walkable
community. They should be designed in a way to reduce street lengths and
foster neighborhood interactions. Maximum block lengths shall be no more
than 660 feet. The maximum number of continuous blocks with side yards
facing the street is limited to three. The blocks should be broken up with some
homes facing the side street and/or should be staggered.



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 7 of 10

4. No subdivision perimeter wall. The subdivision is designed and
homes are oriented so that subdivision perimeter walls are not necessary in
order to increase connectivity from the neighborhood to surrounding amenities.

5. Lot Diversity. At least 30% of the lots within the subdivision
exceed the minimum lot width by 5 feet. (e.g., in a 100 lot subdivision in the R1-
4 district 70 homes are 45-foot wide and 30 homes are 50-foot wide).

6. Additional Connectivity Elements. Other connectivity elements
not minimally required by any other regulation, ordinance, policy, standard or
master plan adopted by the City that meet the stated purpose of creating an
inclusive community that provides easy access to amenities and services and
provide the same impact to the community as the listed elements may be
approved.

iii. Streetscape Elements. The purpose of streetscape elements is to
create a sense of place and ensure that smaller lot developments are of high
quality.

1. Additional front setback. Homes (and all elements of the homes
and garages) have a minimum setback of 30-feet.

2. Detached sidewalk. A detached sidewalk is utilized with a planter
strip that is a minimum of 5.5 feet wide. Planter strips shall be planted,
irrigated, and maintained with live plant materials.

3. Shared or Clustered Driveways. Driveways are paired so that
there is a single curb-cut providing access to 2 houses, and the total width for
the paired driveway is not more than 20 feet. Alternatively, driveways may be
clustered (but need not share the same curb cut) so that there is at least 36
feet of uninterrupted curb between the clustered driveways.



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 8 of 10

4. Alley – Loaded Residential. Homes utilize with Private Alley alley
loaded garages shall comply with the following.

 Private-Alleys serving Alley-Loaded Residential shall not exceed
450’ unless either (1) the fronts of the Alley-Loaded Residential
being served by the Private Alley are fronting along a public street
(or private street built to public street standards) OR (2) lots
adjacent to the Private Alley’s entrance provide street frontage to a
public street (or private street built to public street standards) that
intersects the Private Alley. Any portion of the Private Alley adjacent
to common area open space tracts shall not count towards the
maximum 450’ Private Alley length.

o If the entry drive from a public or private street into a Private
Alley at the T-intersection is less than 200 feet measured
from the edge corner of the street to the T-intersection, it
shall not be considered a separate Private Alley for the
purposes of the measurement above.

o Entries from a public or private street into a Private Alley that
continues as a L-shaped or U-shaped Private Alley are not
separate Private Alley’s but shall be considered part of the L
-shaped or U-shaped Private Alley.

 The Private Alley shall include either carriage lights on either side of
the garage door or private HOA maintained lights/bollards to provide
security lighting to the Private Alley.

 There shall be a total parking ratio of no less than 2.5, including 0.5
guest parking spaces, per platted residential lot subject to the
following:

o Guest parking spaces may be provided by on-street parking
or in a guest parking space located on private lot driveways,
in HOA owned and maintained alleys or parking lots so long
as guest spaces are located no more than 225 feet away
from any individually platted lot.

o The following applies if guest parking is to be provided within
HOA owned and maintained alleys or parking lots:

o A Parking Plan addressing parking management shall be
submitted to the city for approval with the Preliminary Plat in
which parking is to be provided. All parking shall adhere to
the approved Parking Plan. CC&Rs recorded against the
Residential Property shall incorporate the approved Parking
Plan and shall include provisions to enforce the Parking
Plan; and

o Guest parking spaces shall be labeled or numbered. The
failure to comply with an approved Parking Plan shall
constitute a zoning violation; and

o Guest parking spaces shall be reserved for the use of a 3rd
vehicle owned by the residents of an individual residential



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 9 of 10

unit in the development or by the use of guests visiting the
development; and

o All vehicles that park in a guest parking space shall have a
pass that indicates to a management company which unit
the vehicle belongs or which unit the vehicle is a guest of;
and

o Guest spaces shall not be used by the 1st or 2nd vehicle
owned by residents of a residential unit.  If a resident uses a
guest space for vehicles owned by the resident, the resident
shall obtain a pass as provided above.

5. Open Space Facing Homes. Homes do not have a traditional
front yard but face onto a shared open space or courtyard.

6. Paving Material. Decorative paving (i.e., pavers) are utilized for
all horizontal paved surfaces between the house and sidewalk.

7. Deep recessed garages. Garages are setback at least 20-feet
from the front part of the home which could include living space or a front porch
but does not include a courtyard.

8. Porches and Courtyards. 100% of homes have a front porch or
courtyard with at least 50% of the homes having a covered front porch that is at
least 48 square feet. Covered porch can include a slatted roof or other roof
design alternative, if it is an integrated, significant architectural feature with
columns that are complimentary to the style of the home.

9. Additional Streetscape Elements. Other streetscape elements
not minimally required by any other regulation, ordinance, policy, standard or
master plan adopted by the City that meet the stated purpose and provide the
same impact to the community as the listed elements may be approved.

e. Creation of a new lot that is less than the required minimum lot area
requires approval of a Planned Area Development (PAD)

SECTION 4. Paragraph 2 of Section 6-2-2(A) (Driveways) (Section 6-2-2(A)(2)) of the
Goodyear Zoning Ordinance is amended as follows (with deletions shown by
strikeout text and additions shown by double underlined text).  All other terms
in Section 6-2-2(A) remain unchanged (i.e. Sections 6-2-2(A)(1) and 6-2-2(A)(3
-12).

2. Driveways which provide access from a garage to an alley or to a Private
Alley or driveways for Alley-Loaded Residential, shall not be less than five (5)
feet in length but any driveway greater than five (5) feet shall be at least twenty
(20) feet in length,may be less than twenty (20) feet in length, provided that the
total width of the alley and the total length of the driveway combine to provide a
minimum length of twenty-three (23) feet for the maneuvering area.



Ordinance No. 2024-1607
Page 10 of 10

SECTION 5.
CORRECTIONS. The City Clerk, and the codifiers of this Ordinance are
authorized to make necessary clerical corrections to this Ordinance, including,
but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references,
ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers and any references thereto.

SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase or portion
of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court
of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining provisions of the ordinance or parts thereof.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty days after
adoption in the manner prescribed by law.

SECTION 8. RECORDATION. This Ordinance shall be recorded with the Maricopa County
Recorder’s Office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County,
Arizona, by a _____ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____.

____________________________________
Joe Pizzillo, Mayor

Date: ______________________________

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

____________________________ ______________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney



 

7001 N. Scottsdale Road  |  Suite 1015  |  Scottsdale, AZ  85253  |  p 480.315.2600  |  f 480.315.2699 

 
 
 
 
April 12, 2024 
 
City of Goodyear 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
c/o Christian Williams 
Planning & Zoning 
1900 N Civic Square 
Goodyear, AZ 85395 
 
Sent Via Email 
 
Re: Support for Ordinance No. 2024-1607 
 
Dear Mr. Williams; 
 

This is a letter of support for the recently proposed amendment to the Goodyear Zoning 
Ordinance Article 3-2. In 2020, Communities Southwest processed a PAD Amendment for the 
Avion at Ballpark Village community. During this process we worked with the City’s Planning and 
Zoning department to create guidelines that allowed for medium-high density housing within the 
R1-A and R1-C zoning classifications. A lot of the changes we incorporated in our approved PAD, 
are now reflected in these proposed changes. 
 

In our experience as residential community developers, these changes provide for a mix of 
housing options while also maintaining high community standards. Specifically, these changes 
work to address gaps in the current zoning ordinance that limit the development options within the 
R1-A and R1-C zoning districts.  

 
It is our belief that, if implemented, these changes will have a positive impact on future 

development of new housing product within the City of Goodyear. 
 
 

Kind regards, 
 
 
 
 
Greg Lehmann 
Executive Vice President 
Communities Southwest 



R1-A Reduced (Townhomes)
City Council Meeting

April 29, 2024



Requests for Townhomes
APPLICANT INQUIRY AND REZONES

*Images Conceptual In Nature



PAD Overlay
REQUESTS AND REGULATIONS

*Images Conceptual In Nature

Design Standards Lot Standards

Parking

Amenities |Connectivity |Streetscape

Patio and Walls



Recommendation
APPROVE

• Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment
• R1-A (Single-Family Townhomes)

• Reduced Lot Widths
• Amenities
• Streetscape

• New process to create additional housing

*Images are Conceptual





ITEM #: 12. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1967

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: USE PERMIT FOR A CONVENIENCE USE AT THE

NORTHWEST CORNER OF MCDOWELL ROAD AND 150TH
DRIVE, WITHIN GOODYEAR CIVIC SQUARE
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Justin Gabrielson, Planner

SUMMARY
This is a Public Hearing for and consideration of a Use Permit request for a convenience use
proposed at the northwest corner of McDowell Road and 150th Drive, within Goodyear Civic
Square at Estrella Falls.
 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the request for a Use Permit for a convenience use for a drive-through restaurant on
an approximately 1.46-acre identified in the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD and
located at the northwest corner of McDowell Road and 150th Drive, subject to stipulations.
(Justin Gabrielson, Planner)

STIPULATIONS
The approval of the Use Permit is subject to the following conditions and stipulations: 

The Site shall be developed in substantial conformance with the Site Plan attached
hereto, the Building Elevations attached hereto, and the Landscape Plans attached
hereto, none of which have received final approval; and,

1.

The existing utility boxes adjacent to the Civic Square roadway shall be painted to match
the adjacent steel screen panels or the screen wall; and,

2.

In conformance with Article 4-2-18 of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance, the canopy
adjacent to the pick-up window shall be solid, or the canopy shall be built to match the
style and theme of the existing stage canopy, including opacity and design, at the
Goodyear Civic Square park; and,

3.

The drive-through speaker box canopy shall be designed to match the aesthetics of the4.



building and/or trellis architecture including colors reflected in the landscape plans and
building elevations attached hereto; and,
In order to meet the parking requirements of the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls
PAD, the required parking spaces not provided within the Site, shall be provided within
the parking garage adjacent to the Site unless further amended through a Shared
Parking Agreement as required within the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD;
and,

5.

The installation and display of any signs on the Site are not approved under this permit.
A separate permit specifically for signage must be obtained prior to installation. The
proposed signage must comply with the approved comprehensive sign package for
Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls, including but not limited to, size, placement, and
design standards; and,

6.

Vines shall be planted and maintained at the bottom of all installed mesh screening to
enhance aesthetic integration with the surrounding environment, and ensure proper
screening; and,

7.

The bike racks to be provided on the Site shall match the existing bike racks which have
been installed in front of the Gen1 Office Building north of West Park Place; and,

8.

The base of all sign boards and menu boards shall not contain single poles but shall be
designed in a decorative manner and in accordance with Article 7 (Sign Regulations), of
the City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance; and,

9.

In no instance shall queued vehicles obstruct designated fire lanes or public streets. Any
observed obstruction by city staff shall be immediately remediated by the owner/operator
and owner/operator shall prepare a traffic management plan to prevent future
obstructions, which shall be completed and submitted to the Fire Chief and Director of
Engineering or their respective designees within 30 days of staff’s notification to the
owner or operator that staff had observed the obstruction of designated fire lanes and/or
public streets. Said plan shall require approval from the Fire Chief and Engineering
Director, or designees. The owner/operator shall comply with all requirements in the
approved traffic management plan. The failure to comply with the requirements set forth
herein can result in the termination of this use permit if an approved traffic management
plan is not in place and implemented in a timely fashion following city staff’s notification
that such a traffic management plan is required.  Repeated observations of obstructions
to designated fire lanes and/or public streets can result in the termination of the use
permit; and,

10.

Any trees, bushes or other plants damaged or removed along North Civic Square or
McDowell Road during construction or operation shall be replaced with the same style
and sizing of tree, bush or other plant that was removed or damaged, and the
responsibility for this replacement shall be that of the owner or developer.

11.

FISCAL IMPACT
Although a fiscal impact analysis has not been conducted on this specific project, all new
development will have an ongoing fiscal impact on the city. The development is responsible
for construction of infrastructure necessary to serve the Site and will generate one-time
revenue for the city through payment of permits, construction sales tax and development
impact fees. Longer term fiscal impacts include increased demands for municipal services, the
costs of which may or may not be offset by increased property values/tax levies, city sales tax,
state shared revenues and the increased demand for commercial and retail development. Any
areas that will be maintained by the city after conclusion of a two-year warranty period that are
constructed by the developer and then conveyed to the city.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS



The Site is located at the northwest corner of McDowell Road and 150th Drive within Goodyear
Civic Square at Estrella Falls and within the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD. The
Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD was approved on July 8, 2019 with Ordinance
No. 2019-1440. The Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD land use designation
establishes convenience uses (drive-through) as a use that requires approval of a Use Permit.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Current Policy: 
A Use Permit requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approval by the
City Council following required public hearings. The process for the review of a Use Permit is
set forth in section 1-3-2 of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance and in the City of Goodyear
Administrative Process Manual.

Details of the Request: 
The applicant is requesting a Use Permit for a convenience use (drive-through) on the Site
within Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls. The Site is designated for commercial use and
will be developed in accordance with the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls
Supplemental Design Guidelines and Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD. As
required in the Goodyear Civic Square at Estrella Falls PAD, a restaurant with a drive-through
must obtain approval of a Use Permit prior to development.
 
The two drive-through lanes provided on the site plan well exceeds the city’s queuing
requirements of at least six (6) stacking spaces from the drive through entry to the first stop
(i.e. menu/order board) and at least four (4) stacking spaces from the menu board to the first
product pick-up window has been voluntarily provided.
 
The proposed convenience use will be a convenience use drive-through restaurant. As shown
on the preliminary site plan submitted with the Use Permit, the restaurant will consist of a
single-story (22’ 6’’ tall), approximately 3,150 square-foot building with a 600 square foot
outdoor patio.
 
Section 1-3-2 (Use Permits) of the Zoning Ordinance requires that the Planning and Zoning
Commission and City Council determine that the proposed use meets the following findings
prior to granting a Use Permit:
 
1. The Use Permit will not be materially detrimental to persons residing or working in the
vicinity adjacent to the property, to the neighborhood, or to the public welfare;
The proposed use, as described in the materials provided with the Use Permit and as
stipulated herein, should not generate excessive traffic, odors, noise or light to the detriment of
the surrounding area. Traffic impacts have been reviewed and determined to be in
conformance with the roadway capacity and improvements for this area. The drive-through
lanes and queue have been internalized to the Site and should not detrimentally affect
surrounding properties or public streets. Two drive-through lanes with queuing that meets the
city’s new requirements of at least six stacking spaces have been provided. Stipulations have
been including requiring speakers to not be audible to residential property and lighting to be
shielded per city of Goodyear lighting standards. Signage facing east is also restricted by
stipulation to prevent light pollution overnight.
 
2. The proposed use is reasonably compatible with uses permitted in the surrounding area;
The architecture of the building will match the themes established within this portion of
Goodyear and substantially match the colors, materials and roofline of the storage building



Goodyear and substantially match the colors, materials and roofline of the storage building
currently under construction. Additionally, the building will include agrarian elements such as
trellis shade coverings and picket fencing. The uses adjacent to the Site are commercial in
general.
 
Section 4-2-2 (Convenience Uses) of the Zoning Ordinance provides the following additional
evaluation criteria for convenience uses regarding their potential impact on traffic congestion,
the neighborhood in general, and their appropriateness for the Site.
 
1. Adequacy of the parcel size and configuration to provide for proper access and internal
circulation.
The Site is approximately 1.46-acres and is of sufficient size and configuration to
accommodate the proposed restaurant with drive-through. The proposed access and internal
traffic circulation pattern have been designed to be connected and cohesive with future pad
sites and users within Civic Square at Estrella Falls. Queuing space for the drive-through
meets the city’s new standards and, pursuant to the traffic study, can be accommodated
onsite without adversely impacting any public streets or adjacent land uses.
 
2. Compatibility of the proposed hours of operation with adjacent residential areas.
There is no existing residential adjacent to this Site thus no hours of operation restrictions are
being proposed.
 
Required traffic mitigation measures, if any.
A traffic study was submitted with the application for Use Permit. All intersections are
expected to continue to operate at an adequate level of services with the proposed uses and
the traffic study for the Site was approved by the Engineering Department.
 
Ingress/egress is provided from both Civic Square and Globe Drive.
 
Other concerns, which may place the advisability of the proposed convenience use in question.
Staff has not received any concerns at this time.

Fire Department:
Emergency response times and distances are provided below:

Nearest
Goodyear
Fire Station

Shortest
path

2nd Nearest
Goodyear Fire
Station

Shortest
path

Mins Miles Mins Miles
Fire Station #181  4.35  2.17 Fire Station #185  4.47 2.23

 
Public Participation and Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting:
An alternative notification process was used for this proposal. A formal citizen review meeting
was not held, but notice was given to 19 owners of property within 500 feet of the Site and
other stakeholders by first-class mail on March 22, 2024 which provided information on this
proposal. There was no objection to the use permit received.
A public notice that this Use Permit request would be considered and reviewed at a public
hearing to be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17, 2024 appeared in
the Arizona Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024; postcards were mailed to adjoining
owners on March 22, 2024; and signs were posted on the Site on March 26, 2024.
The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at their regular meeting on April
17, 2024. At the conclusion of the Public Hearing, Commissioners voted (6-0) to forward a



recommendation of approval to the City Council.

Staff Findings:
Staff finds that the proposed Use Permit for a Convenience use (Convenience use
drive-through) meets the Zoning Ordinance requirements for convenience uses, will not be
materially detrimental to adjacent properties and will be compatible with the surrounding area.
Staff is recommending approval of the Use Permit subject to the conditions and stipulations set
forth above.

Attachments
Narrative 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Conceptual Landscape Plans 
Aerial Exhibit 
Staff Presentation 



 

Goodyear Civic Square Shake Shack – Site Plan/Use Permit Narrative                                                    
September 15, 2023 

Page 1 

 

Goodyear Civic Square – Shake Shack 
150th Avenue/McDowell – Site Plan/Use Permit Narrative                            September 15, 2023 

 

 

 
  



 

Goodyear Civic Square Shake Shack – Site Plan/Use Permit Narrative                                                    
September 15, 2023 

Page 2 

 

DESCRIPTION. The applicant is requesting site plan and use permit approval for the next phase 
of restaurant development at Goodyear Civic Square, located at the northwest corner on 150th 
Avenue and McDowell Road and indicated on the site plan accompanying this application. 
Goodyear Civic Square is a mixed-use development anchored by the new City Hall and an office 
building, both currently under construction. The landowner is now moving forward with the 
second phase of restaurants, bringing a Shake Shack drive-thru to provide an additional amenity 
to the balance of the development and the surrounding area. 
 
Shake Shack is an American fast casual restaurant chain headquartered in New York City, NY 
that started as a hot dog cart inside Madison Square Park in 2001.  In 2004, Shake Shack 
expanded its menu with the addition of hamburgers, fries and one-of-a-kind milkshakes. 
Shake Shack’s motto is We Stand For Something Good® in everything we do. That means 
carefully sourced premium ingredients from like-minded purveyors Shake Shack admires and 
loves; thoughtful, well-crafted, responsible design for its place; and a deep commitment to 
community support through donations, events, and volunteering. 
 
Every Shack is a reflection of the community it’s a part of, from partnering with local artists and 
ingredient purveyors, to hosting fundraisers with local non-profit partners and school groups.  
Shake Shack plans to operate this site as an inviting community gathering place focused on 
hospitality with a drive-thru component for those guests who want to grab a quick meal while 
on the go. 
 
The proposed Shake Shack will have a drive-thru as well as outdoor dining to serve its 
customers. Due to its location at the hard corner of the overall project, the restaurant is 
anticipated to have minimal impact from a noise, odor or lighting perspective on surrounding 
areas. 
 
The applicant is also pursuing a use permit as part of this submittal. Granting this use permit will 
not be materially detrimental to persons residing or working in the vicinity adjacent to the 
property, to the neighborhood or to the public welfare. The proposed use is reasonable 
compatible with uses permitted in the surrounding area. The operation will confirm with section 
1-3-2 of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance. 
 
PROJECT DETAILS.  
 
APNs – A portion of 501-73-068 (subdivision plat currently in process) 
Acreage – +/- 1.31 acres 
Proposed Use – Shake Shack restaurant with drive-thru 
 



 

Goodyear Civic Square Shake Shack – Site Plan/Use Permit Narrative                                                    
September 15, 2023 

Page 3 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO SURROUNDING PROPERTIES. The property is located at the corner of 
150th Avenue and McDowell within the larger mixed-use development of Goodyear Civic Square. 
The proposed use will complement the balance of uses within the development.  
 
Following is a summary of the uses surrounding the Property subject to this request: 
 
North – Balance of Goodyear Civic Square (Goodyear PAD zoning) 
 
East – Estrella Falls Regional Shopping Center (Goodyear PAD zoning)  
 
South – Flood Control Channel (Goodyear AG zoning) 
 
West – Goodyear Civic Square (Goodyear PAD zoning) 
 
LOCATION AND ACCESSIBILITY.  The project consists of a roughly 3,150 square foot Shake 
Shack restaurant with drive-thru, located generally shown on the attached site plan. The site 
plan layout provides for convenient circulation for customers, employees and service providers.  
Dual drive-thru lanes offer ample vehicular stacking so as not to negatively impact parking or 
circulation for existing and future uses within the development.  Outdoor dining is proposed on 
the north side of the building.   
 
ARCHITECTURE.  Shake Shack is committed to providing a consistent experience to each guest, 
and that starts with the design of their building.  As a newer brand in the market, brand 
consistency has become an important catalyst in Shake Shack’s future growth plans.   
 
Shack plans to maintain its brand while also respecting the aesthetic of Goodyear Civic Square.  
This location will be among the first of Shake Shack’s new prototype. 
 
The drive-thru elevation will be modified to help bring in the surrounding atmosphere for guests 
and balance the look of the center.  This area will feature a combination of fiber cement panels, 
Dryvit and faux wood siding.  The drive-thru has a modern feel with canopies above the order 
point that complement the building canopy and utilize the decorative string lights to bring in 
the same hospitality for guests.  Shack believes the decorative drive-thru is an inviting 
atmosphere that will attract guests to come on inside and be part of the full experience Shack 
has to offer.   
 
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE. Following completion of the pre-application process, the 
landowner and Shake Shack intends to proceed with preliminary site plan review, design review, 
construction documents, permits and construction with a goal of opening for business in late 
2024 or early 2025. 



 

Goodyear Civic Square Shake Shack – Site Plan/Use Permit Narrative                                                    
September 15, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 
CITY AND COMMUNITY IMPACT. The drive-through restaurant will employ 15-20 full and 
part-time employees for each shift. Operating hours for walk-in and drive-through service will 
be from 11:00 am to 10:00 pm seven days per week.  Shake Shack is forecasting roughly $4M in 
annual revenue at this location. Shake Shack offers an attractive addition to Goodyear and looks 
forward to serving the surrounding community. Thank you for your consideration of this 
request. 

 



2024.02.15



P-5
P-5

P-5P-5
P-5P-5

P-5

P-5 BAFFLE BLADE LOUVERS DOVE GRAY ARCHITECTURAL LOUVERS

EAST ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION





City of Goodyear, PHX GIS, City of Goodyear, Bureau of Land
Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS,

EPA

C
it

y 
o

f 
G

o
o

d
ye

ar

Aerial Exhibit

23-300-00004 GSQ Shake Shack

GSQ Regional Center

HarkinsCity Hall

BB Living

The Market at 
Estrella Falls

Goodyear 
Centerpointe

Estrella Commons Campbells

Site



Convenience Use within
Goodyear Civic Square

at Estrella Falls
Use Permit (Drive-Thru)

Council Meeting 
April 29, 2024



Location
NORTH GOODYEAR

• Goodyear Civic Square 
(At Estrella Falls)

• Northwest Corner of West 
McDowell Road and North 
150th Drive

• 1.46-acres

• Zoned PAD as a part of 
Goodyear Civic Square

(Commercial)



Specific Location
ZOOMED IN

• North
o South Parking Garage in Civic Square

• East
o Cheddars as well as Harkins at Estrella Falls

• West
o Vacant Lot and The Market at Estrella Falls

• South
o Vacant County Flood Control Lot



Zoning History
GOODYEAR CIVIC SQUARE AT ESTRELLA FALLS

• Rezoned to PAD in July 2019

• Southern Portion zoned with 
Commercial uses

• Drive through use requires Use Permit



Proposal
CONVENIENCE USE DRIVE-THROUGH

• 3,150 Square feet

• Dual Drive-Through

Facing N Civic Square

Facing N 150th DrFacing W McDowell Rd.

Facing Future Desert 

Flower Dr



Proposal
CONVENIENCE USE DRIVE-THROUGH

• 2 Types



Proposal
CONVENIENCE USE DRIVE-THROUGH

• 2 Different Forms of 
screening



Steel Screen Panel
FROM BUILT TO GROWN

When Built When Grown



Access Points
AERIAL OF SITE

West McDowell Road
N

o
rth

 1
5
0
th

 D
riv

e

Future West Desert Flower Drive

Fu
tu

re
 G

lo
b

e
 D

riv
e



Access Points
SITE PLAN ENLARGED

West McDowell Road

North 150th Drive
North Civic Square

North Globe Drive

Future West Desert Flower Drive

North



Recommendation
APPROVE SUBJECT TO STIPULATIONS

• Proposed Stipulations
• Bike Racks

• Landscaping and Screening

• Drive-Through Canopy

East ElevationNorth Elevation South Elevation West Elevation





ITEM #: 13. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1865

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: FY2024-2025 ACTION PLAN FOR HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

(HUD) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): Christina Panaitescu, Community Partnerships
Program Manager

SUMMARY
Conduct a public hearing to receive input on the draft FY2024-2025 Action Plan for the HUD
CDBG program. Comments on the draft plan will be incorporated into the final document,
which will be brought to Council for adoption in May.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
Collect public comment on the draft FY2024-2025 Action Plan for the HUD CDBG program.
(Christina Panaitescu, Community Partnerships Program Manager) 

FISCAL IMPACT
Once adopted, the Annual Action Plan will guide how CDBG grant revenue can be expended.
CDBG funds do not require a match from the city.  The revenues and expenditures associated
with this item have been included in the recommended fiscal year 2025 budget in the amount
of $397,800.  Any additional carry forward amounts will be adjusted for the tentative budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The city of Goodyear began receiving a direct CDBG entitlement in city fiscal year (FY) 2022.

CDBG funds may be used for a variety of activities that meet the needs of low- and
moderate-income (LMI) residents and neighborhoods, and vulnerable populations as defined
by HUD. Eligible activities fall into four broad categories:  

Community Facilities and Infrastructure1.
Community Services and Programs2.
Economic Development3.



Quality Affordable Housing4.

Activities must also address Congress' primary CDBG objective to improve communities,
principally for LMI residents by: 

Providing Decent Housing,1.
Providing a Suitable Living Environment, and2.
Expanding Economic Opportunities.3.

At a March 18, 2024, work session, Council directed that the FY2024-2025 CDBG funds be
utilized to design, purchase, and install as many as 17 streetlights along Litchfield Road in
front of the Historic Goodyear Neighborhood and for CDBG program administration.

STAFF ANALYSIS
The city anticipates receiving approximately $397,718 of CDBG funds, 80% of which will be
used for community facilities and infrastructure activities and 20% will be used for program
administration and planning. If the Goodyear allocation is higher or lower than anticipated,
funds for each activity will be proportionately increased or decreased. $14,508.51 remaining
from the FY23 community facilities activity will be reprogrammed for this activity in addition to
FY25 funds.

Community Facilities and Infrastructure ($318,175 estimated +$14,508.51) Litchfield
Road Streetlight Project: Design, purchase, and install as many as 17 streetlights along
Litchfield Road in front of the Historic Goodyear Neighborhood. 

Program Administration ($79,543 estimated)
Twenty percent of the total CDBG allocation will be set aside for administrative activities such
as:  

Complying with federal regulations regarding environmental review, federal labor
standards, financial management, and procurement, including policies
regarding Minority-and Women-owned business enterprises and employment of low- and
moderate-income residents;
Promoting the principles of fair housing and educating the community about the dangers
of lead-based paint;
Assessing neighborhood and housing conditions to evaluate the benefits of revitalization
activities;
Assessing the need for human and public services to address the needs of vulnerable
populations and Goodyear residents living in poverty; and
Establishing application and monitoring systems.

This draft was made available for public comment on the city's website at
www.goodyearaz.gov/cdbg beginning on March 26 and will remain open to comment through
April 29, 2024.

The Council will consider adopting the final FY2024-2025 Annual Action Plan at the May 6,
2024, Council meeting, enabling staff to meet the May 15 submission deadline from HUD.

Attachments
Presentation 
DRAFT FY25 Annual Action Plan 







Agenda

• FY2022-2026 Five-Year Consolidated Plan 
• FY2025 Annual Action Plan 
• Next Steps

2



CDBG Planning 101

National Objective: Benefit low- and moderate- income persons

3

Presumed Benefit:
• Abused children
• Battered spouses
• Elderly persons
• Severely disabled adults
• Homeless persons
• Illiterate adults
• Persons living with AIDS
• Migrant farm workers



Five-Year Consolidated Plan

National Objective: Benefit low- and moderate- income persons

Goodyear Priorities:
• High Priority Activities (likely to be funded with CDBG in the next five years)

– Community Facilities and Improvements
– Public Services
– Program Administration

• Low Priority Activities (may be funded as opportunities arise)
– Attainable and Sustainable Housing
– Economic Development

4

FY2022-2026 Priorities



5

Identifying Potential Activities
Initial Public Meeting January 16, 2024

• 7 Residents Online/In-Person
• January Faith & Community Roundtable
• Broadband Service Providers
• Department Directors

• Public Services
• Attainable and Sustainable Housing
• Community Facilities & Infrastructure



FY2025 CDBG ACTIVITY

6



FY2025 CDBG PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

7

Up to 17 streetlights along 
Litchfield Rd. in front of 

Historic Goodyear 
Neighborhood Program Administration – 20%

Community Improvements – 80%

$397,718 Estimated Entitlement (+$14,409.51 carryover for community improvements)



Next Steps

• January 16: Initial Public Meeting 
• March 18: Council Work Session
• Mar. 29 – Apr. 29: Public Comment Period
• April 29: Public Hearing @ Council Meeting
• May 6: Council Meeting to Authorize Submission
• Submit Plans to HUD by Deadline
• HUD Approves Plan and Funds Available After July 1

8

Stay up-to-date at: goodyearaz.gov/cdbg



 

 

 

 

   

The FY2024‐2025 Action Plan describes the 

planned uses of CDBG entitlement funding 

for activities benefitting low‐income and 

special needs populations throughout 

Goodyear for the period beginning July 1, 

2024, and ending June 30, 2025.  

The City anticipates receiving approximately 

$397,718, 80% of which will be used for 

community facilities and improvements and 

20% for program administration and 

planning.  

If the City allocation is higher or lower than 

anticipated, funds for each activity will be 

proportionately increased or decreased. 

2024-2025 
Annual Plan 
Community Development 
Block Grant 

DRAFT 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

1 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

Executive Summary 

AP‐05 Executive Summary ‐ 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1.  Introduction 

The Annual Action Plan is required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for 

the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. The primary purpose of the CDBG program 

is to develop viable communities by promoting integrated approaches that provide decent housing, a 

suitable living environment, and expanded economic opportunities for low‐and‐moderate (LMI) people, 

households, and neighborhoods. 

The Annual Plan establishes priorities for the investment of CDBG funds by the city of Goodyear. It is 

designed to guide HUD‐funded housing, homelessness, and community development policies and 

programs for the period beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. The plan describes needs, 

resources, goals, strategies, and objectives to assist Goodyear’s LMI residents and households as defined 

by HUD. Data quantifying LMI households is contained in the City’s 5‐year HUD Consolidated Plan. 

In developing the Annual Plan, the City referred to the 5‐year goals for the use of CDBG funds 

established in the Consolidated Plan, as well as strategies to improve the delivery system, address lead‐

based paint hazards, reduce the incidence of poverty, and address barriers to affordable housing 

development. These goals and strategies are based on data and input from residents and stakeholders. 

2.  Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   

This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to 

another location. It may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs 

assessment, the housing market analysis or the strategic plan. 

Based on data and public and stakeholder input, the following priority needs were set forth in the 

Consolidated Plan: 

1. Community Facilities and Improvements 

2. Public Services 

3. Attainable and Sustainable Housing 

4. Economic Development 

5. Program Administration 

Activity goals were established in each of these areas for a period of five years. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

2 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

3.  Evaluation of past performance  

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or 

projects. 

This is the City’s fourth year as an entitlement community. The City’s PY2021 Community Facilities and 

Improvements project in Goodyear’s North Subdivisions had suffered some delays due to supply chain 

issues. Existing streetlights were successfully removed and replaced with improved LED fixtures and 

bollard lighting has been installed along a neighborhood pathway to improve safety in the 

neighborhood. The streetlights are energized and operational. The bollards are in place and will be 

operational, pending the arrival and installation of one last part (meter pedestals). All PY21 CDBG funds 

have been expended. 

Phase II of the Community & Neighborhood Services Master Plan, centered on neighborhoods, was 

adopted by Council on May 8, 2023. The process helped to inform the PY2023 Community Facilities and 

Improvements project for Palmateer Park improvements. 

The PY2022 Community Facilities and Improvements project, renovations of a Child Development Center 

at New Life Center, were completed in January 2024. An open house was held in February 2024. 

Contracting for the PY2023 Palmateer Park Improvements is underway, with work anticipated to begin 

late Summer and be completed by first quarter FY2024‐2025. 

4.  Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  

Summary from citizen participation section of plan. 

The Citizen Participation Process and consultation process for this plan included: 

Initial Public Meeting, January 16, 2024 

City Council Work Session, March 18, 2024 

Public comment period for the draft action plan from March 29, 2024, through April 29, 2024 

Public Hearing at Council Meeting, April 29, 2024 

Council Meeting to adopt the Annual Action Plan by Resolution, May 6, 2024 

Local broadband providers were engaged via email and the faith and nonprofit community members 

were provided a presentation and opportunity to propose activities at the February 13, 2024, Goodyear 

Faith & Community Roundtable. 

There was a total of seven in‐person and online attendees at the January 16, 2024, Initial Public 

Meeting. Faith & Community Roundtable members were also consulted at their February 2024 meeting. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

3 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Several eligible activity suggestions centering largely on capital community improvement‐type projects, 

like enhancements to our parks and connectivity such as sidewalks and pathways, emerged. 

The broadband service providers, COX Communication and Verizon, expressed an interest in partnering 

on a public service activity to subsidize the access cost for low‐income residents. 

City department directors were consulted for feedback and given an opportunity to weigh in on how 

suggestions aligned with their department‐level planning and prioritization and staff capacity to tackle a 

project in this upcoming fiscal year. 

Activities that emerged included an ambulance for station 181, a street light project on Litchfield Rd in 

the Historic Goodyear neighborhood, and a variety of projects that are planned for future fiscal years. 

This insight will be helpful for future program year planning efforts. 

5.  Summary of public comments 

This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen 

Participation section of the Con Plan. 

Comments will continue to be collected from the public through April 29, 2024, and this section will be 

updated to include any additional comments at the close of the public comment period. 

6.  Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

Any comments or views not accepted will be added at the close of the public comment period. 

7.  Summary 

Citizen and stakeholder input and the priorities, goals and objectives previously identified in the 

Consolidated Plan were contemplated in the development of the Annual Action Plan.  



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

4 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

PR‐05 Lead & Responsible Agencies – 91.200(b) 

1.  Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 

Describe the agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 

responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role  Name  Department/Agency 

     

CDBG Administrator     City Manager's Office 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative (optional) 

The city of Goodyear Neighborhood Services Division is responsible for preparing CDBG planning 

documents, including this Annual Plan, and administering Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

funds from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Questions regarding the Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, or the use of CDBG funds may be 

directed to: 

Christina Panaitescu, Community Partnerships Program Manager 

City of Goodyear 

1900 N. Civic Sq. 

Goodyear, AZ 85395 

623‐882‐7804 

Christina.Panaitescu@goodyearaz.gov 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

5 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐10 Consultation – 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 

1.  Introduction 

The city of Goodyear engages with community and faith organizations and the Maricopa Regional 

Continuum of Care for homelessness to collaborate resources and efforts. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(l)) 

The Goodyear Faith & Community Roundtable began in 2009 as a forum for cooperation, trust and 

respect within the community to nurture goodwill and offer services. It was originally called the 

Goodyear Faith Community Roundtable and was renamed in 2017 to recognize and embrace the 

participation of laypersons representing not only the faith sector but also nonprofit partners, including 

public and assisted housing providers, and private and governmental health, mental health and service 

agencies. The primary purpose of the Roundtable is to collaborate resources to make a difference for 

those in need in the southwest valley. 

To further enhance coordination, in 2023: 

 the city launched a mental health pilot program to ensure access to appointments and 

underwrite the out‐of‐pocket expense for low‐ and moderate‐income individuals. 

 the Council approved an intergovernmental agreement with Maricopa County for the allocation 

of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to support the development of affordable senior 

housing in Goodyear. 

Further, Goodyear’s community partnerships program manager is the current chairperson of the 

Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Human Services Technical Committee, serving the region. 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

Neighborhood Services representatives participate in Maricopa Association of Governments’ (MAG) 

Local Jurisdiction Subcommittee, a regional effort to align the efforts of the Continuum of Care with the 

work of Pathways Home. 

More directly, the City participates with the Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care to conduct an annual 

point‐in‐time count of individuals and families experiencing homelessness in Goodyear. Outreach is 

conducted throughout the year by the Goodyear Police Department and Phoenix Rescue Mission. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

6 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Phoenix Rescue Mission may provide shelter and services or refer individuals and families to the Human 

Services Campus (HSC) in Phoenix. The HSC is the lead agency for single‐adult coordinated entry in the 

Valley and conducts intakes and assessments. The HSC connects individuals to a wide array of services 

guided by HSC Navigators. The HSC provides matches to housing, helps connect people with family or 

friends, provides additional hospitality resources, including post office services and bag storage, and 

leads and fosters collaboration among partner agencies to ensure a focus on ending homelessness. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate 

outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and 

procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

The city of Goodyear is not an ESG grantee. 

2.  Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process 

and describe the jurisdiction’s consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 

entities 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

7 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1  Agency/Group/Organization  City of Goodyear 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Victims 

Agency ‐ Management of Public Land or Water 

Resources 

Agency ‐ Emergency Management 

Other government ‐ Local 

Civic Leaders 

Grantee Department 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homelessness Strategy 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

Ideas that emerged from discussions with various 

department directors and staff included: Improving 

the ADA ramps in Cottonflower to meet current 

standards (though it was determined that this 

should occur after an anticipated pavement 

project), installing streetlights on Litchfield Rd. in 

front of Historic Goodyear, purchasing an 

ambulance for Station 181, and widening or 

eliminating gaps in sidewalks. 

2  Agency/Group/Organization  Cox Communications 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Broadband Internet Service Providers 

Services ‐ Narrowing the Digital Divide 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

An invitation from the city's government relations 

manager was extended for consultation led to the 

suggestion of a public service activity to fund 

monthly internet grants to qualified residents. 

3  Agency/Group/Organization  Verizon Wireless 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Broadband Internet Service Providers 

Services ‐ Narrowing the Digital Divide 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

8 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

An invitation from the city's government relations 

manager was extended for consultation led to a 

presentation on a fee structure for a potential 

public service project to provide Jetpacks and fixed 

wireless access (FWA) to low‐/moderate‐income 

residents, as well as an invitation to alert the city of 

any plans for increasing or improving coverage/new 

tower projects that may emerge in area‐benefit‐

eligible communities. 

4  Agency/Group/Organization  Century Link 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Broadband Internet Service Providers 

Services ‐ Narrowing the Digital Divide 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

An invitation from the city's government relations 

manager was extended for consultation. No interest 

was expressed. 

5  Agency/Group/Organization  Goodyear Faith and Community Roundtable 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Housing 

Services‐Children 

Services‐Elderly Persons 

Services‐Persons with Disabilities 

Services‐Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services‐Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services‐homeless 

Services‐Health 

Services‐Education 

Services‐Employment 

Health Agency 

Child Welfare Agency 

Business and Civic Leaders 

Faith leaders and nonprofit outreach workers 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

9 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non‐Homeless Special Needs 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

A presentation was made at the February 

roundtable meeting. Participants were invited to 

present their suggestions and participate in the 

public input process throughout the planning 

process. 

6  Agency/Group/Organization  T‐Mobile 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services ‐ Broadband Internet Service Providers 

Services ‐ Narrowing the Digital Divide 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Market Analysis 

Economic Development 

Anti‐poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was 

consulted. What are the anticipated 

outcomes of the consultation or areas for 

improved coordination? 

An invitation from the city's government relations 

manager was extended for consultation. No interest 

was expressed. 

 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

All agency types were given the opportunity to provide input.  

 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan  Lead 
Organization 

How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the 
goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 

Maricopa 

Regional 

Continuum of 

Care 

Point‐in‐Time Count and Housing (Beds) Inventory Count; 

Shared goals for assisting individuals and families 

experiencing or at risk of homelessness 

Goodyear 2019 

Community 

Assessment 

City of Goodyear 
Shared vision for assisting Goodyear's most vulnerable 

residents 

Goodyear 2025 

General Plan 
City of Goodyear 

Goals to provide housing, services and economic 

opportunity for Goodyear's residents. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

10 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Name of Plan  Lead 
Organization 

How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the 
goals of each plan? 

Focus on Success 

Economic 

Development Action 

Plan 

City of Goodyear  Strategic priorities for economic development. 

FY2025‐2027 

Strategic Plan 
City of Goodyear 

Promoting a quality environment to enhance community 

prosperity. 

Community and 

Neighborhood 

Services Master Plan 

City of Goodyear 

Intended to guide future planning and investments in the 

provision of human services and neighborhood/resident 

engagement. 

2021 Avondale 

Goodyear Transit 

study 

Maricopa 

Association of 

Governments 

Identified opportunities for fixed‐route bus service 

improvements and evaluated the suitability for new 

flexible public transit options and capital investments. 

2023 Transportation 

Master Plan 
City of Goodyear 

The Plan addresses all transportation modes in Goodyear: 

vehicular, nonmotorized, micromobility, transit, and 

aviation, and provides the City with direction on specific 

improvements to enhance the ability of residents and 

visitors to navigate the community. 

2023 Parks & 

Recreation Master 

Plan 

City of Goodyear 

Prioritizes resource allocation decisions for existing and 

new facilities as well as programs, services, and overall 

maintenance of the system 

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

Narrative (optional) 

All agency types were provided an opportunity to give input into the Annual Action Plan, including 

broadband providers and agencies responsible for addressing natural disaster hazards. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

11 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐12 Participation – 91.105, 91.200(c) 

1.  Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal‐setting 
 

Staff conducted the initial public meeting on January 16, 2024, to provide members of the public with an 

overview of national objectives and local priorities outlined in the Consolidated Plan. At that time, the 

public was provided examples of activities that could be provided for Council consideration and invited 

to help the City identify any other needs that may be met through activities funded through CDBG 

investment. 

Council contemplated and prioritized eligible activities at a March 18 work session. 

 

All public meetings and public hearings were hybrid, allowing for both in‐person and virtual participation 

to broaden opportunities for citizen participation. The public was notified by legal advertisements, our 

website, the electronic newsletter “Good Neighbor Alert,” and the social media app Nextdoor. 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

12 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Citizen Participation Outreach 

Sort Ord
er 

Mode of Outre
ach 

Target of Outre
ach 

Summary of  
response/attenda

nce 

Summary of  
comments recei

ved 

Summary of comm
ents not accepted 

and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

1  Newspaper Ad 

Non‐

targeted/broad 

community 

The newspaper ad 

ran in the Arizona 

Republic on 

March 13, 2024, 

advertising the 

public comment 

period of March 

29 ‐ April 29, 2024 

and the public 

hearing on April 

29, 2024. 

        



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

13 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

2  Public Meeting 

Non‐

targeted/broad 

community 

The first public 

meeting occurred 

on January 16, 

2024, with 7 

residents 

participating 

online or in‐

person at 

Goodyear 

Recreation 

Campus. 

Additionally, Faith 

& Community 

Roundtable 

members, 

broadband service 

providers, and city 

department 

directors were 

engaged, to 

brainstorm 

activities for 

funding. Several 

public service type 

activities and 

community 

facilities and 

infrastructure 

Public Services 

suggestions such 

as financial 

assistance for 

residents to get 

internet access 

via Cox or 

Verizon, youth 

programs for 

teens at risk, 

drug prevention 

resources, and 

transition 

program for 

homeless. 

Community 

facilities and 

infrastructure 

projects 

included: 

opening up 

Harrison, 

widening 

sidewalks in 

Wildflower, 

adding the 

connection 

walkways from 

the park to the 

All comments were 

accepted. 
  



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

14 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Ord
er 

Mode of Outre
ach 

Target of Outre
ach 

Summary of  
response/attenda

nce 

Summary of  
comments recei

ved 

Summary of comm
ents not accepted 

and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

projects were 

suggested. 

school in 

Wildflower and 

improving the 

ramps in 

Cottonflower. 

Also 

contemplated: 

the ambulance 

for Station 181, 

down payment 

assistance.One 

suggestion: 

Upgrading 

school 

bathrooms was 

not an eligible 

activity. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

15 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Ord
er 

Mode of Outre
ach 

Target of Outre
ach 

Summary of  
response/attenda

nce 

Summary of  
comments recei

ved 

Summary of comm
ents not accepted 

and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

3 
City Council 

Work Session 

Non‐

targeted/broad 

community 

March 18, 2024, 

Council Work 

Session was open 

to the public, 

broadcast via the 

internet, and 

recorded. The 

Council was 

receptive and 

supportive of the 

suggested activity 

for inclusion in the 

PY24 Plan. 

Not applicable       

4  Public Hearing 

Non‐

targeted/broad 

community 

To be held on 

April 29, 2024. 
        

5 
Internet 

Outreach 

Non‐

targeted/broad 

community 

The draft plan was 

published on the 

City's website 

beginning March 

29, 2024, to be 

replaced by the 

submitted plan to 

facilitate 

convenient public 

access. 

     
http://www.goodyearaz.gov

/cdbg 

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

16 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

Expected Resources  

AP‐15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction 

The Community Development Block Grant program is funded through the US Department of Housing 

and Urban Development (HUD) Office of Community Planning and Development. Due to its size and 

composition, the city of Goodyear is classified as an entitlement community. This means that Goodyear 

does not apply for the CDBG program, but is awarded CDBG funds at a level based on a HUD formula 

involving population and demographics. In order to receive CDBG funds, Goodyear must complete a 

Consolidated Plan every five years and an Annual Action Plan that details the uses of funds. Congress' 

primary objective for CDBG is to improve communities, principally for LMI persons by: 

1. Providing Decent Housing, 

2. Providing a Suitable Living Environment, and 

3. Expanding Economic Opportunities. 

The city of Goodyear PY24 CDBG Allocation is being estimated at $397,718 for planning purposes. In the 

event that the city receives an allocation higher or lower than the estimated amount, funding for all 

proposed activities will be increased or decreased proportionate to the increase or decrease in the 

actual allocation amount. 

The actual amount will be included in the final plan, when allocations have been officially communicated 

by HUD. Eighty percent (80%) will be assigned to an area‐benefit, community facilities and infrastructure 

activity to design, purchase, and install as many as 17 streetlights along Litchfield Rd. in the Historic 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

17 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Goodyear Neighborhood, and 20% will be applied to program administration. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program  Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of Funds  Expected Amount Available Year 1  Expected 
Amount 
Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG  public 

‐ 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and 

Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public 

Improvements 

Public 

Services  397,718  0  14,509  412,227  397,718 

$14,508.51 

remaining 

from planned 

PY22 

community 

facilities 

activity will be 

reprogrammed 

with PY24 

funds. 

Table 5 ‐ Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local 

funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 

The CDBG program does not have matching fund requirements. 

CDBG funds continue to leverage Goodyear’s Community Funding Program. The Community Funding 

Program provides grants to nonprofit organizations that provide human or social services to benefit 

Goodyear residents. Applications are generally taken in spring of each year for activities that will address 

a priority inspired by the 2019 Goodyear Community Assessment and Community & Neighborhood 

Services (CANS) Master Plan – Phase I: Human Services. 

Emerging from the CANS Plan: 

 the GoodyearCares Navigator continues to help residents navigate a myriad of human and social 

services, providing case management and application preparation assistance 

 a pilot home rehab program launched in the past year and has already approved five income‐

eligible Goodyear homeowners for construction services; 

 a contract is in development to support the launch of a community garden at Wildflower 

Elementary School, serving an area‐benefit community; and 

 proposals are being accepted for pilot programs to increase access to evidence‐based and 

trauma‐informed mental health and/or substance use/misuse services provided to Goodyear 

residents within the city of Goodyear limits. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

18 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Additionally, the city has partnered with Maricopa County to share the cost of a Workforce 

Development Coordinator (WDC) to provide essential career services to Goodyear residents at the 

County’s new Goodyear location. This collaborative effort offers residents an easily accessible location 

to work with an on‐site career advisor for job search assistance, resume development, and connections 

to job training programs. The WDC has been engaging local and regional employers and hosted the first 

job fair on March 6, 2024. 

CDBG funds may also leverage Goodyear’s partnership with the city of Avondale to provide support for 

the regional community action program and senior center. In addition, CDBG funds may leverage 

available federal resources, including funds available from the Departments of Transportation, Health 

and Human Services, and the Economic Development Administration. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

19 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 

may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

The city does not presently have publicly owned land suitable for the identified needs. 

Discussion 

The city does not presently have publicly owned land suitable for the identified needs. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

20 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

 

AP‐20 Annual Goals and Objectives 

Goals Summary Information 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed  Funding  Goal Outcome Indicator 

1  Program 

Administration 

2021  2025  Program 

Administration 

Citywide  Program 

Administration 

CDBG: 

$79,543 

Other: 1 Other 

2  Community 

Facilities and 

Improvements 

2021  2025  Non‐Housing 

Community 

Development 

   Community 

Facilities and 

Improvements 

CDBG: 

$332,585 

Public Facility or Infrastructure 

Activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 1015 Persons Assisted 

Table 6 – Goals Summary 

 

   



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

21 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Goal Descriptions 

 

1  Goal Name  Program Administration 

Goal 

Description 

CDBG is a complex grant program and requires extensive planning, administration, and oversight. Examples of 

administrative expenses include: those related to compliance with federal regulations, promoting the principles of fair 

housing, assessing neighborhood and housing conditions, and the need for human and public services, establishing 

application and monitoring systems, and technical assistance. These activities are subject to the 20% limitation under 24 

CFR 570.200(g) and 24 CFR 570.489(a)(3). 

Matrix Codes: 

 20 Planning (24 CFR 570.205) 

 21A General Program Administration (24 CFR 570.200(g) and 570.489(a)(3)) 

2  Goal Name  Community Facilities and Improvements 

Goal 

Description 

Funds will be utilized to design, purchase, and install as many as 17 streetlights along Litchfield Rd. in front of Historic 

Goodyear Neighborhood. This recommendation is an eligible activity and a tangible investment in enhancing the safety 

and infrastructure of the area‐benefit community.   

Matrix Code:03K Street Improvements (24 CFR 570.201(c) or 42 USC 530(a)(2)) 

 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

22 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Projects  

AP‐35 Projects – 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

PY24 projects will include program administration and community facilities and improvements. 

Projects 

#  Project Name 

1  Litchfield Rd. Streetlight Project 

2  PY24 Program Administration & Planning 

Table 7 ‐ Project Information 

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

At least 70% of CDBG funds must serve LMI people and not more than 15% may be used for public 

services. Up to 20% may be used to cover administrative costs. The largest obstacle to addressing 

underserved needs is insufficient funding to support large projects. As a relatively new entitlement 

community, Goodyear has an emerging institutional system for the delivery of services, housing and 

community development programs and projects. 

 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

23 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

AP‐38 Project Summary 

 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

24 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f)  

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low‐income and 

minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

CDBG assistance will be directed throughout Goodyear to benefit LMI residents, households, and 

neighborhoods. CDBG funds may be used citywide to address a CDBG national objective. 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area  Percentage of Funds 

Citywide  100 

Table 8 ‐ Geographic Distribution  

 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

Allocating funds throughout Goodyear provides flexibility to address the greatest needs of LMI 

residents, households, and neighborhoods. 

Discussion 

No further discussion. 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

25 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Affordable Housing  

AP‐55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g)  

Introduction 

The city of Goodyear will be investing PY2024 CDBG resources in public facilities and infrastructure 

activities. No housing activities will be conducted. 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 

Homeless  0 

Non‐Homeless  0 

Special‐Needs  0 

Total  0 

Table 9 ‐ One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement 
 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 

Rental Assistance  0 

The Production of New Units  0 

Rehab of Existing Units  0 

Acquisition of Existing Units  0 

Total  0 

Table 10 ‐ One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 
 

Discussion 

The city of Goodyear will be investing PY2024 CDBG resources in public facilities and infrastructure 

activities. No housing activities will be conducted. 

 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

26 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 
Introduction 

The city of Goodyear does not have a public housing authority. Residents may receive assistance 

through the Housing Authority of Maricopa County. 

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

The city of Goodyear does not have a public housing authority, and no public housing units are located 

in Goodyear. Residents may receive assistance through the Housing Authority of Maricopa County. 

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

The city of Goodyear does not have a public housing authority, and no public housing units are located 

in Goodyear. Residents may receive assistance through the Housing Authority of Maricopa County. 

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 

provided or other assistance  

N/A 

Discussion 

The city of Goodyear does not have a public housing authority, and no public housing units are located 

in Goodyear. Residents may receive assistance through the Housing Authority of Maricopa County. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

27 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i) 

Introduction 

The Maricopa Regional Continuum of Care (CoC) is managed by the Maricopa Association of 

Governments and works throughout Maricopa County, including the city of Goodyear, to coordinate 

homeless planning across municipalities and agencies.  

Describe the jurisdictions one‐year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 

including 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

The Goodyear Police Department, through the Homeless Outreach Team (HOT), will continue its 

proactive approach to establishing trusting community relationships and providing referrals to local and 

regional resources and shelter options to address specific needs. Individual needs are assessed by 

providers of homelessness services upon referral. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The Goodyear Police Department, through the Homeless Outreach Team (HOT), will continue its 

proactive approach to establishing trusting community relationships and providing referrals to regional 

resources and shelter options to address specific needs. In addition, the I‐HELP program will continue to 

provide overnight emergency shelter and case management to assist people experiencing homelessness 

to move from crisis to stability. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The Phoenix Rescue Mission is contracted by the Goodyear Police Department Homeless Outreach Team 

to continuously engage people experiencing chronic homelessness in Goodyear to build trust and 

rapport. Many individuals who are engaged are struggling with addiction and mental health issues and 

need support to acquire stable housing and social security benefits as they are unable to maintain 

steady employment. 

Helping low‐income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low‐income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

28 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 

foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education, or youth needs. 

Individuals and families will have access to regional homelessness prevention resources across a 

continuum based on the immediacy of their risk, current housing situation, and family resources. The 

type of services varies by funding source, and ranges from mortgage, rent and utility assistance only to 

prevention assistance (transportation, vehicle repair, daycare, etc.) designed to promote housing 

stability. People being discharged from a publicly‐funded institution of care also have access to these 

resources along with specialized coordination of services through nonprofit agencies that address the 

risk of homelessness among the re‐entry population. Families may also receive assistance from their 

child(ren)’s school through McKinney‐Vento funds that provide transportation, school supplies, free 

breakfast and lunch, case management/advocacy, and other services. 

Discussion 

Individuals and families experiencing homelessness in Goodyear reflect the diversity, complex 

characteristics, and special needs of people experiencing homelessness throughout the United States. 

Some people experiencing homelessness require limited assistance to regain permanent housing and 

self‐sufficiency. Others, especially people with disabilities and those who are chronically homeless, 

require extensive and long‐term support. In addition to people who are already homeless, individuals 

and families with limited incomes may be in imminent danger of becoming homeless. 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

29 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐75 Barriers to affordable housing – 91.220(j) 

Introduction:  

HUD defines a regulatory barrier as "a public regulatory requirement, payment, or process that 

significantly impedes the development or availability of affordable housing without providing a 

commensurate health and/or safety benefit.” 

The 2025 City of Goodyear General Plan identified the following local barriers to affordable housing and 

residential development: 

 As a relatively young community, only limited programs are currently in place to address aging 

housing stock. 

 The availability of funding, such as Community Development Block Grant funds, have steadily 

decreased over the years. 

 Goodyear has a need for a variety of housing types, such as multifamily rental housing. 

However, there are often negative, but not necessarily true, associations with these types of 

developments that must be overcome. 

 Housing prices could increase in the future, causing housing to become unaffordable. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 

as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment 

To address local barriers to affordable housing and residential development during the next year the 

City will: 

 Promote the principles of fair housing; 

 Conduct an assessment of housing and housing‐related services for low‐ and moderate‐income 

households and special populations; and 

 Update the General Plan. 

Discussion:  

Numerous outreach efforts, designed to understand community sentiments and guide the development 

of land use scenarios, General Plan goals, and policies, are underway and will continue through the 

summer of 2024. The General Plan will be sent to voters for final ratification on the May 2024 Special 

Election ballot. 

Further, Phase III of the Community & Neighborhood Services Master Plan is anticipated to kick off in 

FY2024 and will focus on housing and housing‐related services for low‐ and moderate‐income 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

30 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

households and special populations. 

 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

31 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP‐85 Other Actions – 91.220(k) 

Introduction:  

In addition to establishing goals related to the use of CDBG funds, the City established HUD‐required 

strategies to improve the delivery system, address lead‐based paint hazards, reduce the incidence of 

poverty, and address barriers to affordable housing development. The City has also developed HUD‐

required program monitoring, and Minority‐ and Women Owned Business Enterprise Policies. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The development and subsequent implementation of policy initiatives is critical to the success of the city 

of Goodyear’s overall housing and economic development goals. In general, policy development and 

implementation are designed to enhance city program effectiveness, identify gaps or underserved 

groups, and enhance the private sector’s ability to provide market‐based solutions. Despite an influx of 

one‐time funding, insufficient funding and an emerging delivery system remain significant obstacles to 

meeting underserved needs, due to the temporary nature of the funding and the importance of 

sustainability. It is hoped that the pilot projects funded with these one‐time funds will generate 

sufficient data to support future funding applications and investment from others. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The City will assess neighborhood conditions, including housing conditions and the need for increased 

maintenance and city services in LMI neighborhoods to provide the framework for programs and 

services that will foster and maintain affordable housing. 

The city of Goodyear is part of the Maricopa County Regional Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 

Choice. To address impediments to fair housing choice identified in the Maricopa County Regional 

Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, the City will: 

 Review Goodyear fair housing complaints data from HUD to identify any patterns in lending 

discrimination, failure to make reasonable accommodations, and other discriminatory patterns 

to identify the need for local investments in education, public services and other vital 

community investments. 

 Assess conditions in LMI neighborhoods to identify vital community investments. 

 Promote fair housing education by providing information, participating with neighboring 

jurisdictions to promote fair housing education, and examining opportunities to provide 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

32 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

financial literacy classes for prospective homebuyers. 

 Report information to Maricopa County. 

Actions planned to reduce lead‐based paint hazards 

The City will follow a multi‐pronged approach to reduce lead hazards, integrating the following actions 

into housing policies and procedures: 

 Rehabilitation Projects. The City will follow strict HUD guidelines for testing and abatement of 

lead‐based paint and other hazardous substances, and require compliance from its contractors 

and subcontractors. Any structure built before 1978 that is proposed for rehabilitation under 

federal programs will be tested for lead‐based paint. Notices and requirements regarding testing 

and removal of lead‐based paint will be provided to program participants and contractors. 

 Public Education. Lead hazard information will be distributed to participants in homeownership 

and rental programs. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty‐level families 

The City will invest community funding in services that promote the stabilization of people in crisis and 

access to economic opportunity as a forerunner to their movement out of poverty. The City will 

continue its economic development efforts, working cooperatively with employers, childcare providers, 

workforce investment agencies, and education agencies to promote jobs‐based education and services 

to help lower‐income households attain higher‐wage employment.  

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

The city of Goodyear recognizes the benefits of increasing administrative efficiencies to improve the 

delivery system. The City will continue to remain open to using CDBG funds for public services, while 

primarily leveraging the Community Funding program to expand available services to Goodyear 

residents. Additional one‐time general fund resources have been identified to further support the 

implementation of pilot programs identified in phase I and II of the Community & Neighborhood 

Services Master Plan. 

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies 

The City will continue to work with the Faith and Community Roundtable to facilitate trust and expand 

the collaborative mindset that honors the contributions, needs, and perspectives of local service 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

33 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

providers. 

Discussion:  

No further discussion. 



 

  Annual Action Plan 
2024 

34 

OMB Control No: 2506‐0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Specific Requirements 

AP‐90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction:  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 

Projects Table. The City does not anticipate receiving any program income. 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 

program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed  0 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to 

address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan.  0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements  0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not 

been included in a prior statement or plan  0 

5. The amount of income from float‐funded activities  0 

Total Program Income:  0 

 

Other CDBG Requirements  
 
1. The amount of urgent need activities  0 

   
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that 

benefit persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit ‐ A consecutive 

period of one, two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum 

overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and 

moderate income. Specify the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan.  70.00% 

 

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 

Projects Table. The City does not anticipate receiving any program income. 

 



ITEM #: 14. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1944

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE REGULATIONS RELATED TO

GROUP HOMES
 

STAFF PRESENTER(S): David Williams, Contract Planner

OTHER PRESENTER(S):
N/A

SUMMARY
This is a staff-initiated request to amend Articles 2 and 3 of the Zoning Ordinance to align with
best practices and address new and emerging trends and to update the regulations related to
group homes.  

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

 

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1604, AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 2
SECTION 2-2 (DEFINITIONS), AMENDING SECTIONS 3-2-2 (PERMITTED USES) and 3-2-4
(SINGLE FAMILY – ADDITIONAL USE DEFINITIONS AND REGULATIONS) OF ARTICLE 3,
RELATED TO DEFINITIONS, MINIMUM SEPARATION OF GROUP HOMES, AND ZONING
CLEARANCE APPROVALS; PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE , AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS
ORDINANCE. (David Williams, Contract Planner)
 

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct budget impact associated with the approval of this Zoning Ordinance text
amendment.

HOUSING IMPACT STATEMENT:

The probable impact on the housing inventory within the City of Goodyear will likely increase
availability over time due to attrition of group homes closing and not being able to be replaced



due to buffer requirements.  This would likely impact larger homes (4+ bedroom homes) to a
greater degree than smaller homes (3 bedrooms and smaller).

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
The City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance regulates the development of all land within the city.
Regulations set forth in the Zoning Ordinance may be amended when deemed necessary to
best serve the public interest, health, comfort, convenience, safety, and general welfare of the
citizens of the city. The current Zoning Ordinance was originally adopted by the City Council in
May 1999 and has been the subject of a number of amendments since that time. The purpose
of this text amendment is to add distancing requirements to all group homes as well as update
definitions for clarity.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Current Policy:

The following policies contained within the City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance are applicable
and relevant to this requested text amendment:

•  Article 2-2 (Definitions) currently defines what an Assisted Living Home is.  The definition is
dated and not reflective of state law changes and emerging trends in the industry.  There is
also no definition for a “single housekeeping unit”, which is a term that is not currently defined
in the ordinance.

•  Article 3-2-2 (Permitted Uses) indicates which uses are allowed by right, with a use permit,
approvable with conditions, or are accessory to primary uses within specific zoning districts. 
The table reflects the language from Section 3-2-4 in tabular form and currently identifies that
assisted living homes with 6 or fewer residents are allowed by right in the residential zoning
districts with the exception of the MF-12 district.  It further states that assisted living homes
with 7-10 residents shall have a ¼ mile buffer between other Assisted living homes and that
certain conditions must be met.  The table goes on to also indicate that there is an opportunity
for reasonable accommodation through a use permit process if an Assisted Living Home with
7-10 residents wishes to locate less than a ¼ mile from another home with 7-10 residents.

•  Article 3-2-4 (Single Family – Additional Use Definitions and Regulations) allows for
assisted living homes under certain criteria.  Subsection B currently requires separation
distances of 1,320 feet (1/4 Mile) between any Assisted Living Home with greater than 6
residents.  There is currently no requirement for separation buffers for assisted living homes
with 6 or fewer residents. 

Details of the Request:

This request for text amendment is to modify certain definitions and standards related to
assisted living homes. To achieve this intent, the text amendment proposes the following
revisions:

•  Amend Zoning Ordinance Section 2-2 (Definitions): Delete the term “Assisted Living Home”
and its associated definition; add the term “Group Home” and its associated definition; change
the term “Assisted Living Home” to “Group Home” throughout, and,

•  Amend Zoning Ordinance Section 2-2 (Definitions): Add the term “Single Housekeeping



Unit” and its associated definition; and,

•  Amend Zoning Ordinance Section 3-2-2 (Permitted Uses):  Update Table 3-2-2 (Residential
Districts Use Classifications) to amend the Group Living section to reflect the amended terms
as defined in section 2-2 and as used in Section 3-2-4.

•  Amend Zoning Ordinance Section 3-2-4 (Single Family – Additional Use Definitions and
Regulations): amend subsection a, to add language that all group homes shall require a
minimum separation; amend subsection b, (Assisted Living Homes) to change the use of the
term “Assisted Living Homes” to “Group Homes” throughout the section, amend subsection d,
to replace the term “business registration permit” with “business license” to reflect an update
in city code; amend subsection g, to add the phrase “prior to opening” to clarify that permits
are required from all agencies prior to opening a group home; add subsection h, which states
how long a zoning clearance is valid, when an extension of a zoning clearance may be
requested, when a new zoning clearance shall be required, and when a group home may
begin operations.

•  All existing group homes previously approved or operating in full legal conformance with all
city and state requirements, including licensing requirements, are allowed to continue
operation if the Group Home continues to comply with all applicable regulations, statutes and
ordinances, including obtaining a new business license issued by the city.  A grace period will
be provided for group homes to apply for a business license and zoning clearances to review
their existing rights.

Evaluation Criteria:

As previously noted, Section 1-3-1 (Amendments) of the Zoning Ordinance provides
evaluation criteria for text amendments. The criteria and accompanying staff analysis (italics)
are provided below:

A. Documentation indicating inconsistencies in terms of the Ordinance or problems and/or
conflicts in implementation of specific sections of the Ordinance that will be resolved by the
amendment;

This amendment is intended to bring the zoning ordinance into alignment with other valley
cities related to group homes as well as treat all group homes equally and fairly with respect to
Federal Fair Housing, and state statutes.    This proposal amends the zoning ordinance to
treat group homes in a similar manner. It also modifies definitions to make them easier to
understand as well as modernizing language in addition to creating a new definition for “single
housekeeping unit” where none existed before.

As proposed, this amendment will provide consistency and clarity with regards to the
regulation of group homes in Goodyear.

B. Whether amendment is needed to respond to changes in the law, statutory or case law;

This text amendment is in response to inconsistencies between changes in law, statutory or
case law. As previously noted, this change is being brought forward to align the city with best
practices across the valley municipalities.

C. Whether amendment is needed to address zoning and/or development issues or to improve



processes for addressing such issues;

With this text amendment, inconsistency within the zoning ordinance and best practices will be
addressed.

D. Whether amendment will to promote implementation of goals and objections of the City’s
General Plan;

In General Plan Objective CC-1-1. Create and foster complete neighborhoods places a range
of housing options is included.  Group homes would be included as part of those housing
options.  

Under Goal CC-8, quality social services, while not specifically enumerated, group homes
serve a valuable service in providing access to healthcare at a residential level. These
businesses help residents with disabilities covered by the American with Disability Act (ADA)
and are also covered under Federal Fair Housing. This text amendment helps ensure
compliance with those objectives and rules.

E. Any other factors related to the impact of the amendment on the general health, safety or
welfare of the citizens of the City and the general public.

The text amendment should not have any adverse impacts on the general health, safety or
welfare of citizens or the general public. The proposed text amendment aligns Goodyear with
best practices as well as ensuring consistency with group home regulations.

Public Participation, Public Comment and Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting:

This Zoning Ordinance text amendment requires public hearings before the Planning & Zoning
Commission and City Council. Notice for these public hearings included a full-size legal notice
published in the Arizona Republic on March 29, 2024. Information on this text amendment
was also posted to the current development applications section of the city’s website.

On April 17, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing for this item.
After the staff presentation, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend
approval of the Ordinance.  The discussion was brief and the only question that was asked
was related to any changes to the building code.  Staff clarified that there would be no
changes to the building code as part of this request.

A public notice that this rezoning request would be considered and reviewed at a public
hearing to be held before the City Council on April 29, 2024 appeared in the Arizona Republic
West Valley Edition on March 29, 2024.
 

Attachments
Draft Ordinance 2024-1604 
Staff Presentation 



Ordinance No. 2024-1604
Page 1 of 5

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1604
…
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING GOODYEAR ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 2 SECTION 2-
2 (DEFINITIONS), AMENDING SECTIONS 3-2-2 (PERMITTED USES) AND 3-2-4 (SINGLE
FAMILY – ADDITIONAL USE DEFINITIONS AND REGULATIONS) OF ARTICLE 3, RELATED
TO DEFINITIONS, MINIMUM SEPARATION OF GROUP HOMES, AND ZONING CLEARANCE
APPROVALS; PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE
DATE, AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO RECORD A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE.
…
WHEREAS, public notice that this text amendment request would be considered and reviewed at
a public hearing to be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17, 2024
appeared in the Arizona Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024.

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17,
2024, and at that meeting the Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of the proposed
ordinance; and

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, have been presented with,
and have considered a Housing Impact Statement, which is on file in the Development Services
department file pertaining to case No. P24-00096; and,

WHEREAS, a public notice that this text amendment request would be considered and reviewed
at a public hearing to be held before the City Council on April 29, 2024 appeared in the Arizona
Republic West Valley Edition March 29, 2024; and

WHEREAS the Mayor and Council of the city of Goodyear, Arizona, find that the interests of the
City of Goodyear and its citizens are best served by clarifying and amending the definition of
family, deleting the definition of assisted living home and creating a new definition for group home
and single housekeeping unit, as well as establishing separation buffers for all group homes,
subject to consistent review requirements and standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Article 2-2 (Definitions) of the City of Goodyear Zoning Ordinance is hereby
amended as follows; to amend and add the definitions set forth below (with
deletions shown by strikeout text and additions shown by double underlined
text):

Family.

a. Individual; or

b. Two or more persons, including children, related by blood, marriage, or
adoption and usual servants, living together as a single housekeeping unit
in a dwelling unit;, a Family includes two persons in a domestic relationship
and the biological, adopted and foster children of either person; or



Ordinance No. 2024-1604
Page 2 of 5

c. No more than six persons not related, living together as a single
housekeeping unit within a dwelling unit; or

d. Persons with development disabilities, as defined by Arizona Revised
Statutes, and operators of a residential facility as defined in this section.

Assisted Living Home. Assisted Living Home. A single family detached
dwelling having common kitchen facilities that provides resident rooms and is
shared as a primary residence by one (1) to ten (10) persons with a disability or
by one (1) to ten (10) elderly persons living together as a single housekeeping
unit, which is licensed by the State of Arizona and which the operator provides
or contracts to provide 24-hour supervisory care services, personal care
services or directed care services on a continuous basis.

Group Homes. A facility licensed or authorized by a governmental authority
having jurisdiction over operations for persons with disabilities who reside
together and who receive care, supervision, or counseling from one (1) or more
staff persons. This use includes residential scaled elderly care homes;
behavioral health homes, sober living homes, group care agencies, hospice
and similar residential living arrangements, not to exceed 10 residents. This
definition shall not include foster care, transitional housing, recidivism
reduction, prison release or halfway homes.

Single Housekeeping Unit. A group of one (1) or more persons residing
together in a dwelling who share use of and responsibility for common areas,
household activities, and responsibilities such as meals, chores, household
maintenance, and expenses.  Single housekeeping unit status shall not apply
to the occupants of a sorority or fraternity, motel, hotel, boarding or lodging
home, recidivism or prison transitional home, or any facility that is required to
be licensed by a public agency.

SECTION 2. Table 3-2-2 (Residential Districts Use Classifications) of Section 3-2-2
(Permitted Uses) of the Goodyear Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended, as
follows (with deletions shown by strikeout text and additions by double
underlined):

Table 3-2-2: Residential Districts Use Classifications

P- Principal
Permitted Use;

U - Use Permit Use;

Single Family Multi-Family

Additional Use
Definitions and
Regulations*

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/single-housekeeping-unit


Ordinance No. 2024-1604
Page 3 of 5

C - Uses that are
permitted if certain
conditions are met;

AC - Accessory Use
that are permitted if
certain conditions
are met

A
G

A
U

R
1-

10
, R

1-
7,

 R
1-

6

R
1-

4,
 R

1-
C

R
1-

A

R
-2

M
F-

12

M
F-

18
/2

4

M
H

S

M
H

/R
VP

Group Living

Assisted Living Facility U U

Assisted Living Group
Home

1–6 residents P P P P P P P P P

7 1–10 residents, Shall
be no closer than 1,320
feet (1/4 Mile) from
another Group Home.
more than 1/4 mile from
another Assisted Living
Home with 17–10
residents

C C C C C C U 3-2-4-B

7 1–10 residents, less
than 1,320 feet (1/4
mile) from another
Assisted Living Group
Home with 7 1–10
residents

U U U U U U U 3-2-4-B

SECTION 3. Section 3-2-4 (b.) (Assisted Living Homes) of the City of Goodyear Zoning
Ordinance is hereby amended as follows (with deletions shown by strikeout
text and additions shown by double underlined text):

b.  GROUP HOMES ASSISTED LIVING HOMES. An application for an assisted
living  group home must be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Development

https://goodyear.municipal.codes/ZoningOrds/3-2-4-b
https://goodyear.municipal.codes/ZoningOrds/3-2-4-b


Ordinance No. 2024-1604
Page 4 of 5

Services Director (formerly known as the Community Development Director) or his
designee prior to a Zoning Clearance being signed from the City;

a.  A minimum separation distance of 1,320 feet, one-quarter (1/4) mile for all
assisted living group homes with greater than six (6) residents, from another
assisted living group home with greater than six (6) residents, unless a Use
Permit is approved by the City Council.  Distance between group homes shall
be measured as indicated in Arizona Revised Statutes 9-462.09.

b.  Vehicles belonging to employees and residents are required to park onsite,
in the garage or on an approved driveway.

c.  Deliveries or routine stops (exclusive of visitors) specific to a group home
shall be restricted to day light hours only.

d.  The group assisted living home shall obtain and maintain an annual
business license registration permit as required by City Code.

e.  The Development Services Director, or his designee, shall have the right to
review, provide corrective action and if necessary, revoke any approval of an
assisted living group home if it is found to be endangering the public health,
welfare, or safety of the residents of the home or surrounding community.

f.  The assisted living group home shall meet all requirements of the prevailing
City of Goodyear Building and Fire Codes to be determined by the Chief
Building Official and the Fire Chief, or their designees.

g.  Prior to operating, the assisted living group home shall obtain and keep
current all necessary licenses and certifications from the Arizona Department
of Health Services and/or any other state agency responsible for licensing
assisted living homes.

h. Zoning Clearances issued to group homes shall be valid for a period of 180
days from the date of issuance.  Zoning Clearance, in the absence of
obtaining all other required licenses, does not authorize the operation of a
group home in the city of Goodyear.  Only One extension not to exceed an
additional 180 days may be granted at the discretion of the Development
Services Director.  Extension must be submitted prior to the expiration of the
original zoning clearance.  A new zoning clearance shall be required for a
change in ownership, operator, or type of group home, prior to operating.



Ordinance No. 2024-1604
Page 5 of 5

SECTION 4. CORRECTIONS. The City Clerk, and the codifiers of this Ordinance are
authorized to make necessary clerical corrections to this Ordinance, including,
but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references,
ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers and any references thereto.

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase or portion
of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court
of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining provisions of the ordinance or parts thereof.

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective on July 1st, 2024 at
12:01 am, in the manner prescribed by law.

SECTION 7. RECORDATION. This Ordinance shall be recorded with the Maricopa County
Recorder’s Office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County,
Arizona, by a _____ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____.

____________________________________
Joe Pizzillo, Mayor

Date: ______________________________

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

____________________________ ______________________________
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney



Special Use
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment:

Group Homes
City Council Meeting

April 29, 2024

P24-00096



Group Homes
CURRENT: ALLOWED IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS WITH CONDITIONS

• Currently called “Assisted Living Homes”
• 1-6 residents are allowed by right with no buffer 

requirement. (No Zoning Clearance required)
• 7-10 are required to meet ¼ mile buffer from 

another home with 7-10 residents. (Zoning 
Clearance Required)

• Change of Use with Building Safety required for 
all group homes

• Fire Sprinklers required for homes with 6 or more 
residents.



Group Homes
PROPOSED: ALL GROUP HOMES REQUIRE BUFFER REQUIREMENT

• Change name from “Assisted Living to Group 
Home”

• New definition for “Single Housekeeping Unit”
• ¼ mile buffer requirement for all group homes.
• Update land use table to reflect new 

definitions and requirements.
• Business License required.
• Clarify licensing requirements, permitting 

process and timeframe.



Group Homes
NEW PROCESS

•Application process to include: 
• Planning for Zoning Clearance

• Allows for application to the state
• Must be completed in 180 days

• Building Safety for Change of Use
• Finance for Business License
• State of Arizona for necessary licenses 

depending on type of home.
• Fire Inspection and building inspection
• Final zoning clearance approved



Staff Recommendation
APPROVE ORDINANCE

•Staff recommends approval

•To be implemented on July 1, 2024





ITEM #: 15. 
DATE: 04/29/2024
AI #:1982

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
  
SUBJECT: AMEND ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS REGISTRATION PERMITS

 
STAFF PRESENTER(S): Roric Massey, City Attorney

SUMMARY
This amendment to Article 8-7 of the Goodyear City Code will require all persons conducting
business within the City of Goodyear to obtain a business license prior to commencing any
business operations within the city. The amendment provides for enforcement and penalties
for non-compliance as well as exemptions to obtaining a business license.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT

  

RECOMMENDATION
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1608 AMENDING ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS
REGISTRATION PERMITS, PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Roric
Massey, City Attorney)

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct budget impact associated with the approval of this text amendment. The
current fee for a business registration permit will remain the same for the business license. 
Any costs associated with enhanced administration will be included as a part of the fiscal year
2025 budget.

BACKGROUND AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS
Currently, the City of Goodyear requires every person conducting business within the city to
register a business with the city and obtain a business registration permit. The amendment to
Article 8-7 will change the current process to require all businesses conducting business
within the city to obtain a business license prior to commencing any business operations within
the City of Goodyear. The change from a business registration permit to a business license is
needed because a business registration permit is a catalogue of each business but a business
license is the City giving permission to conduct business within city limits, and without such



license is the City giving permission to conduct business within city limits, and without such
permission the business being conducted is unlawful.

All currently issued business registration permits expire each calendar year and must be
renewed on or before December 31 of each year. Every person that has been issued a valid
business registration permit by the city shall be allowed to continue to operate as if they have
been issued a business license until such business registration permit expires and shall
submit an application to the city to renew any business registration permit as a business
license on or before December 31, 2024.

The amendment to Article 8-7 shall require any person engaged in any business within the
city to first obtain a business license by applying to the city for a business license and paying a
fee. The City shall review the application and conduct any needed inspections of the business
property. Certain activities or institutions shall be exempt from obtaining a business license
including federal, state, or municipal governments, religious institutions, public schools, those
with city franchise agreements or telecommunication license agreements, and any person or
business exempted by state law from obtaining a business license.

After being issued a license, the business must display their license at a fixed location within
the city at all times or to carry their license with them if there is no fixed location. City police
officers and code compliance officers shall have the authority to inspect the business at
reasonable times and require the operator of the business to produce their license upon
demand.

The amendment to Article 8-7 allows a business license to be suspended or revoked for City
Code violations and the business must cease all operations once the license is suspended or
revoked. The City may impose fines for non-compliance under the amendment to Article 8-7
and every person that violates a provision may be pursued civilly or criminally.

STAFF ANALYSIS
Currently. city code requires a person to obtain a business registration permit rather than a
business license. The amendment to Article 8-7 requires anyone operating a business within
city limits to obtain the city’s permission to conduct business by receiving a business license. A
business license requirement is necessary in order to allow the city to impose penalties for
unlawful operation of a business and impose fines for non-compliance.

Staff recommends the adoption of Ordinance No. 2024-1608 amending Article 8-7 of
Goodyear City Code.

Attachments
Ordinance 2024-1608 w/ Ex. A 
Presentation 



Ordinance No. 2024-1608 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1608 
… 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GOODYEAR, MARICOPA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS REGISTRATION PERMITS, 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTIES, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
… 
WHEREAS, Article 8-7 of the current Goodyear City Code requires persons operating a business 
within the city limits to obtain a business registration permit; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8-7 is amended to remove the business registration permit requirement and 
add a requirement that each person operating a business within city limits shall obtain a business 
license from the city prior to conducting any business operations within the city; and, 
 
WHEREAS, every person that has been issued a valid business registration permit shall be 
allowed to continue to operate a business within the city until such business registration permit 
expires and shall renew any business registration permit as a business license on or prior to 
December 31, 2024, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8-7 is amended to allow for exemptions for certain activities or institutions to 
obtain a business license; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a business license requirement will allow the city to better enforce the requirement 
for persons to obtain the city’s authorization prior to operating a business within city limits; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a business license requirement will allow the city to enact penalties for non-
compliance and the ability to suspend or revoke a business license for violation of the Goodyear 
City Code; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Arizona find the adoption of this 
Ordinance to be in the best interests of the public interest, health, comfort, convenience, safety, 
and general welfare of the citizens of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOODYEAR, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1 DECLARATION OF PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
That certain document titled “Amendment to Article 8-7 Business Registration 
Permits of the City of Goodyear Code of Ordinances,” a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby declared a public record and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 
 
Either three paper copies or one paper copy and one electronic copy maintained 
in compliance with section A.R.S 44-7041 of each of the aforementioned 
documents being declared public records herein are ordered to remain on file 
with the City Clerk and to be available for public use and inspection during 
regular business hours. 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2024-1608 
Page 2 of 3 

SECTION 2. AMENDING ARTICLE 8-7 BUSINESS REGISTRATION PERMITS  
 
Article 8-7 entitled Business Registration Permits of Goodyear City Code is 
hereby amended by amending all sections and subsections as set forth in that 
certain document titled, “Amendment to Article 8-7 Business Registration 
Permits,” which is attached to this Ordinance 2024-1608 as Exhibit A, and is 
declared a public record, three copies of which are on file with the City Clerk of 
the City of Goodyear and which is referred to, adopted and made a part hereof 
as if fully set forth in this Ordinance. 

  
  
SECTION 3. CORRECTIONS 

 
The City Clerk, and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make 
necessary clerical corrections to this Ordinance, including, but not limited to, the 
correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, 
section/subsection numbers, and any references thereto. 
 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance 
is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions 
of the ordinance or parts thereof.  
 

SECTION 5. PENALTIES 
 
The penalty for violating any prohibition or requirement imposed in Article 8-7 of 
the Goodyear City Code shall be as follows: 
 
§ 8-7-9 Penalty. 
(A)  A person who fails or refuses to apply for or renew a business license shall 
pay a penalty of $250 except upon a demonstration that the failure to apply for 
or renew a business license was due to reasonable cause.  
 
(B)  A person who fails to comply with any request of any city code compliance 
officer, the Chief of Police, or any other duly authorized law enforcement official 
pursuant to the authority granted hereunder shall pay a penalty of $500. 
 
(C) A first violation of operating a business without a license shall result in the 
imposition of not less than a $300 fine; for a second or any subsequent offense 
the mandatory minimum fine is not less than $1,000. 
 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective as prescribed by law.  
 

  
 



Ordinance No. 2024-1608 
Page 3 of 3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Goodyear, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, by a _____ vote, this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
  
                 ____________________________________ 
      Joe Pizzillo, Mayor 
       

Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney 

 
 
 

  
 

All exhibits are on file with the City Clerk’s Office online at 
https://www.goodyearaz.gov/government/departments/city-clerk-s-office/public-notices 

or at Goodyear City Hall, 1900 N Civic Square, Goodyear, AZ 85395. 
 

https://www.goodyearaz.gov/government/departments/city-clerk-s-office/public-notices


EXHIBIT A 

Amendment to Article 8-7 Business Registration Permits of the  
City of Goodyear Code of Ordinances 

 
Upon Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 2024-1608, Article 8-7 of Chapter 8 of 
Goodyear City Code is hereby amended by amending the title of “Business 
Registration Permits,” to “Business Licenses,” and further amending all sections and 
subsections of Article 8-7 to read as follows (with deletions shown by strikeout text 
and additions shown by double underlined text): 

 

Article 8-7 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION PERMITS LICENSES 

Sections: 

8-7-1    Definitions. 

8-7-2    Business registration permit license required. 

8-7-3    General requirements. 

8-7-4    Business registration permit license. 

8-7-5    [Reserved].Exemptions. 

8-7-6    Display or posting of permit license. 

8-7-7    Inspection of permit license. 

8-7-8    Location restrictions. 

8-7-9    Penalty. 

8-7-10    Enforcement. 

§ 8-7-1 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 

indicates or requires a different meaning. 

BUSINESS. All activities or acts, personal or corporate, engaged in and caused to be engaged in 

with the object of gain, benefit, or advantage, either direct or indirect, or owners/operators of 



more than one residential rental unit, but not casual activities or sales. The term BUSINESS shall 

include any trade, business, game, amusement, calling, profession or occupation. BUSINESS 

does not include schools, churches, athletic groups or nonprofit organizations as deemed by 

the IRS. For purposes of this chapter, BUSINESS shall not include peddlers (Ch. 8-1 et seq.), 

special events, or park and swap operation (Ch. 8-3 et seq.). 

CASUAL ACTIVITY OR SALE. A transaction of an isolated nature made by a person who neither 

represents himself to be nor is engaged in a business subject to a registration permit business 

license imposed by this chapter. 

HOME OCCUPATIONS.  A business operated in a residential zoning district that does not 

interfere with the peace, quiet, and dignity of the property owners or neighbors. The business 

conducted must be (i) an ancillary use that is incidental and subordinate to the use of the 

residence for residential purposes (ii) not have a nonresident employee working at the site (iii) 

there is no commercial storage, (iv) the site is not used for long term parking of non-resident 

vehicles or clients, (v) all client parking is provided on the residential property or directly in front 

of the property, (vi) there is no exterior indication of non-resident use, (vii) patrons or clients 

are received only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m, and (viii) the business does not 

produce offensive noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat or other nuisances discernable 

beyond the property lines. Examples of uses, which would be acceptable as home occupations, 

provided they comply with the above regulations are consulting services (accountant, attorney, 

insurance or real estate), art studio (pottery, painting), craft making and other services 

(tailoring, sales). Excludes on-site exchange of sold or bartered goods (exceptions made for 

occasional and infrequent exchanges), on-site vehicle repair as a commercial use, commercial 

warehousing or storage - indoor or outdoor, non-resident employees working in the home, or 

manufacturing of products using hazardous materials or equipment not typically found in 

household settings. 

PERSON. AAny individual, organization, partnership, company, sole proprietor, firm, 

partnership, joint venture, association, corporation, estate, trust, receiver, syndicate, or broker.  

§ 8-7-2 Business registration permit license required. 

(A)  It is unlawful for any person to practice, transact or carry on any business within the 

municipal limits of the city without first having procured a license from the city to do so. Any 

https://goodyear.municipal.codes/Code/8-1
https://goodyear.municipal.codes/Code/8-3


person engaged in business within the City is required to first obtain a business registration 

permit license, unless they are exempt under this article. This includes businesses subject to a 

transaction privilege tax or a use tax, as well as businesses not subject to a transaction privilege 

tax or use tax, but which has have a physical presence within the City. A license will be issued in 

the legal name of the licensee. Issuance of a license will in no way be construed as permission 

to operate a business in violation of any applicable law, rule, or regulation. 

(B)  All permits licenses shall be issued for a period of up to one year and shall run January 1 be 

valid from the date issued through December 31. Registration permits Licenses issued shall not 

be transferable. 

(C) Every person seeking a business license must fill out an application and furnish the 

information requested by the city. The city reserves the right to request any information 

deemed necessary to ensure public safety, the collectability of license fees, and reporting. 

Refusal to provide any requested information is grounds for denial of license. Certain 

businesses may be subject to paying a license fee as established by the city council from time to 

time by resolution. 

§ 8-7-3 General requirements. 

(A)  Every person conducting business within the City must obtain a permit license, whether 

you have a fixed location within the City or not. 

(B)  A separate permit license must be obtained for each physical location within the City in 

which any business is conducted. 

(C)  When more than one business is carried on, transacted or practiced in the same location 

by the same person, only one permit license shall be required. 

(D)  When more than one business is carried on, transacted, or practiced in one location by a 

different persons, a separate permit license shall be obtained for each person conducting the 

business at that location.  

(E) Every person issued a license with a fixed location within the City shall have either the 

license applicant, owner, partner, manager, designated agent, controlling person or an 

employee at the fixed location during all hours of operation and/or when customers or patrons 



are present at the fixed location. Notwithstanding the above, a person issued a license shall not 

be required to have any owner, agent or employee at the fixed location during hours of 

operation or when customers or patrons are present for any license issued pursuant to 

Goodyear City Code 8-2-2 or if the operation and use of the facilities, services or amenities of 

the business are done entirely by customers and without requiring assistance or supervision 

from an owner, agent or employee of the business; this may include but is not limited to, self-

serve car washes, laundromats, self-storage facilities, vending machines or ATM’s. 

§ 8-7-4 Business registration permit license. 

(A)  Issuance of business registration permits. license.  

(1)  Applications for business permits licenses or renewals of business registration permits 

licenses shall be submitted to the Finance Department. Upon compliance with this article, it 

shall be the duty of the Finance Department to issue approve or deny a business 

registration permits within 30 days of submittal of a complete license application within a 

reasonable period of time, which allows the City to investigate the application and 

background of those submitting an application. Applications for a business license or 

renewal of a business license may be denied if (i) any person who submits an application 

for a business license pursuant to this article, gives false or misleading information in the 

application or in connection with the application process; (ii) any person, designated agent 

or manager knowingly operated the business during a period of time without a license or 

when the license was suspended; and (iii) any person who submits an application for a 

business license pursuant to this article was convicted of a felony involving theft, forgery, a 

fraudulent or dishonest act, or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. 

(2)  The Finance Department shall provide copies of completed business registration 

permit The City may receive and review the criminal history record information, including 

conviction and non-conviction data, of applicants for the purpose of evaluating the fitness 

of licensees, controlling persons and designated agents in connection with the issuance, 

renewal, suspension or revocation of a license or the addition or change of a controlling 

person or designated agent. Such information shall be used only for the purpose of such 

evaluation or for the purpose of supporting and defending a denial, non-renewal, 

suspension or revocation in any administrative or judicial review. 



(3)  The Finance Department shall provide copies of completed business license 

applications to the Community Development Services Department, Economic Development 

Department, Fire Department, and such other city departments as deemed advisable for 

review or inspection. 

(34)  Nothing herein, including the issuance of a permit license, shall be deemed to legalize 

any act which otherwise may be in violation of the law, including the violation of the City’s 

zoning codes, or to exempt any person from any penalty for such violations. 

(B)  Payment of fees and renewal of business registration permit license.  

(1)  All fees may be set by resolution. 

(2)  All permits licenses will expire on December 31 of the year in which it is obtained. 

Renewal applications for business registration permits licenses must be received by the 

Finance Department no later than the date of expiration. Renewals not received by such 

date will be suspended and an administrative fee may be levied for late renewal.  

(C) Suspension of License 

(1) The City may suspend a license for a period of time not to exceed thirty days if the City 

determines that a licensee, has violated or is not in compliance with any provision of this 

code applicable to the business or activity. 

(D) Revocation of License 

(1) The City may revoke a license if it is determined that (i) any person who submitted an 

application for a business license pursuant to this article, gave false or misleading 

information in the application or in connection with the application process; (ii) any person, 

designated agent or manager knowingly operated the business during a period of time 

without a license or when the license was suspended; (iii) any person who submitted an 

application for a business license pursuant to this article is convicted of a felony involving 

theft, forgery, a fraudulent or dishonest act, or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude; 

(iv) a person has been issued three notices of suspension of license within a twenty-four 

month period. 

(E) Appeals 



(1) Any person that has their license suspended, revoked, or has their application for a 

license denied, may appeal that decision to the city manager or their designee. Such 

person must file a written statement requesting an appeal with the Finance Department 

within 14 days after they receive notice of suspension or revocation of the license or denial 

of application for issuance of a license. The city manager or designee will set a time and 

place for hearing the appeal and shall notify the person appealing of the time and location 

of the hearing at least 10 days prior to the scheduled hearing. The burden of proof at the 

hearing shall be on the applicant or licensee to establish, by a preponderance of the 

evidence, that he or she should be issued a license to operate a business. The city manager 

or designee shall issue a decision within ten (10) business days after the hearing is 

concluded. The decision of the city manager or designee shall be final except for any 

judicial proceedings available by law. 

§ 8-7-5 [Reserved]. Exemptions. 

The following are exempted from obtaining a business license under this article: 

(1) The practice, transaction or carrying on of any business conducted by the federal, 

state, or local government; 

(2) Religious institutions engaged solely as a place of worship; 

(3) Nonprofit organizations that have obtained 501(c) status; 

(4) Public schools; 

(5) Employees of any business either possessing a license or exempt from having to 

possess a license; 

(6) A real estate licensee engaged in the sale or resale of real property; licensed 

pursuant to A.R.S. title 32, chapter 20, article 2; 

(7) A person who provides solely caregiving, childcare, or babysitting services and who 

is not required to be licensed by the State of Arizona pursuant to A.R.S. Title 36; 

(8) A business with purchasers located in the city if the person is required to pay tax in 

this state only because the person's business exceeds the threshold provided in 

section 42-5043; 

(9) Special event vendors or special event promoter/sponsor for a special event; 

(10) Captive insurers as defined by A.R.S. § 20-1098(10), and in accordance with A.R.S. § 

20-1098.17(A);  



(11) Businesses with city franchise agreements or city telecommunications license 

agreements; and 

(12) Any person exempted by Arizona state law from business licensing requirements 
including, but not limited to, those exempted by A.R.S. § 9-1304. 

§ 8-7-6 Display or posting of permit license. 

(A)  Every person engaged in business at a fixed location within the City shall display a business 

registration permit license issued hereunder in some conspicuous part of the place of business. 

(B)  Every person engaged in business within the City but that does not have a fixed place of 

business shall carry a business registration permit license with him or her at all times while 

carrying on the business or other activity for which the permit license or any renewal thereof 

was granted, provided that persons who are engaged in the business of leasing or renting 

buildings or other structures used for commercial or business purposes are not required to 

display a permit license at such premises or to carry such permits licenses with them. Other 

structures used for commercial or business purposes are not required to display a permit at 

such premises or to carry such permits with them. 

(C)  Every person having a business registration permit license under the provisions of this 

article shall produce and exhibit a business registration permit license whenever requested to 

do so by any police officer, code compliance officer, or by any other authorized person. 

§ 8-7-7 Inspection of permit license. 

The City’s code compliance officers, the Chief of Police or any other duly authorized law 

enforcement official have the authority to: 

(A)  Enter, free of charge and at any reasonable time, any place of business open to the public 

for which a business registration permit license is required by this article; 

(B)  To request exhibition of the business registration permit license for the current period of 

time from any person engaged or employed in carrying on any business at the place of 

business; and 



(C)  If a business registration permit license is not produced pursuant to such request, to 

require the disclosure of any or all of the information requested in the City’s business license 

registration permit application.  

(D) City shall conduct annual inspections, in addition to any annual fire inspections completed 

by the City Fire Department, of a licensed business for the health and safety of citizens and 

customers of the business. Notwithstanding the above, Home Occupations shall only be 

inspected as needed. 

§ 8-7-8 Location restrictions. 

(A)  No permittee licensee hereunder shall have any exclusive right to any location in a public 

street, nor shall the permittee licensee be permitted to operate in any congested area where 

their operations might impede or inconvenience the public. For the purpose of this article, the 

judgement of a police officer or code compliance officer, exercised in good faith, shall be 

deemed conclusive as to whether the area is congested or the public is impeded or 

inconvenienced. 

(B)  It shall be the responsibility of the permittee licensee to ensure that the City’s zoning 

regulations are complied with before applying for a business registration permit license and 

during the term of the permit license. The issuance of a permit license shall not be deemed to 

validate the conduct of any business, activity, calling, vocation, profession, or trade at the 

address. 

§ 8-7-9 Penalty. 

(A)  A person who fails or refuses to apply for or renew a business registration permit within 30 

days of having received a written notice of demand from the Finance Department license shall 

pay a penalty of $250 except upon a demonstration that the failure to apply for or renew a 

business registration permit license was due to reasonable cause and not due to willful neglect. 

(B)  A person who fails to comply with any request of any city code compliance officer, the Chief 

of Police or any other duly authorized law enforcement official pursuant to the authority 

granted hereunder shall pay a penalty of $500. 



(C) A first violation of operating a business without a license shall result in the imposition of not 

less than a $300 fine; for a second or any subsequent offense the mandatory minimum fine is 

not less than $1,000. 

§ 8-7-10 Enforcement. 

(A)  Violation of any section of this article is a civil violation, and Article 18-1 of this code governs 

the enforcement of the provisions of this article. Every person who practices, transacts, or 

carries on any business within the city is civilly responsible for every violation of this article 

which exists with respect to such practice, transaction, or carrying on of any business within the 

city. Each person that violates any provision of this chapter shall constitute a separate violation 

of this chapter for each and every day that such business is practiced, transacted or carried on. 

(B) Every person who has previously received two citations within the preceding twenty-four 

months for a violation of this chapter and practices, transacts, or carries on any business within 

the city, and who intentionally, knowingly, willfully, recklessly, or negligently commits, causes, 

allows, suffers, or permits a violation of this article which exists with respect to such practice, 

transaction, or carrying on of any business within the city is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor. 

(C) A violation of any provision of this Chapter may be pursued civilly and/or criminally, and 

subject to all penalties, as provided in Article 1-8 and Chapter 18 of the Goodyear City Code. 

(D) The penalties set forth in this article are non-exclusive and the City may seek any and all 

legal and equitable relief permitted by law. 

(E) In the event any person or entity defaults on any obligation to pay a fee or fine under this 

chapter, the City may collect such unpaid amounts by any method provided by law including 

but not limited to attachment and foreclosure of a lien on the property listed in the application 

of the business. 

(F)  In any action brought under or arising out of any of the provisions of this article, the fact 

that the defendant engaged in any business for which a permit license is required by this article 

or that the party exhibited a sign indicating the existence of a business shall be prima facie 

evidence that the person is engaged in business.  

https://goodyear.municipal.codes/Code/18-1


(G) If a person has previously received a citation or a summons and complaint for a violation of 

a section of this chapter, then, with respect to every subsequent violation of the same section, 

such person shall be presumed to act intentionally, knowingly, willfully, recklessly or negligently. 

The person may introduce evidence to rebut this presumption. 



City Business License

Updates to City Code 8-7



CURRENT PROCESS VS. NEW PROCESS

City Business License

•Current process is a business registration rather than a business license.

•A Business Registration is the act of making a list or catalogue of each 

business in an official capacity.

•A Business License is the City’s permission that confers the right to conduct 

business and without such authorization the business would be unlawful.

•The new process requires a business license to conduct any business within 

the City and provides for enforcement and penalties for non-compliance.



City Business License
NEW REQUIREMENTS

1. Any person engaged in any business within the City must submit an application, 

pay a $75 fee, and obtain a business license before operating.
2. The City shall review the application and conduct any inspections of the 

business property.

3. A business must display their license at a fixed location or have their license with 
them.

4. City Police and Code Compliance will have the authority to inspect the 

business at reasonable times and require the inspection of a license.

5. A business license may be suspended or revoked for City Code violations.
6. Every person that operates a business without a license may be pursued civilly 

and the City may impose fines for non-compliance for each day the business 

operates.



City Business License
EXEMPTIONS

• The revised Article 8-7 allows for exemptions from obtaining a 
business license:
• Federal, state and local government

• Schools

• Churches

• When licensed through the state or when the city is prevented from 
licensing by state statute

• Those businesses with franchise agreements or telecommunications 
licenses

• Special event vendors



City Business License
PENALTIES

• A person who fails to apply for or renew a business license shall 
pay a penalty of $250.

• A person who fails to comply with any request of any city code 
compliance officer shall pay a penalty of $500.

• A first violation for operating without a license is a $300 fine and 
a subsequent violation is a $1,000 fine per day.

• City may collect unpaid amounts by any method provided by 
law including, attachment and foreclosure of a lien on the 
property listed in the application of the business.


	Agenda
	AI-2011_APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	       ATT_April 15, 2024 Draft Regular Meeting minutes
	AI-2007_Appoint Members to the Ad-Hoc Charter Review Committee
	AI-1987_NEW Series 12 Liquor License for Popo's Fiesta Del Sol
	       ATT_DLLC Local Governing Body Report
	       ATT_One Mile Report and Evaluation Map
	AI-1989_NEW Series 12 Liquor License for Macayos Mexican Food
	       ATT_DLLC Local Governing Body Report
	       ATT_One Mile Report and Evaluation Map
	AI-1971_NEW Series 7 Liquor License for Bacchus Wine Bar
	       ATT_DLLC Local Governing Body Report
	       ATT_One Mile Report and Evaluation Map
	AI-1985_Expenditure Approval for the Corgett Wash Sewer Replacement
	       ATT_Exhibit_ Area of Corgett Wash
	AI-1998_Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Glendale for Fire and Medical Service Staffing for Special Events
	       ATT_Glendale_IGA_Special_Events
	AI-1968_Department of Child Safety Partnership through the SWFAC
	       ATT_IGA between DCS and City of Goodyear
	AI-1994_Thrive at Avision Goodyear Final Plat
	       ATT_Area Map
	       ATT_Final Plat
	AI-2008_DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE CITY OF GOODYEAR
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs Designation of Applicant_s Authorized Representative Form
	ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS
	CERTIFICATION
	Designated Applicant’s Agent


	AI-1965_Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment - R1-A Reduced
	       ATT_Draft Ordinance 2024-1607
	       ATT_Letter of Support
	       ATT_Staff Presentation
	AI-1967_Use Permit - Shake Shack GSQ
	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Conceptual Elevations
	       ATT_Conceptual Landscape Plans
	       ATT_Aerial Exhibit
	       ATT_Staff Presentation
	AI-1865_PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE FY2024-2025 ACTION PLAN FOR HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM
	       ATT_Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	       ATT_DRAFT FY25 Annual Action Plan
	AI-1944_Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment - Group Homes Buffers and definitions
	       ATT_Draft Ordinance 2024-1604
	       ATT_Staff Presentation
	Special Use�Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment:�Group Homes
	Current: Allowed in residential areas with conditions
	Proposed: all group homes require buffer requirement
	New Process
	Approve Ordinance
	Slide Number 6

	AI-1982_Amend Article 8-7 Business Registration Permits
	       ATT_Ordinance 2024-1608 w_ Ex. A
	2. ORD 2024-1608 Amend ART 8-7 FINAL
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1608
	Darcie McCracken, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney
	____________________________ ______________________________

	3. Exhibit A. Article 8-7  FINAL
	EXHIBIT A
	Amendment to Article 8-7 Business Registration Permits of the
	City of Goodyear Code of Ordinances
	Upon Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 2024-1608, Article 8-7 of Chapter 8 of Goodyear City Code is hereby amended by amending the title of “Business Registration Permits,” to “Business Licenses,” and further amending all sections and subsections of A...
	Article 8-7 BUSINESS SREGISTRATION PERMITS SLICENSES
	§ 8-7-1 Definitions.
	§ 8-7-2 Business registration permit license required.
	§ 8-7-3 General requirements.
	§ 8-7-4 Business registration permit license.
	§ 8-7-6 Display or posting of permit license.
	§ 8-7-7 Inspection of permit license.
	§ 8-7-8 Location restrictions.
	§ 8-7-9 Penalty.



	       ATT_Presentation

